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PART |

This report includes forward-looking statementsahhieflect our current views with respect to futavents and our potential financial
performance. These forward-looking statements aogst to certain risks and uncertainties, inclgdimose discussed in "Business",
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanCidition and Results of Operations”, and elsewhretiis report, that could cause
actual results to differ materially from historicakults or those anticipated. In this report,woeds "anticipates,” "believes," "expects,"
"intends," "future" and similar expressions idenfidrward-looking statements. Readers are cautiowédo place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only athefdate of this report.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS -- OVERVIEW

We design, develop, manufacture and distribute-pigifiormance compound semiconductor substratesethsis opto-electronic
semiconductor devices, such as high-brightness digtitting diodes, or HBLEDs, and vertical cavityface emitting lasers, or VCSELs. Our
substrate products are used primarily in fiberoptimmunications, wireless communications and ilghdisplay applications. We believe
proprietary vertical gradient freeze, or VGF, tedue for manufacturing compound semiconductor sabest provides significant benefits
over traditional methods and has enabled us torhe@leading manufacturer of compound semicondsciostrates. We pioneered the
commercial use of VGF technology to manufacturdiugalarsenide, or GaAs, substrates and have usdeté@nology to manufacture
substrates from other materials, such as indiungiide, or InP, and germanium, or Ge. Customergudosubstrates include Alpha
Industries, Agilent Technologies, EMCORE, NortelhMerks, RF Micro Devices, SDL and Sumitomo Chemi€alr acquisition of Lyte
Optronics provided us with expertise in epitaxiaqesses for manufacturing opto-electronic semiootutt devices. We have used these
capabilities to make blue, green and cyan HBLEB\AGSELs. Our opto-electronic semiconductor devaresused in a wide range of
applications, such as solid-state lighting andrfiggtic communications. We have recently undertakemitiative to significantly expand our
substrate and device manufacturing capacity amedoce the overall cost structure of our manufamuoperations.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

Historically, most semiconductor devices were @éatn a single crystal base material, or substoétglicon. Today, however, a growing
number of electronic and opto-electronic deviceskaing developed with requirements that exceeddpabilities of silicon. Many of these
devices address the continually increasing demasednd, receive and display information on higleed wireless and wireline networks. 1
demand has created a growing need for power-dffitigh-performance systems that can operate atfrégjuencies and can be produced
cost-effectively in high volumes. These systemsbtnthe growth and development of a wide rangendfeser applications. For example,
International Data Corporation, or IDC, expectsrioenber of mobile wireless devices for Internetesscand other data transmission to grow
from 10.0 million units in 1999 to more than 56&dlion units by 2004.

Other examples of applications for these systeigdie:

- fiber optic networks and optical systems withiege networks;

- new voice and high-speed wireless data systems;

- infrared emitters and optical detectors in corapst/stems;

- solid-state lighting, including exterior and inte automobile lighting; and
- satellite communications systems.

As a result of the limitations of silicon-basedhrologies, semiconductor device manufacturersrem@asingly using compound
semiconductor substrates to improve the performahsemiconductor devices and to enable these pelications. This shift is occurring
even though these compound semiconductor substnaesore expensive. Compound semiconductor stibstae composed of multiple
elements that



include a metal, such as gallium, aluminum or indiand a non-metal, such as arsenic, phosphomigogen. The resulting compounds
include gallium arsenide, indium phosphide andigialinitride. Advantages of devices manufacture¢@mpound substrates over devices
manufactured using silicon substrates include:

- operation at higher speeds;

- lower power consumption;

- less noise and distortion; and

- opto-electronic properties that enable devicemntit and detect light.

The first step in producing a compound semicondusiibstrate is to grow a crystal of the materidistorically, two processes have been
used to grow crystals: the Liquid Encapsulated @ealski, or LEC, technique and the Horizontal-Bedtan, or HB, technique. We believe
two trends are reducing the appeal of these teaksignore semiconductor devices are being formiad as epitaxial process and
semiconductor device manufacturers are switchieg firoduction lines to six-inch diameter subssatéhe LEC and HB techniques each
have difficulties producing six-inch, high-qualitpw-cost compound semiconductor substrates faaejal processing. We introduced our
VGF technique in 1986 to respond to the limitatiortgerent in the LEC and HB techniques.

Compound semiconductor substrates enable the geweltt of a wide range of electronic products intlggpower amplifiers and radio
frequency integrated circuits used in wireless katel Compound substrates can also be used te omatelectronic products including
HBLEDs and VCSELs used in solid state lighting &ibdr optic communications.

HBLEDs are solid-state compound semiconductor @ésvibat emit light. The global demand for HBLEDgxperiencing rapid growth
because HBLEDs have a long useful life, consumecxipately 10% of the power consumed by incandesaehalogen lighting and
improve display visibility. Applications where HBIDS are increasingly used include wireless handsptays, automotive displays, full co
video displays, traffic lights and various consumpplications. According to Strategies Unlimited,iadependent industry analyst, the ma
for HBLEDSs is expected to grow from $1.2 billion2000 to approximately $3.3 billion by 2005.

VCSELs are semiconductor lasers that emit ligtet aylindrical beam and offer significant advantagesr traditional laser diodes, including
greater control over beam size and wavelength cestlmanufacturing complexity and packaging costset power consumption and higher
frequency performance. Electronics and computirsesys manufacturers are using VCSELSs in a broagerahend-market applications,
including fiber optic switching and routing, such@igabit Ethernet for communications networks Bitle Channel for storage area
networks. According to ElectroniCast, an independgaustry analyst, the market for VCSELSs is expddb grow from $262.0 million in
1999 to approximately $3.4 billion by 2004.

THE AXT ADVANTAGE

We are a leading developer and supplier of higlfieperance compound semiconductor substrates andeb@ttronic semiconductor devices,
including HBLEDs and VCSELs. There are four keysesiof our success:

Our VGF technology is a competitive advantage. \idagered the commercial use of VGF technology taufecture GaAs substrates and
we believe that through the use of VGF we have imecthe leading worldwide supplier of GaAs substra@ur VGF process produces
substrates with high mechanical strength and phyaied chemical uniformity, as well as a low defaté. The following changes in our
customers' technologies are increasing demandifistates with these features:

- Greater use of epitaxy rather than ion implaotatMany of the newest generation of hjggrformance semiconductor devices for fiber @
and wireless communications applications, includieterojunction bipolar transistors, or HBTs, asdyzlomorphic high electron mobility
transistors, or



PHEMTS, are popular because they offer lower pawasumption and better device linearity than theddecessors. These devices are
created using epitaxial processed substrates. Gl dlbstrates are more suitable for these apmitathan are our competitors' products.

- Switch to sixinch diameter wafers. Many of our semiconductorickemanufacturing customers are switching their &pfoduction lines t
six-inch diameter substrates in order to reductagsts and increase capacity. Our VGF technigbetigr suited to developing six-inch
substrates than are competing methods.

- Introduction of InP substrates. Even GaAs camme¢t the requirements for increasing system pedoom and network bandwidth of some
applications, including SONET OC-768 applicatiolnattoperate at speeds up to 40 gigabits per sebtartufacturers of these devices are
turning to InP substrates that can support theseifes. We have successfully used our VGF techrimdevelop InP and we were among the
first to offer four-inch InP substrates.

In addition, VGF technology gives us further betsefi

- Customer technology independence. Our semiconddetvice manufacturing customers often competengrfoemselves. For example,
several of our customers compete for technolodgaalership in the wireless handset market. Thes@igers or end-users all require devices
made on GaAs substrates. We are, therefore, laigetyine from the effects of such competition anddfie from an overall need for faster,
more power efficient electronic and opto-electratéwices.

- Faster and less expensive capacity expansiorbiek our own crystal growing equipment rather tloadering it from third-party vendors.
This capability, coupled with the fact that our gument is less expensive and simpler to manufa¢haie LEC equipment, enables us to
increase our capacity faster and at lower cost thrcompetitors. This ability is particularly béie@l in the current rapid growth
environment for six-inch GaAs and all InP subssaRetaining the equipment manufacturing proceisimvAXT also helps protect our
proprietary technology.

Some customers specify VGF substrates. Our wafergualified with most of the key suppliers of Gaaxgl InP semiconductor devices. The
qualification process, which is lengthy and mustdpeated for each customer, can be a barriertty fem a new material or supplier.
Furthermore, certain of our customers now spebify they will only accept VGF-grown substratestf@ir manufacturing processes. As the
businesses of these customers grow, we are watigued to grow with them as a key supplier.

Our low-cost manufacturing is an advantage. Weousdechnology and economics of scale to be a lost-manufacturer. Our expansion in
China provides us with a combination of lower cdstdacilities, labor and materials than we endeuin the United States and positions us
to gain access to low-cost raw materials supplycasi Furthermore, as we increase our productipadity, we are able to spread fixed costs
over a larger revenue base, thereby leveragingastrstructure and achieving economies of scale.

We entered the opto-electronic semiconductor dawviasket quickly through our acquisition of Lyte @ptics. Our acquisition of Lyte
Optronics provided us with expertise in epitaxigdqesses for manufacturing high-volumes of optated@ic semiconductor devices. High-
quality epitaxy is a key requirement for most afdag's advanced oplectronic semiconductor devices, such as HBLERE\HDSELS. Sinci
acquiring Lyte Optronics, we have developed opastebnic products that are among the more diffitultreate using epitaxy, including
green HBLEDs and VCSELs. We have filed five patglications for our approach to fabricating HBLER¢e believe that we can be an
important additional domestic source of these desvic



THE AXT STRATEGY

Our goals are to strengthen our position as thdingadeveloper and supplier of high-performance poumd semiconductor substrates and to
develop a leading position in the market for ogeeonic semiconductor devices. Key elements ofstiategy include:

Expand GaAs substrate manufacturing capacity aotbdee manufacturing cost structure. We are inicrgasir production capacity in order
to increase our share of the market for GaAs satestr We believe that we can extend our leadepsfsjtion by increasing our manufacturi
capacity more rapidly than competitors and in amearhat enables us to further lower unit produrctiosts. Much of this capacity increase
will be for production of our six-inch diameter Gai8ubstrates. We further believe that expandingr@anufacturing operations in China will
allow us to increase capacity more quickly andeter cost. Furthermore, this expansion will allosvta form strategic alliances with
suppliers of key raw materials.

Strengthen our leadership position in the InP ntakkie believe that there will be rapid growth immdend for the next generation of high
speed fiber optic devices, such as devices usBOMNET OC-768 applications. These products are naatwfed on InP substrates and we are
positioning ourselves to be the leading supplidnéf substrates by significantly expanding our picitbn capacity. Our sales of InP
substrates during the year ended December 31, @@90373.8% compared to our sales of InP substdatesg 1999.

Advance VGF technology leadership. We believe thaitability to produce high-quality substrates gsfGF technology continues to
provide us with a competitive advantage in the ljghwth compound semiconductor substrate markegsirifénd to continue our investment
in research and development in order to expandeawiership position in the commercial use of VG#hitmlogy. For example, we intend to
leverage our existing knowledge in growing six-ighAs substrates to grow longer crystals, whiclfiwther reduce our costs. We are also
launching an effort to develop six-inch diametd? Bubstrates in response to customer requests.

Enhance our opto-electronic semiconductor devMasintend to further penetrate the high growth HBL&hd VCSEL markets through
continued investment in research and developmeaheapansion of production capacity. We are expandur manufacturing capacity by
adding metal-organic chemical vapor depositionVI@ICVD, reactors and are modifying our epitaxialqess to improve device performance
and yield. We have invested in the research amdstriicture required to grow our own sapphire satest, which are used in producing blue,
green and cyan LEDs. During the next year we exoeicicrease our VCSEL sales and develop our @dbpdation capabilities, which will
enable us to develop one- and two-dimensional VC&fEys.

Leverage existing customer relationships. We ctiyesell our GaAs substrates to more than 300 cnste and believe that we are a quali
provider to most of the significant users worldwafeGaAs substrates. We intend to capitalize onrelationships with our customers in or
to both expand sales of GaAs substrates and &eli oompound substrates, such as InP. We alsditbesstablish alliances and joint
development arrangements with customers in emelggtggrowth markets to develop new products, iaseemanufacturing efficiencies and
more effectively serve our customers' needs.



TECHNOLOGY

Our core technologies include our proprietary V@&hhique used to produce high quality crystalsdinafprocessed into compound
substrates, and our epitaxy technologies that enabto manufacture blue, green and cyan HBLEDSV&BELSs.

[VGF DIAGRAM]

Our VGF technique is designed to control the chygtawth process with minimal temperature variatéord is the technique we use to
produce our GaAs, InP and Ge substrates. Unlikitimaal techniques, our VGF technique places thtecompound melt above the cool
crystal, thereby reducing the turbulence of thetmvbich results when the melt and crystal are itederThe temperature gradient between the
melt and the crystal in the VGF technique is sigaifitly lower than in traditional techniques. Thaseects of the VGF technique enable us to
grow crystals that have a relatively low defectgignand high uniformity. The crystal and the réisigl substrate, are mechanically strong,
resulting in lower breakage rates during a custtsmeanufacturing process. Since the temperatudiegrais controlled electronically rather
than by physical movement, the sensitive crystabisdisturbed. In addition, the melt and growimgstal are contained in a closed chamber,
which isolates the crystal from the outside envinent to reduce potential contamination. This salstisolation allows for more precise
control of the gallium-to-arsenic ratio, resultimgbetter consistency and uniformity of the crystal

Our VGF technique offers several benefits when canexh to traditional crystal growing technologiebeTLiquid Encapsulated Czochralski,
or LEC, technique is the traditional method forguwoing semi-insulating GaAs substrates for eleatrapplications. During the LEC process,
the crystal is grown by dipping a seed crystal tigfomolten boric oxide into a melt and slowly pudjithe seed up into the cool zone above
the boric oxide where the crystal hardens. UnliieeYGF technique, the LEC technique is designetthaothe hotter GaAs melt is located
beneath the cooler crystal, resulting in greatdyuience in the melt, and at a temperature gradmattis significantly higher than the VGF
technique. The turbulence and high temperatureechEE-grown crystals to have a higher dislocatiengity than VGF-grown crystals,
resulting in a higher rate of breakage during teeice manufacturing process. As an open procesd,HIC technique also results in greater
propensity for contamination and difficulty contnog the ratio of gallium to

5



arsenic. It requires large, complex electro-meatarsystems that are expensive and require hiddilled personnel to operate.

Our VGF technique also offers advantages over trizbintal-Bridgeman, or HB, technique, for prodggsemi-conducting GaAs substrates
for opto-electronic applications. The HB techniduodds the GaAs melt in a semi-cylindrical contajreausing crystals grown using the HB
method to have a semi-circular, or D-shaped, csestion. Accordingly, more crystal material is disted when the D-shaped substrate is
subsequently trimmed to a round shape. In additiorstals grown using the HB technique have a hidleéect density than VGF-grown
crystals. The HB technique cannot be used costitgftdy to produce substrates greater than threleeis in diameter. The HB technique
houses the GaAs melt in a quartz container duhieggtowth process, which can contaminate the Gadiswith silicon impurities, making it
unsuitable for producing semi-insulating GaAs stdies.

The following table provides a comparison of thésee techniques:

VGF
------------- - HB LEC
ELECTRONIC AN D
SUBSTRATE APPLICATIONS OPTO-ELECTRON IC OPTO-ELECTRONIC  ELECTRONIC
Largest wafer size available........ 6 " 3" 6"
Stress/defect levels................ Very Lo w Low High
Crystal purity........cccceeeeee.... Goo d Poor Good
Applicability to multiple
materialS..........ccoeeeeiinns GaAs, InP, G e GaAs GaAs, InP, GaP

Equipment and labor cost............ Very Lo w Low High
Amount of waste material............ Very Lo w High Low
Equipment flexibility..... Versatil e Limited Limited
Equipment downtime... Minima | Moderate High
Number of competitors Fe w Many Many

VCSEL devices include single lasers as well as and-two-dimensional arrays of lasers. Array préslace more highly valued than single
lasers because they provide greater bandwidtharieutarder to form because they require epitattiatires that possess very high
uniformity in chemical composition and low variation thickness. These features are hard to aclievause the epitaxial process used to
make a VCSEL device places approximately 200 |lagkepitaxial structure on a substrate, as comptaréide less than 10 layers of material
deposited on a substrate to make an HBLED. Ouaxpitprocess, which includes proprietary in sitonitoring techniques, allows us to
manufacture highly reliable VCSEL wafers that destoate comparatively low threshold currents andh lugtput power and are sufficiently
uniform to produce one- and two-dimensional VCSEVlides. We employ both ion implantation and oxiolafprocesses to produce VCSEL
devices from our wafers.

We create our opto-electronic semiconductor devisésg MOCVD, which is an epitaxial technique tohyesize compound semiconductor
thin films onto substrates. MOCVD reactors are labde from multiple sources and wafers fabricatsithgt MOCVD generally possess a
better combination of uniformity and optical andatonic properties and are easier to produceeffsttively in high volumes than wafers
manufactured by other methods, such as molecutantapitaxy, vapor phase epitaxy or liquid phastagpi As a result, MOCVD reactors
have become the choice of the opto-electronic imgdier fabricating devices such as LEDs, VCSELd wser diodes. We modify our
MOCYVD reactors to improve their performance andaipeoprietary growth recipe that controls tempemtmaterial impurity, defect
density, material thickness and layer composititienallowing for multiple wafer batch replication.
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PRODUCTS

We design, develop, manufacture and distribute-pigfiormance semiconductor substrates, as welbtsalectronic devices, such as
HBLEDs and VCSELs. The table below sets forth adpcts and selected applications:

PRODUCT APPLICATIONS
SUBSTRATES ELECTRONIC OPTO-ELECTRONIC
GaAs - Cellular phones - LEDs
- Direct broadcast telev ision - Lasers
- High-performance trans istors - Optical couplers
- Satellite communicatio ns - Displays
InP - Fiber optic communicat ions - Fiber optic communications
- Satellite communicatio ns - Lasers
- High-performance trans istors
- Automotive collision a voidance
radars
Ge - Satellite solar cells

VISIBLE EMITTERS
Blue, green and cyan - Full color displays

HBLEDs - Lighting for the inter ior and exterior of automobiles
- Traffic signals
- Back lighting for cell ular phones and instrument panels
- White light for genera I illumination

VCSELs - Fiber optic and wirele SS communications

Substrates. We currently sell compound substratesifactured from GaAs and InP, as well as singdeaeht substrates manufactured from
Ge. We supply GaAs substrates in two-, three- -fdive- and six-inch diameters. We manufacture $nBstrates in two-, three- and faoch
diameters and Ge substrates in four-inch diametéesare developing and intend to initiate productd sapphire substrates.

Visible Emitters. We sell blue, green and cyan HBLroducts in wafer and chip form. We began selbhge HBLED products in the first
quarter of 2000 and have recently begun shippiegryand cyan HBLEDs. We introduced our first VSGQihduct in August 2000.

CUSTOMERS

We sell our compound semiconductor substrates wintklto leading semiconductor device manufactui@ts.top substrate customers
include:

Agilent Technologies
Alpha Industries

Alpha Photonics
EMCORE

Epistar

Eptaxial Products
Epitronics

Kopin

Motorola

Nortel Networks

Osram

Picogiga

Precision Opto Wafer
Quantum Epitaxial Designs
RF Micro Devices

SDL

Spectrolab

Sumitomo Chemical
TRW Space & Defense
Visual Photonics Epitaxy

We sell our HBLED products primarily to customenattincorporate them into lighting products. OurlHE® customers include Harvatek
and King Brite.

MANUFACTURING

We believe that our success is partially due toanufacturing efficiency and high product yieldslave continually emphasize quality and
process control throughout our manufacturing opamnat We perforn






our substrate manufacturing operations at ourifeslin Fremont, California and Beijing, China. part of our plan to reduce manufacturing
costs, we are shifting many of our labor-intengivecesses to our facilities in China, where castduding labor costs, are generally lower.
We intend to transfer the majority of our substrasnufacturing operations to China by the end 6f120We believe that our capital
investment and subsequent operating costs are foweur manufacturing facilities in China relatitethe U.S. Many of our manufacturing
operations are fully automated and computer magdtar controlled, enhancing reliability and yielde use proprietary equipment in our
substrate manufacturing operations to protectmetlectual property and control the timing andepa€ capacity additions. By assembling
own equipment, we can quickly increase capacithovit incurring delays caused by ordering additi@mplipment or converting older
equipment to new technologies. Our epitaxial wafeduction is located in El Monte, California. Cknemont and Beijing substrate facilities
are 1ISO 9002 certified, and we are working tow&® Icertification for our other manufacturing fatods.

We depend on a single or limited number of supglier certain critical materials used in the praércof our substrates. We generally
purchase these materials through standard purchdses and not pursuant to long-term supply cotgrakthough we seek to maintain
sufficient inventory levels of certain materialsgioard against interruptions in supply and to neeetnear term needs, and have to date been
able to obtain sufficient supplies of materialsaitimely manner, there may be shortages of cekmjrmaterials, such as gallium. Accordin

to help ensure continued supply of materials, weeliarmed strategic alliances with suppliers of kay materials required to manufacture
our products. We believe that these alliancesheiladvantageous in procuring materials to supportontinued growth.

We use MOCVD equipment to manufacture our optotsdaic devices. We are installing several new MOCMBctors and expect that these
additional machines will meet our needs for the$eeable future. The substrate materials and rdersvased in our visible emitter products
are purchased from our substrate division and atherces.

SALES AND MARKETING

Each of our divisions is responsible for its owlesand marketing activities, and each maintagevtn sales and marketing personnel. In
addition, each of our divisions advertises in tradblications, distributes promotional materialsblishes technical articles, conducts
marketing programs and participates in industrgidrshows and conferences in order to raise mawataess of our products.

Substrates. We sell our substrate products througldirect sales force in the U.S. and through peeelent sales representatives in France,
Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and the United Kingdour.direct sales force consists of sales engingbosare knowledgeable in the
manufacture and use of compound and single-elesudrstrates. Our sales engineers work with custocheisg all stages of the substrate
manufacturing process, from developing the prewiseposition of the substrate through manufactuaing processing the substrate to the
customer's exact specifications. We believe thantaiaing a close relationship with customers araliing them with ongoing technical
support improves customer satisfaction and wilvjate us with a competitive advantage in sellingeotsubstrates to our customers. The
substrate division has launched a program withcssdecustomers in which we will guarantee that higlumes of six-inch GaAs and other
substrates will be delivered on specific datestarccustomer will make a prepayment for part ofvthieie of its order. We intend to allow
several major customers to participate in this poyg

Visible Emitters. We sell our HBLED products pririathrough independent sales representativesnp lpackage manufacturers in Taiwan
and China. We intend to expand sales of these ptsdiuthe U.S. and Europe primarily using our clisales force. We sell our VCSEL
devices through our direct sales force and thrandbpendent sales representatives.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

To maintain and improve our competitive positiom, fecus our research and development efforts oigrieg new proprietary processes and
products, improving the performance of existingduas and reducing manufacturing costs. We hawvengsed a multi-disciplinary team of
highly skilled scientists,



engineers and technicians to meet our researcharelopment objectives. As a result of our ongoesparch and development activities, we
believe that we offer superior quality productst Example, some customers now qualify substratesifaatured using our VGF technique
the only acceptable material in their design sjatibns.

Our current substrate research and developmenitagifocus on continued development and enhanoeofesix-inch GaAs crystals,
including improved yield, greater substrate straragtd increased crystal length. We continue to ldpvether compound substrates, such as
InP and a low boron version of our standard GaAssates and are initiating research into developrogsix-inch InP products. We are
developing and intend to initiate production ofgaipe substrates.

We are focusing on all three major stages of LEZetipment: epitaxy, wafer fabrication and die fahtion. Our goal is to improve
brightness and yield, create specific colors arthane uniformity of product, both within and acrpssduction runs. Specific colors are
created by controlling the indium content of th@&aepal layers, which we achieve, in part, from rifim@tions that we make to our MOCVD
reactors. The wafer and die fabrication experiemegained in our Lyte Optronics laser diode operakias helped us develop similar
techniques for LEDs.

We began research in 1999 to develop VCSEL devwitthsuniform epitaxy structures on three-inch wafand announced VCSEL wafer
products in August 2000. We continue to improvertperformance characteristics and intend to dgvelee- and two-dimensional array
VCSEL chips.

We have historically funded a significant portidroar research and development efforts throughraotd with the U.S. government and
customer funded research projects, although weotlbave any projects underway currently. Underamntracts, we retain rights to the VGF
and wafer fabrication technology that we have dgwedl. The U.S. government retains the rights tzetihe technologies we develop for
government purposes only. During the period frof@71l® 1999 these contracts amounted to $5.7 milltanrently, our research and
development is internally funded.

COMPETITION

The semiconductor industry is characterized bydr#gihnological change and price erosion, as vgédlht@nse foreign and domestic
competition. We believe we currently have a leadlingition in the existing markets for compound semductor substrates primarily as a
result of our expertise in VGF technology. Howewee, believe we face actual and potential competifiiom a nhumber of established
domestic and international companies.

We believe that the primary competitive factorshia markets in which our products compete are:

- quality;

- price;

- performance;

- meeting customer specifications;

- customer support and satisfaction; and

- customer investment in competing technologies.

Our ability to compete in target markets also dejgesn factors such as:

- the timing and success of the development amddottion of new products by us and our competitors
- the availability of adequate sources of raw malkgrand

- protection of our products by effective use déllectual property laws and general economic cias.
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Our primary competition in the market for compoweagniconductor substrates includes Freiberger, Hii@able, Japan Energy, Litton
Airtron and Sumitomo Electric. In addition, we afsge competition from compound semiconductor dew@nufacturers that produce
substrates for their own internal use, and fromgamies such as IBM that are actively developingraitive compound semiconductor
materials.

Our primary competition in the market for LED pretiiinclude Cree, LumiLED, Nichia Chemicals, Toyd@giasei and United Epitaxy. In
general, LED manufacturers in Taiwan and China leagempetitive pricing advantage due to low ovednerad small research and
development investments. Cree, Nichia Chemicalsy ®md Toyoda Gosei have significant patent paasathat other competitors, including
us, must either design around or license.

We compete with Agilent, EMCORE and Honeywell ie tharket for VCSEL devices.
PROTECTION OF OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our success and the competitive position of our \t&fRnique depend on our ability to maintain traderets and other intellectual property
protections. We rely on a combination of patentgycights, trademark and trade secret laws, noclatiare agreements and other intellectual
property protection methods to protect our proprigtechnology. We believe that, due to the rapidepof technological innovation in the
markets for our products, our ability to estabbstd maintain a position of technology leadershipethels as much on the skills of our
development personnel as upon the legal protectifiosded our existing technologies. To protect wade secrets, we take certain measures
to ensure their secrecy, such as executing notedis® agreements with our employees, customersppliers. However, reliance on trade
secrets is only an effective business practicefamsas trade secrets remain undisclosed and aiptagyr product or process is not reverse
engineered or independently developed.

To date, we have been issued four U.S. patentshwhlate to our VGF products and processes. We fiaé).S. patent applications pending
which relate to our LED or laser diode technologyyq have patent applications pending in Europea@anChina, Japan and Korea which are
based on one of our U.S. patents that relatesrit¥ G processes. We have no issued foreign patents.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

We are subject to federal, state and local lawsregdlations concerning the use, storage, handliegeration, treatment, emission, release,
discharge and disposal of certain materials usediimesearch and development and production apesatas well as laws and regulations
concerning environmental remediation and employ=dth and safety. The growing of crystals and tloelpction of substrates involve the
use of certain hazardous raw materials, includisgrac. We cannot guarantee that our control systeithbe successful in preventing a
release of these materials or other adverse emagatal conditions. Any release or other failuredmply with present or future
environmental laws and regulations could resuthaimposition of significant fines against us, suspension of production or a cessation of
operations.

We are cooperating with the California Occupatiddalety and Health Administration, or Cal-OSHAaiminvestigation regarding
impermissible levels of potentially hazardous miatsiin certain areas of our manufacturing facilityfFremont, California. In May 2000, Cal-
OSHA levied a fine against us in the amount of $843 for alleged health and safety violations. \WWeappealing the citations, and have put
in place engineering, administrative and persopnatiective equipment programs to address this isemeur knowledge, no accidents or
injuries resulted from this matter.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2000, we had 1,359 full-time kxyges, of whom 1,117 were principally engaged anafacturing, 176 in sales and
administration and 66 in research and developnt&ithese employees, 826 are located in the U.3.jrb&hina and 2 in Japan. Our success
is in part dependent on our ability to attract agtdin highly skilled workers. Our employees arénmepresented by a union and we have never
experienced a work stoppage. We consider our oalgtivith our employees to be good.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

As of December 31, 2000, our executive officers dingictors were as follows:

NAME AGE POSITION

Morris S. Young, Ph.D. .............. 56 Chair man of the Board of Directors, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Donald L. Tatzin..........ccccceueeee 49  Senio r Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Direc tor

Davis Zhang........cccccccvveeeen.n. 44 Presi dent, Substrate Division

Xiao Gordon Liu, Ph.D. .............. 37 Senio r Vice President, Marketing and Sales, and
Engin eering and Development

Heng Liu, Ph.D. ..........one 40 Presi dent, LED Division

Bingwen Liang, Ph.D. ................ 39 Presi dent, VCSEL Division

Jesse Chen.......cceeeeeviiineenn. 42  Direc tor

B.J. MoOre.......ccccccevuvveeennns 64 Direc tor

David C. Chang, Ph.D................. 59 Direc tor

Morris S. Young, Ph.D. co-founded AXT in 1986 aratiserved as chairman of our board of directoredhiebruary 1998 and president and
chief executive officer, as well as a directorceiri989. From 1985 to 1989, Dr. Young was a phsfsatiLawrence Livermore National
Laboratory. Dr. Young holds a bachelor of scienegrde in metallurgical engineering from Chengkumiversity, Taiwan, a master of
science degree in metallurgy from Syracuse Unitseesid a Ph.D. in metallurgy from Polytechnic Ungigy.

Donald L. Tatzin has served as a director sincelsap 1998 and as chief financial officer since Asig2000. From April 2000 to August
2000, Mr. Tatzin served as our interim chief finahofficer. From 1993 to 1998, Mr. Tatzin servedexecutive vice president of Showboe
gaming company. In addition, Mr. Tatzin served aférector for Sydney Harbour Casino, an Austraiaming company, from April 1995 to
October 1996 and as its chief executive officemfrpril 1996 to October 1996. From 1976 to 1993, Matzin was a director and consultant
with Arthur D. Little. Mr. Tatzin holds a bachelof science degree in economics and a bacheloli@ise and masters degrees in city
planning from the Massachusetts Institute of Tetdmoand a master of science degree in econonoes Australian National University.

Davis Zhang co-founded AXT in 1986 and served asos&ice president, production from January 1984l August 1999, and as president
of the substrate division since August 1999. Fr@&71to 1993, Mr. Zhang served as our senior précluchanager. Mr. Zhang holds a
bachelor of science degree in mechanical engingémm Northern Communication University, Beijifghina.

Xiao Gordon Liu, Ph.D. joined us in June 1995 asm®ezngineer and was promoted to vice presidemfineering and development in
November 1998 and to senior vice president, margetnd sales, and engineering and developmentgugt?000. Prior to joining us, C
Liu was a postdoctoral fellow and associate spistiat University of California at Berkeley andesearch associate at the University of Li
Sweden. Dr. Liu holds a Ph.D. in physics from thevdrsity of Lund, Sweden and has published moae 80 scientific papers.

Heng Liu, Ph.D. joined us in September 1999 asthreof LED epitaxy and was promoted to presiddrihe newly formed LED division in
March 2000. From September 1994 to September T®9%.iu worked at the opto-electronics divisiontdéwlett-Packard Company as a
research and development engineer. Dr. Liu holdsnalergraduate degree from National Chiao-Tung &Isity in Taiwan, a masters degree
in physics from University of Oregon and a Ph.Deigineering from North Carolina State University.

Bingwen Liang, Ph.D. joined us in January 2000ieectbr of advanced technologies and was subselgymoimoted to president of the
VCSEL division. From November 1999 to January 2aD0,Liang was research and development managéedtl-V materials group in the
fiber-optic communication division of Agilent Teablogies. From July 1993 to November 1999, Dr. Liaras a research and development
manager for Hewlett-Packard Company. Dr. Liang&&$.D. in applied physics from the University @lirnia at San Diego and has
published more than 45 scientific papers.
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Jesse Chen has served as a director since Feli@@8y Since May 1997, Mr. Chen has served as agiramdirector of Maton Venture, an
investment company. Prior to that, Mr. Chen co-fbethBusLogic, a computer peripherals company anedas its chief executive officer
from 1990 to 1996. Mr. Chen serves on the boawirettors of several private companies. Mr. Chendbachelor of science degree in
aeronautical engineering from Chenkung Univerdigiwan and a master of science degree in eleceigineering from Loyola Marymount
University.

B.J. Moore has served as a director since Feb@98. Since 1991, Mr. Moore has been self-empl@ged consultant and has served as a
director to several technology-based companies Méore currently serves on the boards of diredlmré\daptec, a computer peripherals
company and Dionex Corporation, an ion chromatdgyaystems company, as well as several private aammp. From 1986 to 1991, Mr.
Moore served as president and chief executiveaffi€¢ Outlook Technology, an electronics test emgpt company. Mr. Moore holds a
bachelor of science degree and a master of scaagree in electrical engineering from the Univgrsit Tennessee.

David C. Chang, Ph.D. has served as a directoe gd@cember 14, 2000, filling the Board positionatad by Theodore Young, who resigned
from the Board in August 2000. Dr. Chang is anrim¢ionally recognized scholar in the field of étemagnetics, he has served as president
of Polytechnic University in New York since 1994efiously, Dr. Chang was dean of the College ofiegying and Applied Sciences at
Arizona State University for two years. Formerlgrafessor of electrical and computer engineerinp@tUniversity of Colorado, Dr. Chang
served as director of the NSF/Industry CorporateeRech Center for Microwave and Millimeter-Wave Quoner Aided Design from 1981 to
1989. Dr. Chang holds a master of science degréa &h.D. in applied physics from Harvard Universihd a bachelor of science degree in
electrical engineering from National Cheung-Kungvénsity in Taiwan.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Our board of directors currently consists of fivembers. Our certificate of incorporation and bylgnsvide that the terms of office of the
members of the board of directors are divided ihtee classes: class I, whose term will expirdatannual meeting of stockholders to be
in 2002, class II, whose term will expire at theaal meeting of stockholders to be held in 2008, @ass 1, whose term will expire at the
annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 200k class | directors are Morris S. Young and D&vi€Chang, the class Il directors are

Jesse Chen and Donald L. Tatzin and the clas&réittdr is B.J. Moore.

At each annual meeting of stockholders after titalrclassification, the successors to director®se term will then expire will be elected to
serve from the time of election and qualificationtilthe third annual meeting following their eleet. As a result, only one class of directors
will be elected at each annual meeting of stockirsidwith the other classes continuing for the iiader of their terms. Any additional
directorships resulting from an increase in the berof directors will be distributed among the thodasses so that, as nearly as possible,
each class will consist of onhird of the total number of directors. This cléissition of the board of directors may delay oryanat changes |
our control or management. In addition, our bylgnevide that the authorized number of directors i@y be changed by a resolution of the
board of directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The audit committee of our board of directors rem@nds or will recommend the appointment of our padelent auditors, reviews our
internal accounting procedures and financial statemand consults with and reviews the servicegighed by our independent auditors,
including the results and scope of their audit. @hdit committee currently consists of Messrs. Chdoore and Chang.

The compensation committee of our board of diracteviews and recommends to the board the compensatd benefits of all of our
executive officers, administers our stock optioangl and establishes and reviews general polid&$ngeto compensation and benefits of our
employees. The compensation committee currentlgistsmof Messrs. Chen, Moore and Chang.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Since January 1999, there has not been, nor is therently proposed, any transaction or seriesmoilar transactions to which we were or
to be a party in which the amount involved exce®®3,000, and in which any director, executive @ffior holder of more than 5% of any
class of our voting securities or members of tlemspn's immediate family had or will have a dir@cindirect material interest other than the
transactions described below.

Equipment & Materials, a California corporation aggd in international trading and quartzware faion, supplies us with various raw
materials from China and has manufactured quarifgarus. Christina X. Li, the sole shareholder president of Equipment & Materials, is
the wife of Davis Zhang, the president of our stdistdivision. Purchases from Equipment & Matened¢se approximately $8.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000, $3.6 milliod 829 and $3.7 million for 1998. A balance of $308,@ue to Equipment & Materials was
included in accounts payable at December 31, 2000.

In August 2000, we entered into a business trarsfdracquisition agreement with Demeter Technofdie., a Delaware corporation
founded by Theodore S. Young, the former presidénur fiber optic division and a former membermof board of directors, and Robert
Shih, the former chief technology officer of ousible emitter division. Under this agreement, weehagreed to transfer certain non-core
rights to Demeter relating to our research and ldgweent activities in the field of fiber optics. Wave entered into non-compete agreements
with Messrs. Shih and Young that prohibit them froentain activities, including the manufacture eftain VCSEL devices. We have leased
to Demeter a portion of our owned facility in El kte, California, subleased a portion of our rerigadity in El Monte, California, leased
certain equipment, including an MOCVD machine, aalil certain inventory relating to fiber optics.drchange, Demeter has granted to us a
warrant to purchase up to 4.5 million shares oBasies A convertible preferred stock at a pric8@b714 per share which we exercised in
November 200C

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal properties are as follows:

SQU ARE

LOCATION FE ET PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Fremont, CA......oevveeiiiiiiiiiiiiies 58, 000 Production and Administration
Fremont, CA......ooooveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiins 80, 000 Production
Fremont, CA......ooooveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiens 20, 292 Administration
Fremont, CA......cooevveeiiiiiiiiiiienes 9, 280 Warehouse
Monterey Park, CA.......ccccovveveveerenenn. 22, 000 Production and Administration
Torrance, CA 674 Administration
Torrance, CA 027 Production
El Monte, CA 652 Production
El Monte, CA , 281 Production
Beijing, China..........ccoccoveeiiiienn. 31, 000 Production and Administration
Beijing, China........c.ccocooveeiiniienn. 31, 000 Production
Beijing, China.........cccccccevvvveeeennnnnn. 32, 000 Production
Xiamen, China.......ccccceeeveviiiciiiiinns 14, 000 Production

All of the properties listed above are owned exdéepR0,292 square feet in Fremont, the lease fuckvexpires May 2005, 9,280 square feet
in Fremont, the lease for which expires in Junes2@R81 square feet in El Monte, the lease forchvigixpires in December 2006, the two
Torrance properties, the leases for which expifday 2003, and the property in Xiamen, China, tasé for which expires in 2001. We
consider each facility to be in good operating étodl and adequate for its present use, and betleateeach facility has sufficient plant
capacity to meet its current and anticipated opegaequirements.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AXT common stock has been trading publicly on tresdiaq National Market under the symbol "AXTI" sifday 20, 1998, the date we
consummated our initial public offering. The follmg table sets forth, for the periods indicate@, thnge of quarterly high and low closing
sales prices for AXT's common stock on the NasdatipNal Market.

HIGH LOW

FISCAL 2000

First Quarter ended March 31, 2000................ ... $45.750 $14.500

Second Quarter ended June 30, 2000................ .. $46.000 $21.250

Third Quarter ended September 30, 2000........... .. $44.375 $31.125

Fourth Quarter ended December 31, 2000............ .. $41.688 $24.500
FISCAL 1999

First Quarter ended March 31, 1999.............. ... $22.500 $9.063

Second Quarter ended June 30, 1999................ ... $27.000 $19.375

Third Quarter ended September 30, 1999........... .. $35.125 $17.750

Fourth Quarter ended December 31, 1999........... .. $23.875 $12.063

As of December 31, 2000, there were 131 holdersauird of our common stock. Because many shar&X®dfs common stock are held by
brokers and other institutions on behalf of stod#thrs, we are unable to estimate the total numbstoockholders represented by these record
holders.

We have never paid or declared any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not anticipate paying dasdends in the foreseeable futt
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with, and are refegerto, our consolidated financial
statements and related notes and "Management'ad3ist and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resof Operations.”

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE D ATA)
INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
REVENUE.....oi i $121,503 $75,372 $49,074 $25,33 5 $16,227
Cost of revenue, including restructuring cost of $1 ,844 in
2000..ccciiiiiii e 73,684 50,026 29,003 15,22 7 10,065
Gross Profite.eeieesieieeeeeeee 47,819 25,346 20,071 10,10 8 6,162
Operating expenses:
Selling, general, and administrative........... . ... 18,041 10,474 6,019 295 9 2,033
Research and development.........cccccevveeeeee. Ll 8,769 2,566 2,504 1,28 9 592
Restructuring CoStS.....ccccovvveeeeveviivcceeeee 6,409 -- -- - - -
ACQUISItION COSES....covvvveeeeeieiiiiiee - 2,810 -- - - -
Total operating expenses.........cccceeeee. . 33,219 15,850 8,523 4,24 8 2,625
Income from operations.......cccccccveveveeeees 14,600 9,496 11,548 5,86 0 3,537
Interest expense...........cccvvveees . 3,616 2,201 875 57 0 170
Other (income) and expense.......ccccccevvcceeeeees . (28,432) (1,423) (715) 3 4 72
Income from continuing operations before provision for
INCOME taXES....ooviiieiiieeieeiieeeeeeee 39,416 8,718 11,388 5,25 6 3,295
Provision for income taxes.......ccoccceevvce. L. 14978 4,380 4,668 1,21 6 1,249
Income from continuing operations........ccccoeee.. . .. 24,438 4,338 6,720 4,04 0 2,046
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net o f tax
benefits...cccoovveiiiiee (1,487) (3,658) (2,436) (3,22 0) 305
Loss on disposal, net of tax benefits............ .. (1,341) - - - - -
Extraordinary item, net of tax benefits............. ... -- (508) -- - - -
NEtiNCOME...cviiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee $21610 $ 172 $4,284 $ 82 0 $2,351
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations................. ... $ 124 $023 $042 $1.0 9 $ 057
Income (loss) from discontinued operations....... ... (0.14) (0.19) (0.15) (0.8 7) 0.08
Extraordinary item......cccoccvvveveveeeennns L - (0.03) -- - - -
NetinCome.....cccoovviveiieeeee 1.10 0.01 0.27 0.2 2 0.65
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations................. ... $ 116 $ 022 $041 $03 0 $ 0.16
Income (loss) from discontinued operations....... ... (0.13) (0.18) (0.15) (0.2 4) 0.02
Extraordinary item......cccoccvvveveveeeennns - (0.03) -- - - -
NetinCoOmMe....oovveiieiiiieeeeeee 1.03 0.01 0.26 0.0 6 0.19
Shares used in per share calculations:
BaSIC..cooiiiiiii e, 19,677 18,655 16,076 3,69 7 3,595
Diluted...ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiicceee 21,059 19,771 16,325 13,59 8 12,524
DECEMBER 31,
2000 1999 1998 199 7 1996
(IN THOUSANDS)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents..........ccccoeeeeeee. $68,585 $ 6,062 $16,438 $3, 199 $1,171
Working capital.....cccocccvvvveeeeiiiiiiiiceeeee 140,387 40,462 41,644 12, 612 6,866
Total @SSetS..ccvieiiiiiiieeiee e 250,220 115,762 102,983 37, 796 23,178
Long-term capital lease, net of current portion.... ... 7,278 6,853 3,854 - -
Long-term debt, net of current portion............. ... 15,123 15,254 18,416 7, 728 5,833
Stockholders' equity......ccccoevevvvevicicceeee 185,347 62,459 61,164 17, 387 10,237

Income statement data from our substrate divisimhdiscontinued consumer products division is idetliin all periods presented. Income
statement data from our visible emitter divisioimigduded from the time of the acquisition of thisible emitter business on September 29,
1998. All periods have been restated to reflectmunting for discontinued operations. As a tetlue discontinued consumer products
division has been eliminated from continuing ogerst in the income statements.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsedrin conjunction with "Selected
Consolidated Financial Data" and our consolidategftial statements and related notes includeavilkses in this Form 10-K. In addition to
historical information, the discussion in this Fot®K contains forward-looking statements that imeaisks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those antidigd by these forward-looking statements due tafacincluding but not limited to those set
forth under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in thienr@0-K.

OVERVIEW

We were founded in 1986 to commercialize and erdanc proprietary VGF technique for producing hggrformance compound
semiconductor substrates. We currently operatedivisions: our substrate division and our visibieitter division. We made our first
substrate sales in 1990 and our substrate diviiomently sells GaAs and InP substrates to manufact of semiconductor devices for use in
applications such as fiber optic and wireless t@ienunications, LEDs and lasers. We also sell gelumasubstrates for use in satellite solar
cells. We acquired Lyte Optronics, Inc., on May 2899, and currently operate part of Lyte's histrbusiness as our visible emitter divis
The visible emitter division manufactures HBLEDE SELs and laser diodes for the illumination markietsluding full-color displays,
automobile lighting and traffic signals, as wellféxer optic communications. We previously operdtgte's other historical business as the
consumer products division which was discontinueBécember 2000. This division had focused on #sgh and manufacture of laser-
pointing and alignment products for the consumemmercial and industrial markets.

We have been profitable on an annual basis sin@@.Qur total revenue from continuing operations 421.5 million for 2000, $75.4
million for 1999 and $49.1 million for 1998. Ourciome from continuing operations was $24.4 million2000, $4.3 million for 1999 and
$6.7 million for 1998.

In the third quarter of 2000, we raised approxinya$®6.0 million from the sale of common stock iprivate offering and a registered public
offering.

Several non-recurring events occurred that hadstantial impact on our performance and finan@&aults for the quarter and year-ended
December 31, 2000. First, we realized a $27.3 onillioneash gain as a result of Finisar Corporation's iattgan of Demeter Technologies
company in which we held warrants to purchase predestock. This gain is included in other incorfBecond, on December 14, 2000, the
Board of Directors approved our plan to discontinue unprofitable consumer products division. Agsult of discontinuing the consumer
products division, we incurred a pre-tax loss apdsal of $2.2 million. The results of operatiohthe consumer products division have been
segregated from continuing operations and are rep@eparately as discontinued operations in ttenie statements. Third, we are exiting
our unprofitable 650nm laser diode product linéhatvisible emitter division. As a result of exdithis product line, we incurred a
restructuring charge of $8.2 million, of which $Illion has been classified as cost of goods aaldl $6.4 million has been classified as
operating expense.

Our five largest customers accounted for 26.1%uoftotal revenue from continuing operations in 2008% in 1999 and 34.9% in 1998.
customer accounted for more than 10.0% of our tetatnue in 2000, 1999 or 1998.

We expect to expand substantially our productigracidy for compound substrates as well as bluesrgesd cyan HBLEDs. Most of the
expansion for substrates will occur at our fag#tin China and the remainder of our substrateresipa and all of our visible emitter
expansion will occur at our California facilitiddle estimate that our capital expenditures for éxjgansion during the next 12 months will be
approximately $41.0 million.

In connection with our acquisition of Lyte Optrogiand its subsidiaries, we issued approximatel®32@0 shares of common stock and
883,000 shares of preferred stock, with a 5.0% alhtividend rate and $4 per share liquidation pegfee over common stock, as adjustec
claims made against shares held in escrow, in exgehtor all of the issued and outstanding sharesipital stock of Lyte Optronics. The
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acquisition was accounted for as a pooling of #gts. In connection with the acquisition, we reger charge of $2.8 million in the second
quarter of 1999 to reflect transaction costs ahembne-time charges.

We recognize revenue upon shipment of productsit@astomers provided that we have received a dignechase order, the price is fixed,
title has transferred, collection of resulting rigedles is probable, product returns are reasoradilynable, there are no customer acceptance
requirements and there are no remaining signifioatigations. We provide for future returns basadstorical experience at the time
revenue is recognized. Except for sales in Japdrsame sales in Taiwan, which in both cases arerdemated in Japanese yen, we
denominate and collect our international sales.f. dollars.

Each of our divisions is responsible for its owlesand marketing activities, and each maintamewtn sales and marketing personnel. We
sell our substrate products through our directsstlece in the U.S. and through independent sal@esentatives in France, Japan, South
Korea, Taiwan and the United Kingdom. We sell o®LED and VCSEL products through our direct salesdaand through independent
sales representatives.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of total revenues for the peiaticated.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

ReVeNUE.......cccoviiccee 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costof revenUe.......ccocvvevvciveeciiieeee 60.6% 66.4% 59.1%
Gross profite..ccccceeevicieiiiee s 39.4% 33.6% 40.9%
Operating expenses:

Selling, general, and administrative............. ... 14.8% 13.9% 12.3%

Research and development........ccccccooeeeeee. Ll 72% 3.4% 51%

Restructuring CoStS......cccoovvvvveviiceees 53% 0.0% 0.0%

ACQUISItION COSES.....ccevveveviiiiiiieee 0.0% 3.7% 0.0%

Total operating expenses........ccccceee. . L. 27.3% 21.0% 17.4%

Income from operationS.......cccccceeeeeeeveeeeeee 12.1% 12.6% 23.5%
Interest eXPenSe.....cccvvveeeeveveeeeeeeieieeeeee 3.0% 29% 1.8%
Other (income) and expense.......ccccccevvveeeeeee .. -23.4% -19% -1.5%
Income from continuing operations before provision for

INCOME tAXES...vvieviiiiee v 325% 11.6% 23.2%
Provision for income taxes.......ccccccevvveeee. L. 123% 5.8% 9.5%
Income from continuing operations........cccc...... . ... 20.2% 58% 13.7%
Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ben efits.... -1.2% -4.9% -5.0%

Loss on disposal, net of tax benefits............ ... -1.1%  0.0%  0.0%
Extraordinary item, net of tax benefits.......... .~ ... 0.0% -0.7%  0.0%
NetinCome......oocvvveeiiiie e 179% 0.2% 8.7%

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenue from continuing operations. Revenue inect&46.1 million, or 61.2%, to $121.5 million in@Mcompared to $75.4 million in 19¢
Revenue from our substrate division which represBB8t3% of total revenue for the year ended 20@0eased $56.6 million, or 99.8%, to
$113.4 million compared to $56.7 million in 199%tdl GaAs substrate revenue increased $52.0 mikiof13.3%, to $97.9 million in 2000
compared to $45.9 million in 1999. Sales of 5" &h@aAs subtrates increased $19.2 million, or 3,898 to $19.8 million in 2000 compar
to $581,000 in 1999. InP substrate revenue incce®%&.1 million, or 373.8%, to $14.0 million in ZDBompared to $3.0 million in 1999. T
increase in GaAs and
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InP substrate sales was a result of increased sali@me to existing and new customers due in pestriong growth in the fiber optic and
wireless handset markets. Revenue from our vigibliter division which represents 6.7% of totalemwe for 2000, decreased $10.5 million,
or 56.4%, to $8.1 million in 2000, compared to $1&illion in 1999. The decrease was a result oflolaser diode sales volume and a
decrease in prices.

International revenue decreased to 48.2% of tetadmue in 2000 compared to 51.6% of total revenud®99.

Gross margin. Gross margin increased to 39.4%wvafmee in 2000 compared to 33.6% in 1999. The graagin at the substrate division
increased to 45.9% of revenue in 2000 compared 10?4 in 1999. The increase was primarily due tdéigales volume and the realization
of lower labor and manufacturing costs as a refidkpanding our wafer production capacity in Chiflae gross margin at the visible emitter
division decreased to negative 51.6% of revenu@®30 compared to 11.1% for 1999. The decreasevimsrily due to increased costs
associated with the start-up of blue HBLED and VC®Eoduct production, lower laser diode sales jwi@ed volume and a restructuring
charge to write-off obsolete laser diode inventasypart of our plan to exit the unprofitable 650aser diode product line.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.rggliieneral and administrative expenses increagédndillion, or 72.2%, to $18.0 million i
2000 compared to $10.5 million in 1999. The incegasselling, general and administrative expensas pvimarily due to increases in
personnel and related expenses required to supypoent and future increases in sales volume. pareentage of total revenue, selling,
general and administrative expenses were 14.89800 2ompared to 13.9% in 1999.

Research and development expenses. Research aldphegnt expenses increased $6.2 million, or 241t@%8.8 million in 2000 compar:
to $2.6 million in 1999. The increase was primatiig result of increases in personnel and relatpdreses and materials to support HBLED
and VCSEL research and development at the visini&er division. As a percentage of total revemesearch and development expenses
were 7.2% in 2000 compared to 3.4% in 1999.

Restructuring costs. On December 14, 2000, the @awp Board of Directors approved management'stplamit its unprofitable 650nm
laser diode product line within its visible emittévision. As a result, during the fourth quarté2600, the Company recorded a pre-tax
restructuring charge of $8.2 million. The restruictg charge includes $1.8 million to writéf laser diode inventory, which has been class

as a component of cost of goods sold. The restingteharge also includes $3.4 million to write-o#ft assets included in property, plant and
equipment. These assets consist of laser diodegso equipment that could not be utilized for HBLor VCSEL processing. These assets
have been taken out of service and will be soldiscarded. The restructuring charge also inclu@d8 00 to write-down a portion of
goodwill attributable to the laser diode produntli The restructuring charge also includes $2.liamifor incremental costs and contractual
obligations for such items as leasehold termingp@ayments and other facility exit costs incurrec asrect result of this plan.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased $llighiror 64.3%, to $3.6 million in 2000 compared$2.2 million in 1999. The increase v
primarily due to using short-term debt to finankce short-term liquidity needs resulting from owrgased sales volume as well as the
addition of certain capital leases to finance eopgpt purchases.

Other income and expense. Other income and expeasased $27.0 million to $28.4 million in 2000muared to $1.4 million in 1999. The
increase was primarily the result of a $27.3 millimn-cash gain on Demeter Technology warrantsithet exchanged for Finisar
Corporation common stock as a result of Finisap@ation's acquisition of Demeter Technology.

Provision for income taxes. The effective tax mases 38.0% in 2000. In 1999, the effective tax vats 38% adjusted for the non-deductible
acquisition costs of approximately $2.8 million.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

Revenue from continuing operations. Revenue inect&8.6%, or $26.2 million to $75.4 million in 19886m $49.1 million in 1998. The
increase in revenue resulted primarily from a $1bililon increase in sales of GaAs and InP subssréd existing and new customers offset
by a $2.2 million decrease in Ge and contract regerat the substrate division and a $12.7 millimnéase due to the inclusion of the visible
emitter division for a full year in 1999 comparedanly the fourth quarter in 1998.

Revenue from the substrate division was 75.3%taf tevenue and revenue from the visible emitteiséin was 24.7% of total revenue in
1999 compared to revenue from the substrate divisi®8.0% of total revenue and revenue from tisébleé emitter division of 12.0% of total
revenue in 1998.

International revenue increased to 51.6% of teetnue, or $38.9 million in 1999, compared to 38d&¥%18.9 million in 1998. The increase
in international revenue resulted primarily fror8&a3 million increase in substrate sales to newextisting customers and a $11.7 million
increase due to the inclusion of the visible emitigision for a full year in 1999 compared to oty fourth quarter in 1998.

Gross margin. Gross margin decreased to 33.6%98 &¢®mpared to 40.9% in 1998. The gross margisdbstrates decreased slightly to
41.0% from 41.5%, primarily due to a decline iresgbrices. The gross margin on products sold byitilele emitter division was 11.1% in
1999 compared to 36.2% in 1998. The decrease igingat the visible emitter division was primarilye to significant sales price decreases
for laser diodes, a $1.5 million charge to setffmtent dispute and a $2.4 million charge to wd@e/n obsolete inventory. Excluding these
charges, the gross margin was 32.0% in 1999.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.rigglieneral and administrative expenses increa®@d47 or $4.4 million, to $10.5 million |
1999 from $6.0 million in 1998. The inclusion o&thisible emitter division for the full year in 19@ompared to only the fourth quarter of
1998 resulted in an increase of $3.3 million. St#tetdivision expenses increased $1.2 million pripdue to increases in personnel and

related expenses required to support additionaksallume. Selling, general and administrative egps as a percentage of total revenue
increased to 13.9% in 1999 from 12.3% in 1998.

Research and development expenses. Research aldphegnt expenses increased 2.5%, or $62,000, 6onfilion in 1999 from $2.5
million in 1998. This increase resulted primaritgrh the inclusion of the visible emitter divisioor fa full year in 1999 compared to only the
fourth quarter in 1998. Research and developmergreses as a percentage of total revenue decrea3et¥4 of total revenue for 1999
compared to 5.1% of revenue for 1998. This decreaseprimarily due to an increase in total revenue.

Acquisition cost. As a result of the acquisitionLgte Optronics in May 1999, we incurred a numbieorge-time expenses which totaled
approximately $2.8 million. These expenses inclui@ed paid to our investment bankers, accountatitsneys and other outside consultants
and related transaction expenses.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased 15ar394.3 million to $2.2 million in 1999 compar&d$875,000 in 1998. This increase was
primarily the result of the inclusion of the vigbdmitter division for a full year in 1999 compatednly the fourth quarter in 1998, which
resulted in increased borrowing on a line of credit

Other income and expense. Other income and expersased 99.0%, or $708,000 to $1.4 million in48®m $715,000 in 1998. The
increase was primarily the result of foreign exa®pgains.

Provision for income taxes. The income tax ratejuekng the effect of non-deductible acquisitiorstsoof approximately $2.8 million in
1999, decreased to 38.0% of income before provigibmcome taxes in 1999 from 41.1% in 1998.

Extraordinary item, net of tax benefit. In connentivith the acquisition of Lyte Optronics in May2® we incurred fees associated with a
loan that we prepaid as part of the transaction.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth unaudited quartedgults in dollars and percentages for the eighttqus ended December 31, 2000. We

believe that all necessary adjustments, consistithg of normal recurring adjustments, have beetughed in the amounts stated below to
present fairly such quarterly information. The @irg results for any quarter are not necessardicative of results for any subsequent
period.

QUARTERS ENDED

DEC. 31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31, DEC. 31, SEPT .30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31,
2000 2000 2000 2000 1999 19 99 1999 1999

(IN THOUSANDS)

Revenue........ $ 38,167 $33,132 $27,939 $22,265 $20,926 $18 ,919  $19,197 $16,330
Cost of revenue .. 25,072 18,435 16,883 13,294 12,994 11 775 12,026 13,231
Gross profit........ccceeveeeneeenn. 13,095 14,697 11,056 8,971 7,932 7 ,144 7,171 3,099
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative... 5,414 5,134 4,286 3,207 3,317 2 ,150 2,327 2,680
Research and development.............. 1,793 3,267 1,800 1,909 723 528 759 556
Restructuring costs 6,409 -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Acquisition costs.......... . -- - - - - - 2,810 -
Total operating expenses........ 13,616 8,401 6,086 5,116 4,040 2 ,678 5896 3,236
Income (loss) from operations........... (521) 6,296 4,970 3,855 3,892 4 466 1,275 (137)
Interest expense.........c.ccceveenne 936 762 1,149 769 604 701 518 378
Other (income) and expense.............. (27,964) 16 (298) (186)  (300) (85) (182) (856)

Income from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes............ 26,507 5518 4,119 3,272 3,588
Provision for income taxes 10,062 2,097 1,575 1,244 1,363

,850 939 341
463 1,425 129

P w

Income (loss) from continuing

operations...........cccoveenieneane, 16,445 3,421 2,544 2,028 2,225 2 ,387 (486) 212
Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations, net

of tax benefits.........c.cccee. (721) (519) (191) (56) (662) (750) (1,049) (1,197)
Loss on disposal, net of tax
benefits........cccvvieiiennn. (1,341) -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Extraordinary item, net of tax
benefits - - - - - - (508) --

$2902 $2353 $1972 $1563 $1 ,63
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Net income (loss)

QUARTERS ENDED

DEC. 31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31, DEC.31, SEPT .30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31,
2000 2000 2000 2000 1999 19 99 1999 1999

Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 10 0.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenue 65.7% 55.6% 60.4% 59.7% 62.1% 6 22% 62.6% 81.0%
Gross profit........ccceeveeeneeennn. 34.3% 444%  39.6% 40.3% 37.9% 3 78% 37.4% 19.0%
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative... 14.2% 155% 153% 144% 15.9% 1 14% 121% 16.4%
Research and development.............. 4.7% 9.9% 6.4% 8.6% 3.5% 2.8% 4.0% 3.4%
Restructuring costs......... 16.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Acquisition costs.......... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 14.6% 0.0%
Total operating expenses........ 35.7% 254% 21.8% 23.0% 19.3% 1 42% 30.7%  19.8%
Income (loss) from operations........... -1.4% 19.0% 17.8% 17.3% 18.6% 2 3.6% 6.6% -0.8%
Interest expense 2.4% 2.3% 4.1% 3.5% 2.9% 3.7% 2.7% 2.3%
Other (income) and expense -73.3% 0.0% -1.1% -0.8% -1.4% - 04% -0.9% -52%

Income from continuing operations before

provision for income taxes............ 69.5% 16.7% 14.7% 14.7% 17.1% 2 0.3% 4.9% 2.1%
Provision for income taxes... ... 26.4% 6.3% 5.6% 5.6% 6.5% 7.7% 7.4% 0.8%
Income (loss) from continuing

operations..........ccceeeeeeenenen. 43.1% 10.3% 9.1% 9.1% 10.6% 1 26% -2.5% 1.3%
Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations, net

of tax benefits -1.9% -1.6%  -0.7% -0.3% -3.2% - 40% -55% -7.3%
Loss on disposal, net of tax
benefits......cccocovoiiiiene -3.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Extraordinary item, net of tax
benefits.......ccooceiviiiiiiinns 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -2.6% 0.0%
Net income (I0SS)......ccoeervenennen. 37.7% 8.8% 8.4% 8.9% 7.5% 8.7% -10.6%  -6.0%




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents increased $62.5 mibi&68.6 million at December 31, 2000 compared tad $@llion at December 31, 1999. T
increase primarily resulted from $84.9 million pidad by financing activities, offset by $26.1 noli used in investing activities.

Net cash provided by operating activities of $3illiom for the year ended December 31, 2000 waspresad primarily of net incom
adjusted for non-cash items of $13.7 million, agdb¥.2 million used in working capital and othetiaties. Net cash used in working capital
and other activities resulted primarily from incsea in accounts receivable and inventory, offséhbreases in accrued liabilities, deferred
income taxes and prepaid expenses.

Net cash used in investing activities of $26. 1 imnllprimarily reflects purchases of property andipment to increase crystal growth &
wafer processing capacity at the substrate diviaimhto increase HBLED and VCSEL epitaxy growth asadler processing capacity at the
visible emitter division. We also invested $1.6lioil in a joint venture in China to provide certamaterials.

We are currently constructing an additional 32,8Q0are foot building in Beijing, China to expantbsuate wafer processing capacity and a
27,000 square foot building in EI Monte, Califortéaexpand HBLED and VCSEL production. We are alsostructing improvements to our
existing production facilities in Fremont, Califéarto increase crystal growth and wafer processagacity. We expect to invest
approximately $41.0 million in additional faciliSeand equipment over the next 12 months.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $8hBlion consisted of proceeds of $96.0 million frahe sale of common stock and $
million from new real estate loans, offset by paptseof $9.9 million to reduce our short-term bornogs, $3.3 million to retire old real estate
loans and principal and interest payments on lengrdebt and $3.9 million for capital lease payment

We currently have a $20.0 million line of credittkvee commercial bank bearing interest at 1.75% alhdBOR that was 6.4% at December
31, 2000. This line of credit is secured by albaf assets, other than equipment, and expires gn3¥a2002. At December 31, 2000, there
was no balance outstanding under the line of credit

We generally finance equipment purchases throughred equipment loans and capital leases overyfaag-terms at interest rates ranging
from 6.0% to 9.0% per annum. Some of our manufawuacilities have been financed by long-term bwings, which were refinanced by
taxable variable rate revenue bonds in 1998. Therds mature in 2023 and bear interest at 2.0%wbikle prime rate. The bonds are traded
in the public market. Repayment of principal an@iast under the bonds is supported by a letteraafit from our bank and is paid on a
quarterly basis. We have the option to redeem ¢imel® in whole or in part during their term. At Dexdger 31, 2000, $10.6 million was
outstanding under these bonds.

We anticipate that the combination of existing vgkcapital and the borrowings available underaurent credit agreements will be
sufficient to fund working capital and capital erpéure requirements for the next 12 months. Howewer future capital requirements will
be dependent on many factors including the ratexe#nue growth, our profitability, the timing anxtent of spending to support research and
development programs, the expansion of our maruriagt facilities, the expansion of our selling andrketing and administrative activities
and market acceptance of our products. We may teeeltain additional equity and debt financinghe future, which may not be available
on acceptable terms or at all.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@@ssued Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsldlo. 133, or SFAS 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgigtivities." SFAS 133 established accounting amubréng standards for derivative
instruments including certain derivative instrunse@mbedded in other contracts and for hedgingiietvin June 2000, SFAS 133 was
amended by SFAS 138. We will implement SFAS 133rbegg in 2001. We do not expect that adoptingghavisions of SFAS 133 will
have a material effect on our financial positiorresults of operations.
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We have adopted the provisions of Staff AccounBuogletin No. 101, or SAB 101, "Revenue Recognitiomhich did not and does not have a
material effect on the financial position or reswf operations of the Company.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

UNPREDICTABLE FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD DISAPPOINT ANALYSTS OR OUR
INVESTORS, WHICH COULD CAUSE OUR STOCK PRICE TO DEC LINE.

We may not be able to sustain our historical gromath, and we may experience significant fluctusiim our revenue and earnings in the
future. Our quarterly and annual revenue and opeyatsults have varied significantly in the past anay vary significantly in the future due
to a number of factors, including:

- fluctuations in demand for our products;

- expansion of our manufacturing capacity;

- expansion of our operations in China;

- limited availability and increased cost of rawtarals;

- integration of Lyte Optronics and its businegsemations and facilities with our operations;
- the volume and timing of orders from our custosner

- fluctuation of our manufacturing yields;

- decreases in the prices of our competitors' prtsgiu

- costs incurred in connection with any future asijions of businesses or technologies;

- increases in our expenses, including expenseg$earch and development; and

- our ability to develop, manufacture and delivighhquality products in a timely and cost-effectmanner.

Due to these factors, we believe that period-taepezomparisons of our operating results may na beeaningful indicator of our future
performance. It is possible that in some futurergpraour operating results may be below the extirts of securities analysts or investor.
this occurs, the price of our common stock woukelif decline.

IF WE FAIL TO EXPAND OUR MANUFACTURING CAPACITY, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MEET DEMAND FOR OUR
PRODUCTS, LOWER OUR COSTS OR INCREASE REVENUE.

In order to increase production, we must build fi@eilities, expand our existing facilities and pluase additional manufacturing equipment.
If we do not expand our manufacturing capacity wilebe unable to increase production, adverselgaating our ability to reduce unit costs,
margins and improve our operating results.

We are currently constructing additional capacity &cilities in California and China. Our expamsactivities subject us to a number of
risks, including:

- unforeseen environmental or engineering problems;

- unavailability or late delivery of production égment;

- delays in completing new facilities;

- delays in bringing production equipment on-line;

- work stoppages or delays;

- unanticipated cost increases; and

- restrictions imposed by requirements of locaiesor federal regulatory agencies.

If any of these risks occurs, construction may dtlier than anticipated and completion could bleydsd, which could hurt our ability to
expand capacity and increase our sales. In addifiare experience delays in expanding our manufang capacity, we might not be able



timely meet customer requirements,
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and we could lose future sales. We are also madbgtantial investments in equipment and faciligiepart of our capacity expansion. To
offset the additional fixed operating expensesywst increase our revenue by increasing produetimhimproving yields. If demand for our
products does not grow or if our yields do not ioyw as anticipated, we may be unable to offseethests against increased revenue, which
would adversely impact our operating results.

WE HAVE LIMITED EXPERIENCE WITH SOME OF OUR NEW PRO DUCTS, AND WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO ACHIEVE
ANTICIPATED SALES OF THESE PRODUCTS.

To date, we have limited experience producing atithg our HBLED and VCSEL products, and we mayubable to successfully market
and sell these products. To market and sell our ElBland VCSEL products, we will have to develop &ddal distribution channels. In
addition, we must apply our proprietary VGF teclugdo new substrate products and successfullydat® and market new opto-electronic
semiconductor devices, including LED and VCSEL jpiaid.

IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY DEVELOP NEW PRODUCTS T&E&POND TO RAPIDLY CHANGING CUSTOMER
REQUIREMENTS, OUR ABILITY TO GENERATE SALES AND OBAIN NEW CUSTOMERS MAY SUFFER.

Our success depends on our ability to offer newdpets that incorporate leading technology and nedyto technological advances. In
addition, our new products must meet customer naedsompete effectively on quality, price and perfance. The life cycles of our
products are difficult to predict because the misrkar our products are characterized by rapidneldgical change, changing customer ne
and evolving industry standards. If our competifateoduce products employing new technologies,esting products could become
obsolete and unmarketable. If we fail to offer n@wducts, we may not generate sufficient revenusftet our development costs and other
expenses or meet our customers' requirements. @thgpanies, including IBM, are actively developsupstrate materials that could be used
to manufacture devices that could provide the saigie-performance, low-power capabilities as GaAsebdevices at competitive prices. If
these substrate materials are successfully dewelmpe semiconductor device manufacturers adopt,tdemand for our GaAs substrates
could decline and our revenue could suffer.

The development of new products can be a highlyptexprocess, and we may experience delays in dewel and introducing new
products. Any significant delays could cause uaiido timely introduce and gain market acceptaoteew products. Further, the costs
involved in researching, developing and engineenieny products could be greater than anticipated.

OUR OPERATING RESULTS DEPEND IN LARGE PART ON FURER CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE OF OUR EXISTING
SUBSTRATE PRODUCTS AND ON OUR ABILITY TO DEVELOP NE PRODUCTS BASED ON OUR CORE VGF TECHNOLOGY.

A majority of GaAs substrates are manufactured foopstals grown using the traditional Liquid Encalpsed Czochralski, or LEC, or
Horizontal-Bridgeman, or HB, techniques. In ordeekpand sales of our products, we must contingedmote our VGF technique as a
preferred process for producing substrates, anchust offer products with superior prices and perf@ance on a timely basis and in sufficient
volumes. If we fail to gain increased market acaspé of our VGF technique, we may not achieve igpatied revenue growth.

INTENSE COMPETITION IN THE MARKETS FOR OUR PRODUCTS COULD PREVENT US FROM INCREASING REVENUE
AND SUSTAINING PROFITABILITY.

The markets for our products are intensely competitVe face competition for our substrate prodficisn other manufacturers of substrates,
such as Freiberger, Hitachi Cable, Japan EnergtarLAirtron and Sumitomo Electric and from semidoator device manufacturers that
produce substrates for their own use, and from emi@s, such as IBM, that are actively developitgraative materials to GaAs. We believe
that at least one of our competitors has recemttjuh shipping GaAs substrates manufactured usieaghaique similar to our VGF technique.
Other competitors may develop and begin using aimbéichnology. If we are unable to compete effetyivour revenue may not increase and
we may not continue to be profitable. We
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face many competitors that have a number of sicariti advantages over us, particularly in our compaemiconductor device products,
including:

- greater experience in the business;

- more manufacturing experience;

- broader name recognition; and

- significantly greater financial, technical andriketing resources.

Our competitors could develop new or enhanced prtsdhat are more effective than the productswieahave developed or may develop.
example, some competitors in the HBLED market ofevices that are brighter than our HBLEDs. Someunfcompetitors may also develop
technologies that enable the production of commaépbducts with characteristics similar to or bethan ours, but at a lower cost.

We expect the intensity of competition to incremsthe future. Competitive pressures could redugenaarket share, require us to reduce the
prices of our products, affect our ability to reeoeosts or result in reduced gross margins.

IF WE HAVE LOW PRODUCT YIELDS, THE SHIPMENT OF OUR PRODUCTS MAY BE DELAYED AND OUR OPERATING
RESULTS MAY BE ADVERSELY IMPACTED.

Our products are manufactured using complex tedyies, and the number of usable substrates andetewie can produce can fluctuate as a
result of many factors, including:

- impurities in the materials used,;

- contamination of the manufacturing environment;

- substrate breakage;

- equipment failure, power outages or variationhenmanufacturing process; and
- performance of personnel involved in the manufiacy process.

Because many of our manufacturing costs are fi@edrevenue could decline if our yields decrease.Nave experienced product shipment
delays and difficulties in achieving acceptablddseon both new and older products, and delayspand yields have adversely affected our
operating results. We may experience similar proslén the future and we cannot predict when they at&ur or their severity. In addition,
many of our manufacturing processes are new anstifireeing refined, which can result in lower igg, particularly as we focus on
producing higher diameter substrates and new dpttrenic semiconductor devices. For example, wentdy began manufacturing six-inch
GaAs wafers and have also made substantial investnmeequipment and facilities to manufacture pggreen and cyan HBLEDs. If we are
unable to produce adequate quantities of our higghtness LEDs and VCSELs, we may not be able tetmaestomer demand and our
revenue may decrease.

DEMAND FOR OUR PRODUCTS MAY DECREASE IF OUR CUSTOME RS EXPERIENCE DIFFICULTY MANUFACTURING,
MARKETING OR SELLING THEIR PRODUCTS.

Our products are used as components in our cussopreducts. Accordingly, demand for our produstsubject to factors affecting the
ability of our customers to successfully introdacel market their products, including:

- the competition our customers face in their patér industries;

- the technical, manufacturing, sales and marketimdymanagement capabilities of our customers;

- the financial and other resources of our custerresrd

- the inability of our customers to sell their pootk if they infringe third party intellectual preyy rights.
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If demand for the products offered by our custontlersreases, our customers may reduce purchasas pfaglucts.

WE PURCHASE CRITICAL RAW MATERIALS FROM SINGLE OR L IMITED SOURCES, AND COULD LOSE SALES IF
THESE SOURCES FAIL TO FILL OUR NEEDS.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers foratentaw materials, components and equipment usethmufacturing our products,
including key materials such as gallium, arsenit qmartz. We generally purchase these materiadsigftr standard purchase orders and not
pursuant to long-term supply contracts and noreuofuppliers guarantees supply of raw materialsstdf we lose any of our key suppliers,
our manufacturing efforts could be significantlynfi@zered and we could be prevented from timely produand delivering products to our
customers. We have experienced delays obtainitigatifaw materials, including gallium, due to dlagies of these materials. We may
experience delays due to shortages of materialsretydbe unable to obtain an adequate supply ofrialteThese shortages and delays could
result in higher materials costs and cause uslayae reduce production of our products. If we é&v delay or reduce production, we could
fail to meet customer delivery schedules, and euemue and operating results could suffer.

IF WE FAIL TO COMPLY WITH ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS , WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO SIGNIFICANT FINES OR
CESSATION OF OUR OPERATIONS.

We are subject to federal, state and local enviertal laws and regulations. These laws, rules agdlations govern the use, storage,
discharge and disposal of hazardous chemicalsglaranufacturing, research and development and dalaenstrations. If we fail to comply
with applicable regulations, we could be subjedubstantial liability for clean-up efforts, persbmjury and fines or suspension or cessation
of our operations. We are cooperating with thef@alia Occupational Safety and Health Administratior Cal-OSHA, in an investigation
primarily regarding impermissible levels of potatiii hazardous materials in certain areas of ounufacturing facility in Fremont,

California. In May 2000, Cal-OSHA levied a fine aust us in the amount of $313,655 for alleged Iheaitd safety violations. We are
appealing the citations, and have put in placerezgging, administrative and personnel protectivémgent programs to address these issues
but we may have to pay this fine. Our ability tgpard or continue to operate our present location&lde restricted or we could be required
to acquire costly remediation equipment or inctieotsignificant expenses. In addition, existingubure changes in laws or regulations may
require us to incur significant expenditures obilities, or may restrict our operations.

THE LOSS OF ONE OR MORE OF OUR KEY SUBSTRATE CUSTOMERS WOULD SIGNIFICANTLY HURT OUR
OPERATING RESULTS.

A small number of substrate customers have histilyiaccounted for a substantial portion of ouatoevenue. Our five largest customers
accounted for 26.1% of our total revenue from aaritig operations in 2000, 24.8% in 1999 and 34.8%0198. No customer accounted for
more than 10.0% of our total revenue in 2000, 1899 1998. Our substrate revenue accounted for 98f3r total revenue from continuing
operations in 2000, 75.3% in 1999 and 88.0% in 1998 expect that a significant portion of our f@&wevenue will continue to be derived
from a limited number of substrate customers. Qustamers are not obligated to purchase a spedgjfiadtity of our products or to provide
with binding forecasts of product purchases. Inittmtl our customers may reduce, delay or canadsrat any time without any significant
penalty. If we lose a major customer or if a cugorancels, reduces or delays orders, our reveputdwlecline. In addition, customers that
have accounted for significant revenue in the pest not continue to generate revenue for us infatye period.

DEFECTS IN OUR PRODUCTS COULD DIMINISH DEMAND FOR O UR PRODUCTS.

Our products are complex and may contain defectthd past we have experienced quality controllprob with some of our LED and
consumer products, which caused customers to rptoducts to us. If we continue to experience dyalbntrol problems, or experience th
problems in our other products, customers may d¢amaeduce orders or purchase products from ompegitors. Defects in our products
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could cause us to incur higher manufacturing castssuffer product returns and additional servigeeases, all of which could adversely
impact our operating results.

We are also developing new products and produaredments, including substrates and compound sechictor device products. If our
new products contain defects when released, otormegss may be dissatisfied and we may suffer negatiiblicity or customer claims
against us, lose sales or experience delays inghadceptance of our new products.

CYCLICALITY IN THE SEMICONDUCTOR INDUSTRY COULD CAU SE OUR OPERATING RESULTS TO FLUCTUATE
SIGNIFICANTLY.

Our business depends in significant part upon naatufers of semiconductor devices, as well asutheiot and anticipated market demand
for such devices and the products using such devidee semiconductor industry is highly cyclicaheTindustry has in the past, and will
likely in the future, experience periods of ovenglyghat result in significantly reduced demandg$emiconductor devices and components,
including our products. When these periods ocauroperating results and financial condition areeaisely affected.

OUR SUBSTRATE AND OPTO-ELECTRONIC SEMICONDUCTOR DESME PRODUCTS HAVE A LONG SALES CYCLE THAT
MAKES IT DIFFICULT TO PLAN OUR EXPENSES AND FORECASOUR RESULTS.

Customers typically place orders with us for oursdtate and opto-electronic semiconductor devioeyets three months to a year or more
after our initial contact with them. The sale of puoducts may be subject to delays due to ouoausts' lengthy internal budgeting, approval
and evaluation processes. During this time, we meyr substantial expenses and expend sales, rirayleetd management efforts while the
customers evaluate our products. These expendituagaot result in sales of our products. If wendbachieve anticipated sales in a period
as expected, we may experience an unplanned dhortfarr revenue. As a result, we may not be ableover expenses, causing our
operating results to vary. In addition, if a cusesrdecides not to incorporate our products intaitsal design, we may not have another
opportunity to sell products to this customer fany months or even years. We anticipate that sdlesy future substrate and opgtectronic
semiconductor device products under developmeh&igib have lengthy sales cycles and will, themefbe subject to risks substantially
similar to those inherent in the lengthy sales eyflour current substrate and opto-electronic senauctor device products.

IF WE FAIL TO MANAGE OUR POTENTIAL GROWTH, OUR OPER ATIONS MAY BE DISRUPTED.

We have experienced a period of rapid growth am@esion that has strained our management and i@b@urces, and we expect this rapid
growth to continue. Our acquisition of Lyte Optresiitogether with expansion of our manufacturinggcity, has placed and continues to
place a significant strain on our operations andagament resources. If we fail to manage our gr@ffectively, our operations may be
disrupted. To manage our growth effectively, we mimplement additional and improved managementrimédion systems, further develop
our operating, administrative, financial and acdmghsystems and controls, add experienced sesvet managers, and maintain close
coordination among our executive, engineering, acttog, marketing, sales and operations organiaatio

We will spend substantial sums to support our ghoavtd may incur additional unexpected costs. Ostiesys, procedures or controls may not
be adequate to support our operations, and we mayable to expand quickly enough to exploit paéémarket opportunities. Our future
operating results will also depend on expandingssahd marketing, research and development andhetirative support. If we cannot attri
qualified people or manage growth effectively, business and operating results could be adverffelsted.
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ANY FUTURE ACQUISITIONS MAY DISRUPT OUR BUSINESS, DILUTE STOCKHOLDER VALUE OR DISTRACT
MANAGEMENT ATTENTION.

As part of our strategy, we may consider acquisgtiof, or significant investments in, businesses t¢ffer products, services and technologies
complementary to ours, such as our acquisitionyté IOptronics in May 1999. Acquisitions entail nuoes risks, including:

- we may have difficulty assimilating the operaspproducts and personnel of the acquired busiapsse

- our ongoing business may be disrupted,;

- we may incur unanticipated costs;

- our management may be unable to manage the falara strategic position of acquired or developestlucts, services and technologies;
- we may be unable to maintain uniform standardstrols and procedures and policies; and

- our relationships with employees and customeng loeaimpaired as a result of any integration.

For example, we incurred substantial costs in cotime with our acquisition of Lyte Optronics, indimg the assumption of approximately

$10.0 million of debt, much of which has been rdpairenegotiated, resulting in a decline of casdilable. We incurred one-time charges
and merger-related expenses of $2.8 million anebaraordinary item of $508,000 relating to the pasttinguishment of debt in the quarter
ended June 30, 1999 as a result of the acquisition.

To the extent that we issue shares of our stockhmr rights to purchase stock in connection with fuiture acquisitions, dilution to our
existing stockholders will result and our earnipgs share may suffer. Any future acquisitions malgenerate additional revenue or provide
any benefit to our business.

IF ANY OF OUR FACILITIES IS DAMAGED, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MANUFACTURE OUR PRODUCTS.

The ongoing operation of our manufacturing and paotion facilities in California and China is crigilcto our ability to meet demand for our
products. If we are not able to use all or a sigaift portion of our facilities for prolonged pat®for any reason, we will not be able to
manufacture products for our customers. For exanaphatural disaster, fire or explosion causeduryuse of combustible chemicals and t
temperatures during our manufacturing processesdwender some or all of our facilities inoperafae an indefinite period of time. Actions
outside of our control, such as earthquakes, calgltl damage our facilities, rendering them inoplerahll of our crystal growth is currently
performed at our Fremont, California facilities,iafhare located very near to an active seismid fand. If we are unable to operate our
facilities and manufacture our products, we wildaustomers and revenue and our business withimedd.

IF WE LOSE KEY PERSONNEL OR ARE UNABLE TO HIRE ADDIONAL QUALIFIED PERSONNEL AS NECESSARY, WE MAY
NOT BE ABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR BUSINESS ORCHIEVE OUR OBJECTIVES

Our success depends upon the continued servicepfds. Young, Ph.D., our president, chairmarheftioard and chief executive officer
well as other key management and technical persoweedo not have long-term employment contractewor key person life insurance on,
any of our key personnel. In addition, we have arbently hired our chief financial officer, andedeto retain senior marketing personnel,
particularly for our new opto-electronic semicontduaevice products.

We believe our future success will also dependigd part upon our ability to attract and retaghhi skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing, finance and manufacturing persoriied.competition for these employees is intengeg@ally in Silicon Valley, and we
cannot assure you that we will be successful naetihg and retaining new personnel. The loss efs#irvices of any of our key personnel, the
inability to attract or retain qualified personimethe future or delays in hiring required persdnparticularly engineers, could make it

difficult for us to manage our business and megtdigectives, including the timely introductionméw products.
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IF WE ARE UNABLE TO PROTECT OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPER TY, WE MAY LOSE VALUABLE ASSETS OR INCUR
COSTLY LITIGATION.

We rely on a combination of patents, copyrigh@gdémark and trade secret laws, non-disclosure mgres and other intellectual property
protection methods to protect our proprietary tetbgy. However, we believe that, due to the ragidgpof technological innovation in the
markets for our products, our ability to estabbstd maintain a position of technology leadershgp alepends on the skills of our developr
personnel.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual peaty, a third party could develop products or psses similar to ours. Our means of
protecting our proprietary rights may not be adégaad our competitors may independently develoylai technology, duplicate our
products or design around our patents. We belieaedt least one of our competitors has begunippGhAs substrates produced using a
process similar to our VGF technique. Our competitnay also develop and patent improvements t&¥@ie, LED and VCSEL technologies
upon which we rely, and thus may limit any exclitgiwe enjoy by virtue of our patents.

It is possible that pending or future United Stateforeign patent applications made by us will betapproved, that our issued patents will
not protect our intellectual property, or that thirarties will challenge the ownership rights ar #alidity of our patents. In addition, the laws
of some foreign countries may not protect our pisgpry rights to as great an extent as do the tatise United States and it may be more
difficult to monitor the use of our intellectualgmerty. Our competitors may be able to legitima#edgertain non-patented proprietary
technology embedded in our systems. If this ocauesmay not be able to prevent the developmergalfriology substantially similar to ours.

We may have to resort to costly litigation to enfour intellectual property rights, to protect trade secrets or know-how or to determine
their scope, validity or enforceability. Enforcing defending our proprietary technology is expessoould cause us to divert resources and
may not prove successful. Our protective measusgsprove inadequate to protect our proprietarytsigand if we fail to enforce or protect
our rights, we could lose valuable assets.

WE MIGHT FACE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT CL  AIMS THAT MAY BE COSTLY TO RESOLVE AND
COULD DIVERT MANAGEMENT ATTENTION.

Other companies may hold or obtain patents on itiwes or may otherwise claim proprietary rightdgohnology necessary to our business.
The markets in which we compete are comprised wipsditors who in some cases hold substantial patemiffolios covering aspects of
products that could be similar to ours. We coulddmee subject to claims that we are infringing pateademark, copyright or other
proprietary rights of others. Litigation to detenaithe validity of alleged claims could be time-s@ming and result in significant expense to
us and divert the efforts of our technical and nganaent personnel, whether or not the litigationlisnately determined in our favor. If a
lawsuit is decided against us, we could be subgesignificant liabilities, requiring us to seekstly licenses or preventing us from
manufacturing and selling our products. We mayh®oable to obtain required licensing agreementgions acceptable to us or at all.

WE DERIVE A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF OUR REVENUE FROMITERNATIONAL SALES, AND OUR ABILITY TO SUSTAIN
AND INCREASE OUR INTERNATIONAL SALES INVOLVES SIGNFICANT RISKS.

Our revenue growth depends in part on the expandionr international sales and operations. Intiéonal sales represented 48.2% of our
total revenue from continuing operations for 2080.6% for 1999 and 38.5% for 1998. We expect thkssto customers outside the U.S.-
continue to represent a significant portion of mwenue.

Our dependence on international sales involveswbeu of risks, including:
- changes in tariffs, import restrictions and ottrade barriers;

- unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

- longer periods to collect accounts receivable;
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- changes in export license requirements;

- political and economic instability;

- unexpected changes in diplomatic and trade ogighiips; and
- foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

Our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, exagpdles to our Japanese and some Taiwanese custovh&h are denominated in Japanese
yen. Thus, increases in the value of the U.S. dotlald increase the price of our products in-U.S. markets and make our products more
expensive than competitors' products in these nmrkéso, denominating some sales in Japanesewseacss us to fluctuations in the
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and themdapaen. The functional currencies of our JapaaedeChinese subsidiaries are the local
currencies. We incur transaction gains or losssgltiag from consolidation of expenses incurretbal currencies for these subsidiaries, as
well as in translation of the assets and liabgiti these assets at each balance sheet datedtf net effectively manage the risks associated
with international sales, our revenue and finanoiaddition could be adversely affected.

IF OUR EXPANSION IN CHINA IS MORE COSTLY THAN WE EX PECT, OUR OPERATING RESULTS WILL SUFFER.

As part of our planned expansion of our manufaotudapacity, we are building new facilities andaxging existing facilities in China. If v
are unable to build and expand our Chinese faslith a timely manner, we may not be able to iregaoduction of our products and
increase revenue as planned. If our expansion inagiroves more costly than we anticipate or weriggeater ongoing costs than we exp
our operating results would be adversely affedfeste do not realize expected cost savings onceegpansion is complete in China, our
margins may be negatively impacted and our opeya&sults may suffer.

CHANGES IN CHINA'S POLITICAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC E NVIRONMENT MAY AFFECT OUR FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE.

Our financial performance may be affected by change&hina's political, social and economic envinemt. The role of the Chinese central
and local governments in the Chinese economy gfgignt. Chinese policies toward economic liberafion, and laws and policies affecting
technology companies, foreign investment, curresahange rates and other matters could changdtingsn greater restrictions on our
ability to do business and operate our manufagjuiagilities in China. Any imposition of surchargasany increase in Chinese tax rates
could hurt our operating results. The Chinese guwent could revoke, terminate or suspend our lie€misnational security and similar
reasons without compensation to us. If the govermmoEChina were to take any of these actions, waldvbe prevented from conducting all
or part of our business. Any failure on our partéonply with governmental regulations could regulthe loss of our ability to manufacture
our products in China.

China has from time to time experienced instanée$vd unrest and hostilities. Confrontations haxacurred between the military and
civilians. Events of this nature could influence tbhinese economy, result in nationalization oéifgm-owned operations such as ours, and
could negatively affect our ability to operate faxilities in China.

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN AND MAY CONTINUE TO BE VOL ATILE.

Our stock price has fluctuated significantly simeebegan trading on the Nasdaq National Markettf@d2 months ended December 31,
2000, the high and low closing sales prices ofammmon stock were $46.00 and $14.50. A numberatbfa could cause the price of our
common stock to continue to fluctuate substantiatigluding:

- actual or anticipated fluctuations in our qudyter annual operating results;
- changes in expectations about our future findmpeaegormance or changes in financial estimatesecfirities analysts;
- announcements of technological innovations bgrusur competitors;
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- new product introduction by us or our competitors
- large customer orders or order cancellations; and
- the operating and stock price performance of araiple companies.

In addition, the stock market in general has exgpeed extreme volatility that often has been ubedlto the operating performance of
particular companies. These broad market and indflattuations may adversely affect the trading@of our common stock, regardless of
our actual operating performance.

WE MAY NEED ADDITIONAL CAPITAL TO FUND EXPANSION OF OUR MANUFACTURING CAPACITY AND OUR
FUTURE OPERATIONS, WHICH MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE.

We may need additional capital to fund expansioaufmanufacturing and production capacity andfoture operations or acquisitions. If
we raise additional capital through the sale ofityqur debt securities, the issuance of such sgeartould result in dilution to existing
stockholders. These securities could have righefepences and privileges that are senior to théselders of our common stock. For
example, in December 1998 we issued debt secuidtigbe purchase and improvement of our faciliteEremont, California.

If we require additional capital in the futuremight not be available on acceptable terms, ol df &e are unable to obtain additional capital
when needed, we may be required to reduce the siape planned expansion of our manufacturing cepar of our product development
and marketing efforts, which could adversely affaat business and operating results.

PROVISIONS IN OUR CHARTER, BYLAWS OR DELAWARE LAW M AY DELAY OR PREVENT A CHANGE IN CONTROL
OF OUR COMPANY.

Provisions in our amended and restated certifiohiecorporation and bylaws may have the effeal@lfying or preventing a merger,
acquisition or change of control of us, or changesur management. These provisions include:

- the division of our board of directors into thissparate classes, each with three year terms;

- the right of our board to elect a director tbdilspace created by a board vacancy or the exgaoéthe board;

- the ability of our board to alter our bylaws;

- the ability of our board to authorize the issu@pn€up to 2,000,000 shares of blank check predesteck; and

- the requirement that only our board or the haldsgrat least 10% of our outstanding shares mdycsecial meeting of our stockholders.

Furthermore, because we are incorporated in Delgwar are subject to the provisions of Section@Be Delaware General Corporation
Law. These provisions prohibit large stockholdargarticular those owning 15% or more of the ansing voting stock, from
consummating a merger or combination with a corfiamaunless:

- 66 2/3% of the shares of voting stock not owngdhiese large stockholders approve the mergerrmbawtion, or

- the board of directors approves the merger orbioation or the transaction which resulted in #rgé stockholder owning 15% or more of
our outstanding voting stock.

ITEM 7A. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Since our Japanese and some Taiwanese invoicdsm@oeninated in Japanese yen, doing business in 3apgects us to fluctuations in
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and thedapyen. We incurred a foreign transaction exahéogs of $552,000 in 2000, a gain of
$652,000 in 1999, and a loss of $24,000 in 1998 pWfehase foreign exchange contracts to hedge stgagrtain trade accounts receivable in
Japanese
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yen. The outstanding commitments with respect oh $areign exchange contracts had a total contralcie of approximately $500,000 as
December 31, 2000. Many of the contracts were edterto six months prior to the due date and thesdeoincide with the receivable terms

on customer invoices. By matching the receivabliection date and contract due date, we attemptémomically minimize the impact of
foreign exchange fluctuations.

The fair market value of lonterm fixed and variable interest rate debt is stthije interest rate risk. The effect of an immeelia®% change
interest rates would not have a material impaahanfuture operating results or cash flows.

Marketable securities are valued at fair marketi@a@t December 31, 2000. There is no assurance¢haill realize this value when we sell
these securities in the future.

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA
The Consolidated Financial Statements and Suppl@mebata required by this item are set forth atphages indicated at Item 14 (a).
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.
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PART 1lI

The SEC allows us to include information requinedhiis report by referring to other documents qorés we have already or will soon be
filing. This is called "Incorporation by Referent®e intend to file our definitive proxy statemgnirsuant to Regulation 14A not later than
120 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information thereinrisarporated in this report by reference.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to information set fortbum definitive 2001 proxy statement under
the section entitled "Election of Directors" andHart | of this report under the section entitledécutive Officers of the Registrant.”

The information required by this Item with respctompliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of4li83ncorporated herein by reference to informatiet forth in the definitive 2001 Proxy
Statement under the heading "Executive CompensatidrOther matters."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to information set fortbum definitive 2001 proxy statement under
the section entitled "Executive Compensation arfteOmatters."

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to information set fortbum definitive 2001 proxy statement under
the section entitled "Security Ownership of CerB@neficial Owners and Management."”
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PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:
(1) Financial Statements:

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAGE
Report of Independent Accountants -- Pricewaterhous eCoopers
LLP e 36
Report of Independent Public Accountants -- Arthur Andersen
LLP e 37
Consolidated Balance Sheets..........ccccccceeeeee. L 38
Consolidated Income Statements............cccco.... .. 39
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity..... ... 40
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows............... ... 41
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements......... ... 42 - 57

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because the refjnfermation is not present or not present in antesufficient to require submission of
the schedules or because the information requiréttiuded in the Consolidated Financial Statementsotes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits on page 59 hereof. The etdlisited in the accompanying Index to Exhibitsfilesl as part of, or incorporated by
reference into, this report on Form 10-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.
None
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of AXTnc.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reploother auditors, the accompanying consolidatddrua sheets and the related consolidated
statements of income, of stockholders' equity drmhsh flows present fairly, in all material resggethe financial position of AXT, Inc. and

its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000 and 1999thencksults of their operations and their casidlfor each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2000 in conformity with accawngirinciples generally accepted in the Unitede&tatf America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compangisagement; our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based
on our audits. The consolidated financial statesigivte retroactive effect to the merger of Lyte ©pics, Inc. on May 28, 1999 in a
transaction accounted for as a pooling of interestslescribed in Note 5 to the consolidated firustatements. We did not audit the balance
sheet, the results of operations and cash floviytaf Optronics, Inc. for the year ended Decemberl®98, which statements reflect total
assets of $25,435,000 as of December 31, 1998otald¢venues of $18,137,000 for the year endecdber 31, 1998. Those statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thehesnbeen furnished to us, and our opinion expddsseein, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for Lyte Optronics, Inc., is basektly on the report of the other auditors. Wedramed our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedeptthe United States of America, which requira tve plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatenf@ntaudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. We beligng our audits and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for the opieigmessed above.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 9, 2001
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors of Lyte Optronics, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheettef@ptronics, Inc. (a Nevada corporation) and ®lidnses as of December 31, 1998, and
the related consolidated statements of operatg&iaskholders' investment and cash flows for the geded December 31, 1998 (not prese
herein). These financial statements are the redpbtysof the Company's management. Our respoligibis to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audigtagdards generally accepted in the United Stétesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgadhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatiements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refere@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Lyte Optronics, Inc.
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 1998, ancethéts of their operations and their cash flowdlieryear ended December 31, 1998 in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Los Angeles, California
May 27, 1999
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AXT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
DECEMBER 31,
2000 1999
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......... — $68,585 $ 6,062
Marketable securities.......... . 30,852 -
Accounts receivable.........ccoccceevvceeeees L 27,773 17,561
INVENtONES. .. 51,846 35,470
Prepaid expenses and other current assets........ ... 3,603 8,945
Deferred income taxes......ccocccovvcvveeeneeeee L. - 3,210
Total current assets........cceeeeeeeee. L 182,659 71,248
Property, plant and equipment............cccceeeee.. . 63,401 40,865
Other assets w— 3,312 1,405
GooAWill..oeeiiiiiic e 848 2,244
Total assetS...cccoovvvvvvcvvvesceneee $250,220 $115,762
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS "EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term bank borrowing.......ccccccoceeeeee. L $ 1,353 $11,298
Accounts payable.........cccoceviiiinenne. Ll 10,009 8,294
Accrued liabilities..........ccoccvvevvvceeeeee. L 16,651 7,464
Deferred income taxes......ccccccvvcvvvveeneeeee L. 3,847 --
Current portion of long-term debt............. . .. 4,355 1,568
Current portion of capital lease obligation...... ... 6,057 2,162
Total current liabilities.............. .. .. 42,272 30,786
Long-term debt, net of current portion............... ... 15,123 15,254
Long-term capital lease, net of current portion.... ... 7,278 6,853
Other long-term liabilities.........cccooeeeeeeeee. L 200 410
Total liabilities........ccococvevee L 64,873 53,303
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value; 2,000 shares au thorized;

883 and 981 shares issued and outstanding..... ... 3,532 3,990
Common stock, $.001 par value; 40,000 shares auth orized;

21,952 and 18,659 shares issued and outstandin [o FE 145,748 46,340
Deferred compensation.........ccccceevvcveees L. (107) (217)
Retained earnings.....cccccccevveeeevevevieeeeeee 33,980 12,370
Other comprehensive income.........cccocvcvceeeee. L 2,194 (24)

Total stockholders' equity.......ccoc.... . .. 185,347 62,459
Total liabilities and stockholders' equit Yeeeronn $250,220 $115,762

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AXT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

REVENUE......eoiiiiieiieeeeeee e $121,503 $75,372 $49,074
Cost of revenue, including restructuring costs of $ 1,844 in
2000 73,684 50,026 29,003
Gross profite..ccccceeevccieiiiiee s 47,819 25,346 20,071
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative.............. ... 18,041 10,474 6,019
Research and development.........ccccocceeee. L 8,769 2,566 2,504
Restructuring costs . 6,409 - -
ACQUISItION COStS...ccoviiiieiiiiiiieeiee - 2,810 -

Total operating expenses..........cce.ee. . 33,219 15,850 8,523
Income from operations.........ccocceevvvveenennee L 14,600 9,496 11,548
Interest eXPenSe....ccccvveeveveeveeeeeeeieieeeeee 3,616 2,201 875
Other (income) and eXpense......ccccccveveveeeeees L (28,432) (1,423) (715)
Income from continuing operations before provision for

INCOME tAXES...vvie i 39,416 8,718 11,388
Provision for income taxes.......ccccccoevvvee. L. 14,978 4,380 4,668
Income from continuing operations........cccc...... . ... 24,438 4,338 6,720
Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ben efits of

$912, $2,241 and $1,692.......ccceeveveeee. (1,487) (3,658) (2,436)

Loss on disposal, net of tax benefits of $822.... ... (1,341) - -
Extraordinary item, net of tax benefits of $311.... ... - (508) -
NetinCOMe....cccvvvveiieiieeceee e $21,610 $ 172 $4,284
Basic income (loss) per share:

Income from continuing operations................ ... $ 124 $ 023 $ 042

Loss from discontinued operations.......ccccoc... .. (0.14) (0.19) (0.15)

Extraordinary item......ccocccovvveeennceeeee. - (0.03) -

NetinComMe.....coovviiiiiiiiiii e 1.10 0.01 0.27
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Income from continuing operations................ . ... $ 116 $ 022 $ 041

Loss from discontinued operations........ccc..... . ... (0.13) (0.18) (0.15)

Extraordinary item.......cccccovvveeennceeeee. - (0.03) -

NetinCome.....covcviiiiicceeeeeee 1.03 0.01 0.26
Shares used in per share calculations:

BaSIC..coiiiiiii et 19,677 18,655 16,076

Diluted. oo 21,059 19,771 16,325

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AXT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

PREFERRED STOCK

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
1997 10,129 $8,553
Common stock options
exercised...................
Issuance of common stock......
Issuance of common stock and
Series A preferred stock in
connection with the
acquisition of Alpha
Photonics, Inc.............. 981 4,000
Issuance of common stock as
settlement of trade
payables....................
Reacquisition and retirement
of common stock.............
Issuance of common stock in
connection with financing...
Conversion of Series C
convertible preferred stock

to common stock............. (10,129) (8,553)

Issuance of common stock upon
initial public offering.....
Deferred compensation.........
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income
Net income.................
Currency translation
adjustment................
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
1998 981 $ 4,000
Common stock options
exercised..........coueun.
Repurchase of shares of common
stock in connection with the
early extinguishment of

Acquisition costs paid by
shareholders................ (10)
Issuance of Employee Stock
Purchase Plan stock.........
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income
Net income..................
Currency translation
adjustment................
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
1999, . 981 $3,990
Common stock options
exercised..........coouen.
Issuance of Employee Stock
Purchase Plan stock.........
Reacquisition and retirement
of common stock and Series A
preferred stock in
connection with merger of
Lyte Optronics.............. (98) (458)
Issuance of common stock in
private placement...........
Issuance of common stock in
follow on public offering...
Income tax benefit from stock
option exercises............
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income..........
Net income..................
Unrealized gain on
marketable securities.....
Currency translation
adjustment................

(IN THOUSANDS)

COMMON STOCK
----------------- DEFERRED RETAINED COMP
SHARES AMOUNT COMPENSATION EARNINGS

3,800 $ 1,337 $(220) $7,914 $

71 138

123 724
1,267 7,500

4 25

(61)

185 994
10,129 8,553
2,875 25,792

203 (203)

96

18,393 $45,266 $(327) $12,198 $

201 648
(21) (212
(139)
86 776
110

172

18,659 $46,340 $(217) $12,370 $

711 6,038
63 648
(225) 458
234 8,507
2,510 80,812
2,945
110

21,610

OTHER

REHENSIVE
| NCOME TOTAL

(197)

2,185

$17,387

138
724

11,500

25

994

(211)
(149)

776

8,507
80,812
2,945
110
21,610
2,185



BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
2000......ccciiiiirnn, 883 $3,532

COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

1997 $ 727
Common stock options
exercised...................
Issuance of common stock......
Issuance of common stock and
Series A preferred stock in
connection with the
acquisition of Alpha
Photonics, Inc..............
Issuance of common stock as
settlement of trade
payables....
Reacquisition and retirement
of common stock.............
Issuance of common stock in
connection with financing...
Conversion of Series C
convertible preferred stock
to common stock.............
Issuance of common stock upon
initial public offering.....
Deferred compensation.........
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income

Net income.................. 4,284
Currency translation
adjustment................ 224
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
1998 $ 4,508
Common stock options
exercised.........cccue..

Repurchase of shares of common
stock in connection with the
early extinguishment of

Acquisition costs paid by
shareholders................
Issuance of Employee Stock
Purchase Plan stock.........
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income

Net income.................. 172
Currency translation
adjustment................ (51)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
1999, $ 121
Common stock options
exercised..........coue..

Issuance of Employee Stock
Purchase Plan stock.........
Reacquisition and retirement

of common stock and Series A
preferred stock in
connection with merger of
Lyte Optronics..............
Issuance of common stock in
private placement...........
Issuance of common stock in
follow on public offering...
Income tax benefit from stock
option exercises............
Amortization of deferred
compensation................
Comprehensive income..........

Net income.................. 21,610
Unrealized gain on
marketable securities..... 2,185
Currency translation
adjustment................ 33

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
2000......ccciiiiirnn, $23,828

21,952 $145,748

$(107)

$33,980

$

2,194

$185,347



The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AXT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net inCome.........ccooevvviiviiiiiiieeeeee.

......... $21,610 $ 172 $ 4,284

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provi ded by
(used in) operations:
Depreciation........ccoceeeevcveeenvcccees 6,854 5,444 2,959
Deferred income taxes......ccccccevvveeeeeee 5,718 (758) (1,126)
Amortization of goodwill............ccccoceee. L. 548 599 149
Stock compensation..........cooeevcccceeeee 110 110 96
Stock option tax benefits..... — 2,945
Non cash restructuring costs......cccccceeeee.. 6,249 - -
Non cash gain on marketable securities........ . ... (27,328) -- --
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment. ... (183) -- --
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable.........coccceeeeeeee.. L (10,212) (4,433) (4,192)
INVENONIES. . (18,220) (10,170) (11,074)
Prepaid expenses.......ccccoovvvvcvcceeee L 5282 (5,674) (1,610)
Other assetS......ocooveevvieeeeniicees (369) 522 (243)
Accounts payable.........ccccocevivceeeee. Ll 1,715 444 1,540
Accrued liabilities.........ccccoveeeeeee 9,187 2,222 533
Other long-term liabilities.................. ... (210) (194) 110
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
aCtiVItI®S..oovvvveveecveeveeeee 3,696 (11,716) (8,574)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment....... ... (26,278) (2,758) (14,899)
Investment in China joint venture............... . ... (1,599) - -
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipmen | PR 1,805 -- --
Net cash used in investing activities.... ... (26,072) (2,758) (14,899)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from (payments of):
Issuance of common stocK........cooceeeveeeeee 96,005 1,064 27,648
Capital lease payments........c.ccoceeeeeeeeee. L. (3,850) (1,958) (263)
Short-term bank borrowings......ccccccccco.... . L. (9,945) 9,370 (2,320)
Long-term debt borrowings.... — 6,000 -- 17,002
Long-term debt payments.........ccccoeeeeeeee. (3,344) (4,327) (5,574)
Net cash provided by financing activites ... 84,866 4,149 36,493
Effect of exchange rate changes..........cccceeeee. . L 33 (51) 219
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents.......... . ... 62,523 (10,376) 13,239
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the p eriod.... 6,062 16,438 3,199
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period. =~ ... $68,585 $ 6,062 $16,438
NON CASH ACTIVITY:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment throug h capital
[€ASES...iiiiiieiii e $ 8,170 $ 5927 $ 1,737
Exchange of Finisar shares for Demeter shares.... ... $27328 $ - $ -

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

......... $ 3597 $ 2,288 $ 1,481
......... $ 4645 $ 6,268 $ 4,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. THE COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLIC IES
The Company

AXT, Inc. designs, develops, manufactures, andidiges high-performance compound semiconductostsates, as well as opto-electronic
semiconductor devices, such as high-brightness-&gtitting diodes, or HBLEDs, and vertical cavityface emitting lasers, or VCSELSs.

AXT expanded its markets in 1999 through the adtjoisof Lyte Optronics, Inc., (see Note 5). Lyt@i@nics operates as the visible emitter
division, which focuses on manufacturing HBLEDs M@SEL s and the consumer products division, whadu$es on designing and
marketing laser-pointing, laser-alignment and LEBdoicts. The consumer products division has besgodtinued (see Note 3).

The Company officially changed its name from Ameanital Technology, Inc. to AXT, Inc. on July 7,00
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmges and expenses during the reporting periodiahcesults could differ from these
estimates.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of the Company and its majority-owned glibges. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminatedsiments in business entities in which AXT doeshaaie control, but has the ability to
exercise significant influence over operating andricial policies (generally 20 - 50% ownership® accounted for by the equity method.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currencies of the Company's JapaardeChinese subsidiaries are the local currentrassaction gains and losses resulting
from transactions denominated in currencies ottn the U.S. dollar for the Company or in the lazatencies for the subsidiaries are
included in other income for the periods presented.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiariesramslated at the rates of exchange on the baktrexst date. Revenue and expense items are
translated at the average rate of exchange fguehied. Gains and losses from foreign currencysiedion are included in other
comprehensive income in stockholders' equity.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue upon the shipmetst pfoducts to the customer provided that the @amy has received a signed purct
order, the price is fixed, title has transferreallextion of resulting receivables is probable,durct returns are reasonably estimable, there are
no customer acceptance requirements and ther@agmaining significant obligations. The Compangvides for future returns based on
historical experience at the time revenue is retzegh

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The reported amounts of certain of the Companganfiial instruments including cash and cash eqeiis) accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximate falugalue to their
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

short maturities. The reported amounts of shortrieank borrowing, loans payable and capital lefdigations approximate fair value due to
the market interest rates which these debts bear.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentration of credit risk consigtnarily of trade accounts receivable. The
Company invests primarily in money market accoamts commercial paper instruments. Cash equivateetmaintained with high quality
institutions and their composition and maturities megularly monitored by management.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluationssatustomers' financial condition, and limits eraount of credit extended when deer
necessary, but generally does not require collatera

No customer represented greater than 10% of praduehues for the years ended December 31, 2009, 48d 199¢
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the tesmb®unts receivable balance as of December 31, 2800999
Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt instants purchased with an original maturity of thmeanths or less to be cash equivalents.
Marketable Securities

The Company classifies all of its marketable se¢i@srias available-for-sale securities as presciibb&ihancial Accounting Standard No. 115,
"Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgGecurities." Marketable securities consist @iy securities that are stated at market
value, with unrealized gains and losses refleaietipf tax, as other comprehensive income in sloddelrs' equity. Realized gains and losses
on marketable securities are included in earnimgisaaie derived using the specific identificationtimogl for determining cost of securities. All
securities are considered to be available-for-aatbare classified as current assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or maiRost is determined using the weighted averagemethod. Finished goods and work-in-
process inventories include material, labor andufeturing overhead costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation computed using thiglstrtne method over the estimated
economic lives of the assets, which vary from theeen years. Leasehold improvements are amortizedthe shorter of the estimated us
life or the term of the lease.

Goodwill
Goodwill, the excess of cost over the fair valumef assets acquired, is being amortized over Eyea
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting StashdNo. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Lebiyed Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of," the Company reviews-livegl assets
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

based upon a gross cash flow basis and will redenienpairment whenever events or changes in oistances indicate the carrying amount
of the assets may not be fully recoverable.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsagien arrangements using the intrinsic value otetis prescribed in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting foo&k Issued to Employees" and related Interpretatibareof. Accordingly, compensation
costs for stock options is measured as the exiesyy, of the market price of the Company's statthe date of grant over the stock option
exercise price. In addition, the Company compliéh ¥he disclosure provisions of Statement of FgiahAccounting Standard No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensed asihcu
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for deferred income taxegubmliability method, under which the expectetlife tax consequences of timing
differences between the book and tax basis of @iaset liabilities are recognized as deferred taetasand liabilities. Valuation allowances
established when necessary to reduce deferregsatsawhen management estimates, based on avaljbttive evidence, that it is more
likely than not that the benefit will not be re@izfor the deferred tax assets.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuiityeaf a company during a period from transactiand other events and circumstances
excluding transactions resulting from investmenblaners and distribution to owners. The differehetveen net income and comprehensive
income for the Company relates to foreign curremagslation adjustments and unrealized gains asgblbon marketable securities.
Comprehensive income for the years ended Decenlh@080, 1999 and 1998 is disclosed in the "Codat#d Statement of Stockholders'
Equity."

Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic income (loss) per share is computed by digidihe income (loss) available to holders of comstogk for the period by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstgmiliring the period. The calculation of diluteddnee (loss) per share excludes potential
common stock if the effect of such stock is antitiie. Potential common stock consists of commareshissuable upon the exercise of stock
options.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to tha paars consolidated financial statements to gomfo current period presentation.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement of FinbAcieounting Standard No. 133, or SFAS 133, "Acdmmfor Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities." SFAS 133 established aotimg and reporting standards for derivative instents including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts and fogihgdactivities. In June 2000, SFAS 133 was amemye8FAS 138. The Company will
implement SFAS 133 beginning in 2001. Adoptingphevisions of SFAS 133 is not expected to have geri# effect on the Company's
financial position or results of operations.
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

We have adopted the provisions of Staff AccounBuogletin No. 101, or SAB 101, "Revenue Recognitiomhich did not and does not have a
material effect on the financial position or resuf operations of the Company.

NOTE 2. GAIN ON DEMETER WARRANTS

The Company received approximately 1.1 million ssasf Finisar Corporation common stock as a reswiinisar Corporations acquisition

of Demeter Technologies. AXT held a warrant in D&néhat it received in exchange for certain leasebtransferred technology. A gain of
$27.3 million was recorded in other income as alted the transaction. The investment in the Rini§orporation shares is classified as a
marketable security (see Note 6). The Company reegive up to an additional 118,000 shares thatw@arently held in escrow. These shares
will be released from escrow on November 31, 20djfext to claims of indemnification.

NOTE 3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On December 14, 2000, the Company's Board of Qire@pproved management's plan to exit the Companyrofitable consumer products
business. The Company expects to complete thebgldne 30, 2001. Certain assets of the consurndupts division will be sold,
transferred to other divisions or discarded. At &gber 31, 2000, the Company had a remaining balefrfs&.1 million in accrued liabilities
for anticipated expenses of asset disposal anchtipgrosses through the estimated date of disposal

Certain information with respect to discontinue@i@tions is summarized below (in thousands):

JANUARY 1,
2000
THROUGH
DECEMBER 14, YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
2000 1999 1998
REVENUE. ..o $4,832 $6,149 $12,240
Costof revenUe.......ccocvvevvcceveeieieeeen L 4,311 7,343 9,946
Gross profite...ccccceevicciiiiiice s L 521 (1,194) 2,294
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative................ .. 2,899 3,543 5,519
Research and development.........ccccoccveeeee. L 160 520 180
Total operating expenses.........ccceeeeeeeeee L 3,059 4,063 5,699
Loss from operations..........cooevvvcvvveeeeeee L (2,538) (5,257) (3,405)
INterest eXPeNnSe....cccvvveeveeveieeeeeeeieeeeeeee 0 526 606
Other (income) expense......cccccvvvvveeeeieceees L. (139) 116 117
Loss before provision for income taxes............ . ... (2,399) (5,899) (4,128)
Income tax benefit.........ccccovvceee. L (912) (2,241) (1,692)
Loss from discontinued operations..........ccc...... L. $(1,487) $(3,658)  $(2,436)

The charge in 2000 for loss on disposal of the wores products business includes the following lfousands):

Carrying value of net assets in excess of anticipat ed

PrOCEEAS. ...uvviviieeiie e $1,060
Expenses of asset disposal and anticipated operatin g loss

for the period December 15, 2000 through the esti mated

date of disposal......ccccccvvceveeviices 1,103
Loss on disposal before taxes........cccccceeeeeee. 2,163
Income tax benefit.........ccccovvceeee. (822)
Loss on disposal......cccccvevvviiiieiicinaees $1,341
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
NOTE 4. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

On December 14, 2000, the Company's Board of Qire@pproved management's plan to exit its unptd8t650nm laser diode product line
within its visible emitter division. As a resultidng the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company rdedra pre-tax restructuring charge of $8.2
million. The restructuring charge includes $1.8liwil to write-off laser diode inventory, which hlasen classified as a component of cost of
goods sold. The restructuring charge also incl3e4 million to write-off net assets included iroperty, plant and equipment. These assets
consist of laser diode processing equipment thaldagot be utilized for HBLED or VCSEL processifithese assets have been taken out of
service and will be sold or discarded. The restniieg charge also includes $848,000 to write-dovporion of goodwill attributable to the
laser diode product line. The restructuring chage includes $2.1 million for incremental costd @anntractual obligations for such items as
leasehold termination payments and other facikiy @sts incurred as a direct result of this plan.

Certain information with respect to restructurirggis is summarized below (in thousands):

UTILIZED
---------------- BALANCE
RESERVE CASH NON-CASH DECEMBER 31, 2000
Inventory write-off...........cc.cccoeeueennnnne. $1,844 $-- $1,844 $ -
Property, plant and equipment write-off.......... 3,436 - 3,436 -
Goodwill write-off.........cocooeeeiiiineeen. 848  -- 848
Incremental restructuring costs................. 2,124 12 121 1,991

$8,252 $12  $6,249 $1,991

The fair value of assets determined to be impaiettcordance with the guidance for assets to lwkdrel used in SFAS No. 121,
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsd for Longkived Assets to be Disposed of," were the resufhahagement estimat
The above noted exit costs were determined in deome with EITF No. 94-3, "Liability Recognitionrf@ertain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity." THestructuring actions, as outlined by the plan,istended to be executed to completion by
July 31, 2001.

NOTE 5. ACQUISITION
Merger of the Company with Lyte Optronics, Inc.

On May 28, 1999, the Company completed a mergér lyite Optronics, Inc., or Lyte, a Nevada corpanatand all of its subsidiaries,
including Alpha Photonics, Inc., Lyte Optronics L{d United Kingdom company) and Advanced Semicotaiua Xiamen, China compan
Lyte and its subsidiaries manufacture and distelsgmiconductor laser diode chips, high-brighth&d3s and laser pointers.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, the Coyniganed approximately 2,023,000 shares of its comatock in exchange for all the
outstanding shares of Lyte's common stock as wdhea outstanding shares of Lyte's Series A prdestock. The Company also issued
approximately 883,000 shares of Series A prefestedk in exchange for all the outstanding shardsytd's Series B preferred stock. In
addition, the Company assumed and converted Lgptiens and warrants representing approximatelyQbshares of the Company's
common stock.

The merger has been accounted for as a poolingereists; accordingly, all prior period consolidafimancial statements have been restated
to include the combined results of operations,faia position and cash flows of Lyte.
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AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

The Company incurred costs of approximately $2 /aniassociated with the merger, which were chdrgeoperations during the quarter
ended June 30, 1999, the period in which the mevgsrconsummated.

Acquisition of Alpha Photonics, Inc. by Lyte Optronics, Inc.

On September 29, 1998, Lyte acquired Alpha Phosomic., or Alpha. The transaction was accounte@$oa purchase. Lyte issued its
common and preferred stock with a value of $11 lianiin exchange for all the outstanding sharesaydital stock of Alpha. Lyte recorded
goodwill of $3.0 million, representing the exce$she value of the shares issued by Lyte over #tebnok value of Alpha. The results of
operations of Alpha are included in the operatiohthe Company beginning on September 29, 1998.

NOTE 6. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities consist of Finisar Corporatommon stock. An unrealized gain of $2.2 millrat of tax was recorded in 2000. These
securities are valued at fair market value at Ddeer31, 2000. There is no assurance that the Compidlirealize this value when the
securities are sold in the future.
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AXT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

NOTE 7. BALANCE SHEET DETAIL

The components of selected balance sheet accaenssimmarized below (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,

Inventories:
Raw materials.........cccccveieeeeeiiiiiiiinns
WOrk-in-proCcess.........ccoevvvvenevvinneenenns
Finished goods.......cccccceeeveveviiiiiinnnnnns

.. $20,623 $ 13,503
26,795 16,151
4,428 5,816

$51,846 $ 35,470

Prepaid expenses:
Income tax receivable.............cc.ccccuu... ... $ 1,389 $ 4,013
Other......cooiiiiiiceee e e 2,214 4,932

Land.......cccoovvoiniii e $ 2,447 $ 2,447
BUilding.....ccoveiieiieiieeeeee ... 19,747 18,507
Machinery and equipment............ccccccceeneee ... 40,002 31,058
Leasehold improvements..............cccocuveeee. ... 4,079 2,704
Construction in progress........cccccveeeeeeenn. ... 14,694 1,008
80,969 55,724
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization.. ... (17,568) (14,859)

$63,401 $ 40,865

Accrued liabilities:
.. $ 3,186 $ 2,090

Customer prepayments 5,402 --
Accrued restructuring costs e 1,991 -
Accrued discontinued operation costs............. ... 1,103 -
Other.....oioiiieieeeeee e .. 4,969 5,374

$16,651 $ 7,464

NOTE 8. DEBT

Short-Term Bank Borrowing

The Company has a $20.0 million bank line of crédtit expires on May 31, 2002. The line of creslsécured by the Company's operating
assets, excluding equipment. Borrowings bear istexel.75% above LIBOR that was 6.4% at DecembgeP@00 or 0.5% above the bank's
variable prime rate that was 9.5% at December 820 2The line of credit is subject to certain fingh covenants regarding current financial
ratios and cash flow requirements that have alhlmeet as of December 31, 2000. The amounts ouisandder the line of credit were $0 at

December 31, 2000 and $11.3 million at Decembed 399.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had two notestamding with banks in China in the amount of $tilion. These notes mature in 2C
and bear interest at 4.9% and 5.5% and are sebyra&$400,000 certificate of deposit and a building land usage rights.
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Long-Term Debt

The components of long-term debt are summarizealhbéh thousands):

Various notes payable to banks, secured by certain
equipment, bearing interest at fixed rates betwee
and 9.01%, maturing between February 2001 and May

Debenture loan to Bay Area Employment Development C
guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administrat
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 7.27%, maturi
October 2016........cccceevvevveeiiiieeeeens

Taxable revenue bonds, secured by a letter of credi
bank, bearing interest at the H15 30 day bond yie
commercial paper that was 6.65% on December 31, 2
maturing December 2023..............ccccvnenne

Mortgage notes payable to a bank, secured by proper
bearing interest at 150 basis points above the pr
that was 9.5% on December 31, 2000, maturing May

Less current portion...........ccceeeeeeeeennae

Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 20@0denas follows:

2001..
2002..
2003..

DECEMBER 31,

n 7.69%

2003.... $2,035 $2,948
ompany,

ion,

......... 10,555 11,135

ty,

ime rate

2003..... 6,000 1,822
19,478 16,822

......... (4,355) (1,568)

$15,123 $15,254

Following the merger with Lyte Optronics in 1998¢tCompany prepaid Lyte Optronics debt. The pregaymesulted in an extraordinary

loss in the amount of $508,000, net of tax benefits
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NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES
The components of the provision for income taxessammarized below (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Current:
Federal... ... $7,738 $4,201 $5,297
State...... w948 690 611
FOreign......uevveveeeeeee i 155 247 51
Total current.........cceeevviiieennns 8,841 5,138 5,959
Deferred:
Federal........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiieeeee ... 5,489 (663) (1,097)
StALE. .o ... 648 (95) (194)
Total deferred...........oooevvvvennnns ... 6,137 (758) (1,291)
Total provision from continuing operation s
before discontinued operations......... ... $14,978 $4,380 $4,668

A reconciliation of the effective income tax ratesl the U.S. statutory federal income tax ratemsraarized below:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Statutory federal income tax rate.........ccoeee.. L 35.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits.... ... 33% 4.8% 2.6%
........ (1.4)% (3.00% (3.2)%
........ 0.0% 0.0% 0.8%
ACQUISItION COSES......vvveiiiiiiiei e 0.0% 11.0% 0.0%
........ 11% 3.4% 6.9%

........ 38.0% 50.2% 41.1%

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are summaiizgow (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999
Deferred tax assets:
Accruals and reserves not yet deductible........ .. $ 8,529 $ 3,659
State taXeS...oovvvvcreieeiiee e 288 98
Net operating 10SS......ccoovvvvvvviiiiieees 867 925
CredifS. .o 165 128

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized appreciation on Finisar marketable
SECUNMLIES. ...eveieeeiiiee e
Gain on receipt of Finisar marketable securites. ... (9,945) -
Depreciation...........cccoecevveviiieeennnnnn.
$(13,696) $(1,600)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities).... ... $(3,847) $3,210
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NOTE 10. NET INCOME PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominatdrthe basic and diluted net income per shareutations is as follows (in thousands,
except per share data):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Numerator:
NetinCOMEe....cceeviiiiiiiie e $21,610 $ 172 $4,284
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income per share -- wei ghted
average common shares........ccccecveeeeeeee . 19,677 18,655 16,076
Effect of dilutive securities:

Common stock optionS.......ccccceveeeeveeeeeeee 1,382 1,116 249
Denominator for dilutive net income per share...... ... $21,059 $19,771 $16,325
Basic income per share........coccoevvveveveeeeees $ 110 $ 001 $ 0.27
Diluted income per share........ccccocoveveeeeee Ll $ 103 $ 001 $0.26
Options excluded from diluted net income per share as the

impact is antidilutive.........cccocoveeeeee. L 118 415 7

NOTE 11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

In May 1998, the Company completed its initial palffering, or IPO, and issued 2,875,000 sharatssafommon stock at $10.00 per share,
including the shares from an over-allotment optibime Company received cash of approximately $25ll&mnet of underwriting discounts,
commissions and IPO expenses. Upon the closingeofRO, all outstanding shares of the Companyts ¢bavertible preferred stock were
automatically converted into shares of common stock

On May 28, 1999, the Company completed its acqaisitf Lyte Optronics, Inc. Under the terms of #egjuisition, the Company issued
approximately 2,023,000 shares of common stock8&3¢000 shares of non-voting and non-convertibédepred stock with a 5.0%
cumulative annual dividend rate payable when dedléry the board of directors of the Company angéi4share liquidation preference over
common stock, in exchange for all of the issued@urtdtanding shares of capital stock of Lyte.

On July 25, 2000 the Company completed a privatargées offering, raising approximately $8.5 nuoli in exchange for 234,115 shares of
common stock.

On September 19, 2000, the Company sold pursuamt tmderwritten public offering, 2,510,000 shayks common stock at a price of
$34.25 per share, including the shares from an-aNetment option. The Company received cash of@amately $80.8 million net of
underwriting discounts, commissions and expensafowing the public offering, proceeds were useddpay its line of credit and for gene
corporate purposes.

NOTE 12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Stock Option Plans

In 1993, the Company adopted the 1993 Stock Oftlan ("1993 Plan") which provides for granting mééntive and non-qualified stock
options to employees, consultants, and directoteefCompany. Under the 1993 Plan, 880,000 shdmesnamon stock have been reserved
for issuance as of December 31, 1998. Options gdammder the 1993 Plan are generally for periodi$anexceed ten years and are granted at
the fair market value of the stock at the daterahgyas determined by the board of directors. @gtgranted under
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the 1993 Plan generally vest 25.0% upon grant &2 each year thereafter, with full vesting ocitigrion the third anniversary of the grant
date.

In May 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Stocko®Rlan (1997 Plan") which provides for grantwfgncentive and nomualified stocl
options to employees, consultants and directotse@Company. Under the 1997 Plan, 5,901,501 slviresmmon stock have been reserved
for issuance as of December 31, 2000. Options gdammder the 1997 Plan are generally for periodsanexceed ten years (five years if the
option is granted to a 10.0% stockholder) and aaatgd at the fair market value of the stock atdhie of grant as determined by the board of

directors. Options granted under the 1997 Planrgéipevest 25.0% at the end of one year and 2.1k ezonth thereafter, with full vesting
after four years.

Information about stock option activities is suminad below:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
OPTION S EXERCISE EXERCISE
AVAILAB LE NUMBEROF PRICE PER PRICE PER
FOR GRA NT  SHARES SHARE SHARE
Balance at December 31, 1997.............. 467, 819 1,346,152 $4.77
Additional shares authorized............ 1,500, 000 -- --
Granted...........ooooeeevviviieenes 599) 320,599 $5.00-11.87 7.46
Exercised.................. - (71,407) 1.20- 5.00 1.94
Cancelled...........ccoocviiviiiinnnnns 268  (64,268) 5.00- 7.50 5.39
Balance at December 31, 1998.............. 1,711, 488 1,531,076 5.44
Additional shares authorized............ 1,000, 000 -- --
Granted....... 350) 1,504,350 9.12-24.96 18.21
Exercised.................. - (200,679) 1.20- 8.25 4.64
Cancelled............ccooevvivivinnnnns 645 (154,645) 1.90-22.69 13.82
Balance at December 31, 1999.............. 1,361, 783 2,680,102 12.18
Additional shares authorized............ 2,101, 501 -- --
Granted...........ooeeeevviviiienens (1,182, 550) 1,182,550 15.06 -47.00 30.21
Exercised...........oovveiniiininnnnns - (711,259) 0.20-22.69 8.49
Cancelled...........cooooiviiiiinennns 681, 218 (681,218) $1.90-47.00 17.29
Balance at December 31, 2000.............. 2,961, 952 2,470,175 $20.46
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Information about stock options outstanding at Deoer 31, 2000 is summarized below:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTI ONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE WEIGHTED
REMAINING AVERAGE
RANGE OF NUMBER  CONTRACTUAL NUM BER EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICES OUTSTANDING  LIFE OUTST ANDING PRICE
$5.00 - 5.00 353,944 6.63 259 162 $5.00
550 - 9.12 393,771 7.40 129 ,619 6.92
10.04 -15.69 259,417 8.87 15 292 1411
15.87 -21.19 277,293 8.60 82 186  19.92
21.25 -24.00 329,300 8.93 2 182 22.69

24.50 -29.56 105,500 9.28
29.56 -31.63 277,100 9.61
31.88 -36.50 269,300 9.67

36.623 -44.25 204,050 9.65 125  39.13
$44.38 -44.38 500 9.13 -- --
2,470,175 8.55 488 ,566  $8.39

Stock-Based Compensation Under APB No. 25

In connection with certain stock option grants @mmpany recorded deferred compensation costsrigt&203,000 for the year ended
December 31, 1998 and $322,000 for the year endedérbber 31, 1997. Compensation cost is the diféerbetween the exercise price and
the deemed fair value at the date of grant. Congi@mscost is being amortized over the vestingqeerelating to these options, of which
approximately $110,000 was amortized for the yeded December 31, 2000, $110,000 for 1999 and $06d 1998.

Certain Pro Forma Disclosures

Pro forma information regarding net income andimedme per share is required by SFAS No. 123, whish requires that information be
determined as if the Company had accounted faniigloyee stock options granted under the fair valathod. The fair value for these
options was estimated using the Black-Scholes ogiecing model.

The Company calculated the fair value of each opgi@ant on the date of grant using the Black-Schofsion pricing model as prescribed by
SFAS No. 123 using the following assumptions:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Risk free interestrate...........oeevevvvvee.. L 5.8% 5.6% 5.2%

Expected life (inyears).......cccoovvvvvccceee L 5.0 5.0 5.0
Dividend yield.......cccoovvvvnviniiiiies 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility..coooooveiiiiiiiiiiieeeieee L 124.0% 96.0% 75.0%

The weighted average grant-date fair value of atigranted during the year ended December 31, @86(%25.73, $13.09 in 1999 and $4.57
in 1998.
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Had compensation cost for the Company's optione Hetermined based on the fair value at the graieisd as prescribed in SFAS 123, the
Company's pro forma net income and net income lpgreswould have been as summarized below (in tmolssaxcept per share data):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Net income:
As reported.........coeeeeeeeiieeiieeciennn ... $21,610 $ 172 $4,284
Pro forma netincome...........ccccoeeeninnen. ... 16,417 (2,747) 3,936

Net income per share:
As reported:

BaSiC......coovvvieiiieeiee e ... $ 110 $ 001 $0.27

Diluted........cooovveeeiiiiieeeecie. ... 1.03 0.01 0.26
Pro forma net income:

BaSiC...vvvveeeeiiiiee v ... $083 $(0.15) $0.24

Diluted.....cccoeeviireeeeeee e, ... 078 (0.15) 0.24

Because additional option grants are expected todme each year, the above pro forma disclosueasairepresentative of pro forma effe
on reported net income for future years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In February 1998, the Company's board of direcdprgroved the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plarii#88 Purchase Plan"). The
Company's stockholders approved the 1998 PurcHaedrPMarch 1998. At December 31, 2000 a tote@®,000 shares of the Company's
common stock were reserved for issuance underd88 Purchase Plan. A total of 149,000 shares wanehpsed as of December 31, 2000.
The 1998 Purchase Plan permits eligible employeesdquire shares of the Company's common stockghrpayroll deductions. The
common stock purchase price is determined as 86fGbe lower of the market price of the common ktatthe purchase date or the date of
offer to the employee.

Retirement Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Savings Plan (the "Sawtays") which qualifies as a thrift plan under $mt401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. All full-time U.S. employees are eligibleparticipate in the Savings Plan after 90 days fthendate of hire. Participants may
contribute up to 10.0% of their earnings to theiSgs/ Plan with a discretionary matching amount fatest by the Company. The Company's
contributions to the Savings Plan were $236,00@Heryear ended December 31, 2000, $146,000 fd¥ 488 $101,000 for 1998.

NOTE 13. SEGMENT AND FOREIGN OPERATIONS INFORMATION

The Company has three reportable segments: sudsstudgible emitters and discontinued consumeryrtsd The segments in which the
Company operates are subject to rapid technologitaige and significant competition. Also, the nemdf suppliers of certain materials
used by the Company and the number of customeilgated.
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Selected financial information by business segriestimmarized below (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Subtrates Division
Net revenues from external customers............. $113,374 $56,732 $43,177
Gross Profite....ccceeeeeiniieeeeiniiieeeeee 52,013 23,286 17,936
Operating income. 34,087 12,275 10,416
Identifiable assets 215,527 88,579 76,505
Visible Emitter Division

Net revenues from external customers............. $ 8,129 $18,640 $ 5,897
Gross profit (loss) *......... (4,194) 2,060 2,135
Operating income (loss) (19,487) (2,779) 1,132
Identifiable assets........cccccceeeveviiiinnnns 33,181 23,423 18,917
Discontinued Consumer Products Division
Identifiable assets..........c.ccceevveeeeenns $ 1512 $ 3,760 $ 7,561
Total

Net revenues from external customers............. $121,503 $75,372 $49,074
Gross Profite.....cceeeeeiniieeeeiniiieeeeee 47,819 25,346 20,071
Operating INCOME..........ccerriiieeeeniiinenn. 14,600 9,496 11,548
Identifiable assets........cccccceeeveviiiinnn. 250,220 115,762 102,983

* Includes restructuring charge of $1.8 milliongross profit and $8.2 million in operating los2®00

The Company sells its substrates in the UnitedeStand in other parts of the world. Also, the Conydaas operations in Japan and China.
Revenues by geographic location based on the goahthe customer were as follows (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Net revenues:

United States...........ccoeeeeeevcnvinvinnnns .. $62,905 $36,497 $30,172
12,743 8,175 3,960
6,661 2,221 1,356
39,194 28,479 13,586

.. $121,503 $75,372 $49,074

Property, plant and equipment by geographic lonacsummarized below (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

Property, plant and equipment, net:

United States.......cocevvvveevieeiieeecceeee $58,022 $37,362

...... 5379 3,491
Other. i -- 12

$63,401 $40,865

55



AXT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Equipment & Materials, a California corporation aggd in international trading and quartzware faion, supplies us with various raw
materials from China and has manufactured quarfgarus. Christina X. Li, the sole shareholder president of Equipment & Materials, is
the wife of Davis Zhang, the president of our stdistdivision. Purchases from Equipment & Matened¢se approximately $8.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000, $3.6 milliod 829 and $3.7 million for 1998. A balance of $308,@ue to Equipment & Materials was
included in accounts payable at December 31, 2000.

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time the Company is involved in litiiga in the normal course of business. Managemelt\es that the outcome of matters to
date will not have a material adverse effect onGbepany's financial position or results of openasi

The Company has entered into contracts to supplraklarge customers with GaAs wafers. The cotgrgaarantee the delivery of a certain
number of wafers between January 1, 2001 and De=e&ih 2001 with a current contract value of $8i#ilion. The contract sales prices are
subject to review quarterly and can be adjustaerevent that raw material prices change. In tle@eof non-delivery of the determined
wafer quantities in any monthly delivery periode iompany could be subject to non-performance pegaif between 5% and 10% of the
value of the delinquent monthly deliveries. Panpis@dpayments received for these supply contratasirig $5.4 million are included in accru
liabilities at December 31, 2000.

The Company leases certain office space, manufagttacilities and property and equipment undeghk&rm operating leases expiring at
various dates through December 2006. Total ren¢mesg under these operating leases was approxin$224;048 for the year ended
December 31, 2000.

Included in property and equipment is approxima$dg.0 million of equipment that is leased undet-nancelable leases accounted for as
capital leases. These leases expire at various thataugh 2005.

Total minimum lease payments under the above lesses December 31, 2000, are summarized beloth@usands):

CAPITAL OPERATING
LEASES LEASES TOTAL

2001 .. .. $3,742 $ 359 $4,101
2002..ciiiiiieee e ... 4,386 375 4,761
2003, .. 4,289 391 4,680
2004 ... .. 2,348 407 2,755
2005.. i 633 148 781
Thereafter.......ccccovvveeeeieeieeiiiiiis -- -- --

15,398 $1,680 $17,078

Less amounts representing interest at 6.0% to 8.8%. ... (2,063)

13,335
Less short-term portion..............cccccvvvenne ... (6,057)
Long-term portion...........ccceeeveeeiieeennnn. .. $7,278

NOTE 16. FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS AND TRANSACTION LOSSES

The Company uses short-term forward exchange aiatfar hedging purposes to reduce the effectsioérse foreign exchange rate
movements. The Company has purchased foreign egel@mtracts to hedge
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against certain trade accounts receivable denoedriatJapanese yen. The change in the fair valtleedbrward contracts is recognized as
part of the related foreign currency transactichthay occur. As of December 31, 2000, the Companytstanding commitments with resg
to the foreign exchange contracts, which were camanits to sell Japanese yen, had a total contahet wf approximately $500,000.

The Company incurred a foreign transaction exchdoggeof $552,000 for the year ended December @10,2a gain of $652,000 in 1999 and
a loss of $24,000 in 1998.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas caused this report to be signe
its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly autteati

AXT, Inc.

By: /sl MORRIS S. YOUNG

Morris S. Young, Chief Executive
O ficer and President

Date: February 22, 2001

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below hereby constamgsppoints Morris S.
Young and Donald L. Tatzin, and each of them, thie aind lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, witH fadwer of substitution, each with power
to act alone, to sign and execute on behalf ofittaersigned any and all amendments to this Repadfoom 10-K, and to perform any acts
necessary in order to file the same, with all eitbithereto and other documents in connection thignevith the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact agdnt full power and authority to do and perfoaunheand every act and thing requested
and necessary to be done in connection therevgthully to all intents and purposes as he mightard do in person, hereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agemttheir or his or her substitutes, shall doawse to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl MORRIS S. YOUNG President, Chief Executive  February 22, 200 1
Officer and Chairman of the
Morris S. Young Board
/s/ DONALD L. TATZIN Senior Vice President, Chief February 22, 200 1

Financial Officer

Donald L. Tatzin

/sl JOHN E. DRURY Corporate Controller February 22, 200 1

John E. Drury

/sl DAVID C. CHANG Director February 22, 200 1

David C. Chang

/sl JESSE CHEN Director February 22, 200 1
Jesse Chen

/sl B.J. MOORE Director February 22, 200 1
B.J. Moore
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CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT is entered into as of Aug@st 2000, by and among AXT, INC., a Delaware caafion ("Borrower"), each of
the financial institutions from time to time listed Schedule | attached hereto, as amended froettiime (collectively, "Lenders"), and
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("U.S. Bank"), as amt for the Lenders (in such capacity, "Agent")] as arranger.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Borrower has requested from Lenders tie dif credit, term loan and other credit facilitiesscribed herein for the purposes
described herein; and

WHEREAS, Borrower has issued a series of bondgdated the Variable Rate Taxable Demand Revenuds38aries 1998, in the
aggregate principal amount of $11,615,000.00 (Bents"), pursuant to an Indenture dated as of Dbeerh, 1998 (the "Indenture") between
Borrower and Harris Trust Company of Californiatastee (the "Trustee"); and

WHEREAS, to support certain payments with respeth¢ Bonds, Borrower requested U.S. Bank to issoe,U.S. Bank issued for the
account of Borrower and for the benefit of the Tees an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credie(thetter of Credit"), in the original stated
amount of $11,986,680.00, a copy of which is aadhereto as Exhibit A, pursuant to that certaimRersement Agreement dated as of
December 1, 1998, between Borrower and U.S. Bamk; a

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Agreement, [$11,00Q.00] of the principal amount of the Bonds remaiutstanding; and

WHEREAS, Borrower will be responsible for amountawin under the Letter of Credit and for certairsfaad amounts due with respect to
the Letter of Credit and this Credit Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Lenders and Agent have agreed to prowadtelsetter of Credit facility to Borrower, as wel a revolving line of credit facility
and certain term loans to Borrower on the termssarject to the conditions contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual ecev@s and promises of the parties contained hehgient, Lenders and Borrow
hereby agree as follows:
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ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1 DEFINED TERMS. As used in this Agreemaeii terms defined above shall have the mearseg$orth above, and the
following terms shall have the meanings set foftaraach:

"Accounts" means all currently existing and hemadirising accounts, contract rights, and all ofbens of obligations owing to Borrower
arising out of the sale or lease of goods or thdition of services by Borrower, irrespective ofetier earned by performance, and any and
all credit insurance, guaranties, or security tfogre

"Agent's Office" means (i) initially, Agent's officdesignated as such in Schedule | attached hareddji) subsequently, such other office
designated as such in writing by Agent to Lendeids Borrower.

"Agreement” means this Credit Agreement, as ameratadnded and restated, modified or supplementad time to time.

"Applicable Lending Office" means, with respecetach Lender,
(i) initially, its office designated as such in &dule | attached hereto, and (ii) subsequenthyh stiger office or offices designated as such in
writing by such Lender to Agent.

"Assignee" has the meaning assigned to that terf®eation 10.5(c) hereof.
"Assignment” has the meaning assigned to that tergection 10.5(c) hereof.

"Assignment Agreement" has the meaning assignéubtaderm in
Section 10.5(c) hereof.

"Assignor" has the meaning assigned to that terB8eiction 10.5(c) hereof.

"Authorized Representatives” means those officetseanployees designated by Borrower on the mosécuNotice of Authorized
Representatives delivered by Borrower to Agenteasghauthorized to request any borrowing or to mekginterest rate selection on behalf
of Borrower hereunder, or to give Agent any othatiae hereunder that is required by the terms ligoeloe made through one of Borrower's
Authorized Representatives.

-2



"Bankruptcy Code" means the Bankruptcy Reform Aite 11 of the United States Code, as amendedawndified from time to time,
including (unless the context otherwise requires) mles or regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Bond Interest Payment Date" has the meaning asdigmthat term in the Indenture.

"Bonds" means the Bonds described in the Recitisdi.

"Borrower Letter of Credit(s)" has the meaning @ssd to that term in Section 2.1(d) hereof.
"Borrower Letter of Credit Agreement(s)" has theamieg assigned to that term in Section 2.1(d) Hereo

"Borrower's Books" means all of Borrower's bookd aecords including: ledgers; records indicatingnmarizing, or evidencing Borrower's
properties or assets (including the Personal Prp@nilateral) or liabilities; all information refiag to Borrower's business operations or
financial condition; and all computer programskdis tape files, printouts, runs, or other compuyepared information.

"Borrowing Base" has the meaning assigned to #rat tn Section 2.1(b) hereof.
"Borrowing Base Certificate" has the meaning assibto that term in Section 2.1(b) hereof.

"Business Day" means any day other than a SatuBiayjay or other day on which commercial banksawNork City or Seattle are
authorized or required by law to close and, ifdpplicable Business Day relates to any LIBOR bomgwmeans such a day which is also a
day on which banks in the City of London are gelyegpen for interbank or foreign exchange transens.

"Change of Law" means the adoption of any Goverriedd®ule, any change in any Governmental Rule ermbplication or requirements
thereof (whether such change occurs in accordaitbehe terms of such Governmental Rule as enaated,result of amendment or
otherwise), any change in the interpretation oriagtration of any Governmental Rule by any Goveental Authority, or compliance by a
Lender (or any entity controlling such Lender) wattly request, guideline or directive (whether driraving the force of law) of any
Governmental Authority.
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"Closing Date" means the date on which all of theditions set forth in Section 5.1 of this Agreetnesive been satisfied or waived by Ag
"Collateral" means, collectively, the Personal Rmyp Collateral and the Real Property Collateral.

"Contract Collateral" has the meaning assignetiddterm in
Section 5.1(b)(xiv) hereof.

"Credits" means the Line of Credit, the Term Loand the Letter of Credit Facility.
"Date of Issuance" means December 1, 1998.

"Deeds of Trust" means, collectively, all of theeds of trust for the benefit of Agent that sectiedbligations of Borrower to Agent and
Lenders under this Agreement.

"Default” means an Event of Default or an eventamdition which, with the giving of notice or thagsage of time, or both, would constitute
an Event of Default.

"EBITDA" means, for the most recent trailing founagter period, consolidated net income from openati(after eliminating all extraordinary
items of gain or loss) plus interest expense, iretames, depreciation and amortization, in each daéined in accordance with GAAP anc
applicable, to the extent each has been deductibe idetermination of net income.

"El Monte Property" means that certain real propkatated at 9650 Telstar Avenue, in the City oMginte, County of Los Angeles,
California, owned by Borrower and improved witharanercial building used for research and developraed manufacturing purposes.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income SgclGt of 1974, as amended or recodified from timéime, including (unless the
context otherwise requires) any rules or regulatijpromulgated thereunder.

"Event of Default" has the meaning assigned to tiram in
Section 8.1 hereof.

"Expiration Date" means December 1, 2008.

"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any day, the weigaterage of the per annum rates on overnightr&efieds transactions with member
banks of the Federal Reserve System arranged lrédddnds brokers as published by
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the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for such aayif such rate is not so published for any dag, daverage rate quoted to Agent on such
day by three (3) Federal funds brokers of recogh&anding selected by Agent).

"Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio" means the ratio pfHBITDA less the aggregate amount of (i) unfinahcapital expenditures, (ii) cash
taxes, and (i) permitted dividends, distributi@ml treasury stock purchases, divided by (B) thygeagate amount of the following, each
measured for the most recent four historical qusiiexcluding the current quarter in possessigrgash Interest Expense (including any le
of credit fees payable to U.S. Bank) and (ii) calditase payments plus the average of current itiatuof long-term debt (including all bond
redemptions required by this Agreement) measurethtomost recent four historical quarters (exalgdihe current quarter in possession)
(iii) the current maturity of subordinated debt maad for the most recent four historical quar(exeluding the current quarter in
possession).

"Fixed Rate Term" means a period of one (1), twotfZee (3), or six (6) months, as designated bgr@ver, during which all or a portion of
the Line of Credit or the Term Loan bears intedegermined in relation to LIBOR; provided howewbat (a) no Fixed Rate Term may be
selected for a principal amount less than One dfillDollars ($1,000,000.00); (b) no Fixed Rate Tetrall extend beyond the scheduled
maturity date hereof; (c) any Fixed Rate Term whicluld otherwise expire on a day which is not aiBess Day shall be extended to the
next succeeding Business Day, unless the resaliaf extension would be to extend such Fixed RatsyTnto another calendar month, in
which event the Fixed Rate Term shall end on thaédliately preceding Business Day; (d) any Fixe&Ra&rm that begins on the last
Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day fichvthere is no numerically corresponding dayhm ¢alendar month at the end of such
Fixed Rate Term) shall end on the last Businessddaycalendar month; and (e) with respect to thenilLoans, no Fixed Rate Term shall
extend beyond a date on which Borrower is requinadake a scheduled payment of principal on thenTlesans unless the aggregate
principal amount of Term Loans bearing intereshatReference Rate plus the aggregate principalatad Term Loans bearing interest at
LIBOR with Fixed Rate Terms expiring on or befotels date equals or exceeds the principal amounireztjto be paid on the Term Loans
on such date.

"Funded Debt" means the aggregate amount of atjatiwns for
(1) borrowed money, including senior bank debtosdimated debt and amounts owing under the Bor@ggpital leases; (3) issued but
undrawn letters of credit, except the direct patdreof Credit supporting the Bonds, plus any
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amounts outstanding under drawn letters of credit; (4) contingent obligations.
"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting priesigls in effect in the United States of Americanftome to time, consistently applied.

"General Intangibles" means all of Borrower's pnésand future general intangibles and other petgmoperty (including the Contract
Collateral and all contract rights, rights arisingder common law, statutes, or regulations, chos#sings in action, goodwill, patents, trade
names, trademarks, servicemarks, copyrights, biluspdrawings, purchase orders, customer listsjiesodue or recoverable from pension
funds, route lists, rights to payment and othentsginder any royalty or licensing agreementsirigément claims, computer programs,
information contained on computer disks or tapiésxature, reports, catalogs, deposit accountsramee premium rebates, tax refunds, and
tax refund claims), other than goods, Accountsidedotiable Collateral.

"Governmental Authority” means any domestic or iigmenational, state or local government, any pmitsubdivision thereof, any
department, agency, authority or bureau of anhefforegoing, or any other entity exercising exireytegislative, judicial, regulatory or
administrative functions of or pertaining to gowaent, including the Federal Deposit Insurance Catjian, the Federal Reserve Board, the
Comptroller of the Currency, any central bank of aamparable authority.

"Governmental Rule" means any law, rule, regulatardinance, order, code interpretation, judgmeetree, directive, guideline, policy or
similar form of decision of any Governmental Autitypr

"Guarantee" means any guarantee of Borrower's atiigs to Agent and Lenders under the Loan Docusnexecuted by a Guarantor.

"Guarantor" means, subject to the release prowssen forth in

Section 2.16 hereof, collectively, AXT-Japan, BagjiTongmei Xtal Technology Co., Ltd., American Xfachnology (Hong Kong), Lyte
Optronics, Inc., Lyte Optronics Ltd. (UK), AdvancBeémiconductor (Xiamen), Bestal Substrate ForemesSCorp., and each future wholly-
owned subsidiary of Borrower.

"Indemnitees" has the meaning assigned to thatire®ection 10.3 hereof.
"Indenture" has the meaning assigned to that tarthd Recitals hereof.
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"Interest Expense" means any and all interest olwinBorrower under any debt obligations, includihg Credits, during the measured
period.

"Inventory" means all present and future inventarywhich Borrower has any interest, including gobétd for sale or lease or to be furnisl
under a contract of service and all of Borrower&spnt and future raw materials, work in procassgstfed goods, and packing and shipping
materials, wherever located.

"Investment Property" means all of Borrower's pnglgeexisting and hereafter acquired or arisingestment property (as that term is defined
in Section 9115 of the California Uniform Commetdade).

"Issuance Spread" means two and one-half of oreepe(2.50%) per annum.
"Letter of Credit" has the meaning assigned to tiiah in the Recitals hereof.

"Letter of Credit Facility" means the credit fatyliavailable to Borrower pursuant to Section 2.@&bépursuant to which U.S. Bank has
issued the direct pay Letter of Credit to the Teast

"LIBOR" means, for each Fixed Rate Term, the raegmnum (computed on the basis of a 360-day yehthte actual number of days
elapsed and rounded upward if necessary to thesteahole 1/16 of 1%) and determined pursuantedahowing formula:

Base LIBOR
LIBOR =
100% - LIBOR Reserve Percentage

As used herein, (i) "Base LIBOR" shall mean the gar annum at which United States dollar depagitdd be offered to U.S. Bank in the
London interbank market at approximately 11:00 a.andon time on the date which is two Business D@y to the first day of a Fixed
Rate Term for delivery of funds on the first daysath Fixed Rate Term for a period of time subgéntequal to the number of days in such
Fixed Rate Term and in an amount substantially leguthe principal amount to which such Fixed RB#em applies, and (ii) "LIBOR
Reserve Percentage” shall mean the reserve pegeemi@asured as of the date which is two Businegs préor to the date of pricing,
prescribed by the Board of Governors of the FedReslerve System (or any successor) for "Eurocuyrkiabilities” (as defined in
Regulation D of
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the Federal Reserve Board, as amended), requiles nmaintained by U.S. Bank, adjusted by U.S. BHanlkexpected changes in such reserve
percentage during the applicable Fixed Rate Term.

“Line Maturity Date" means May 31, 2002.

“Line of Credit" means a revolving credit facility the maximum principal amount of $20,000,000&9defined more fully in Section 2.1
hereof.

"Line of Credit Facility Fee" has the meaning assigjto that term in Section 2.5(c)(i).

"Line of Credit Note" means a promissory note exediy Borrower in favor of a Lender to evidenceattes under the Line of Credit,
substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached étex:

“Line of Credit Pricing Grid" means the followingre of Credit Pricing Grid:

- APPLICABLE MARGINS (IN BASIS POINTS) & FEE -
RATIO OF FUNDED PR ICING LIBOR REFERENCE LINE OF CREDIT
DEBT TO EBITDA L EVEL MARGIN RATE MARGIN FACILITY FEE
less than 1.00 | 175 50 25.0
equal to/greater than 1.00 less than 1.50 Il 200 75 25.0
equal to/greater than 1.50 less than 2.00 1] 225 100 375
equal to/greater than 2.00 less than 2.50 v 250 125 50.0

Borrower shall be eligible for Level | pricing whés ratio of Funded Debt to EBITDA is less tha@1.00; for Level Il pricing when such
ratio is equal to or greater than 1.00:1.00, bss aan 1.50:1.00; for Level Il pricing when suakio is equal to or greater than 1.50:1.00, but
less than 2.00:1.00; for Level IV pricing when suatio is equal to or greater than 2.00:1.00, bss than 2.50:1.00. This ratio shall be
measured quarterly for the preceding four-quargeiog. The pricing will be set at Level IV untilagipt of the first financial covenant
compliance reflecting the Funded Debt to EBITDAagat

"Loan Costs" means all costs incurred by Agentoinnection with the Credits, including, without liation, all taxes and assessments,
recording fees, title insurance premiums and dftlercharges, document binding costs,
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appraisal fees, lien and judgment search costs,dearchitects, engineers, surveyors and any apaansultants, construction and Collateral
inspection and exam fees, brokers fees (excephasvase specified herein), escrow fees, all travel out-of-pocket expenses of Agent to
conduct audits or inspections and wire transfes.fee

"Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the NokesSecurity Documents and each other notice, dogyroentract or instrument requir
by or at any time delivered to Agent in connectidgth this Agreement.

"Majority Lenders" means two (2) or more Lendersosdn Proportionate Shares at any time equal or ebsigy-six and two-thirds percent
(66-2/3%) of the Total Commitments.

"Material Adverse Effect" means a material adveffect on (i) the business operations or financialdition of Borrower and its Subsidiaries
taken as a whole or (ii) the ability of Borrowerrapay the amounts loaned to Borrower by Lendersumeler.

"Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio" means EBITDA deil by Interest Expense (net of capitalized intesggense) for the most recent four
quarter period.

"Monterey Park Property" means that certain reaperty located at 2019 Saturn Street, in the ityionterey Park, County of Los Angeles,
California owned by Borrower and improved with argoercial building used for research and developraedtmanufacturing purposes.

"Negotiable Collateral" means all of Borrower'sg@et and future letters of credit, notes, drafistruments, securities (including the share
stock of Subsidiaries of Borrower), documents, peas property leases (wherein Borrower is the I§ssmd chattel paper.

"Notes" means, collectively, the Line of Credit B@nd all of the Term Notes.

"Notice of Authorized Representatives” has the mmaget forth in Section 2.14 hereof.

"Notice of Borrowing" has the meaning set forttSection 2.4 hereof.

"Notice of Conversion or Continuation" has the megrassigned to that term in Section 2.6(b) hereof.
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"Participant” has the meaning assigned to that terSection 10.5(b) hereof.
"Permitted Indebtedness" means, subject to Borreweempliance with the financial covenants requirader this Agreement, the following:
(a) Indebtedness of Borrower in favor of Lendeisiiag hereunder or any other Loan Document:

(b) Capital leases incurred solely to purchasepgent which is secured by a purchase money sedntésest and is not in excess of the
lesser of the purchase price for such equipmetiteofair market value of such equipment on the datequisition.

(c) Indebtedness to trade creditors incurred irotignary course of business;

(d) Indebtedness set forth on Schedule 7.7 hereto;

(e) Indebtedness incurred to refinance any Indelgtesipermitted under the foregoing clause (b)aursd (d);

(f) Accrued dividends on the capital stock of Boves;

(9) Interest rate and currency hedging agreements;

(h) Guaranties of any Subsidiary's suppliers imeation with the purchase of supplies in the ondirtmurse of business;

(i) Guaranties of lease obligations incurred inah&inary course of business and to the extentwaibe permitted hereunder;

"Permitted Investments" means, subject to Borranampliance with the financial covenants requireder this Agreement, the following:
(&) Investments existing on the Closing Date asdldsed in Schedule 7.7 attached hereto;

(b) Marketable direct obligations issued or unctindally guaranteed by the United States of Ameoicany agency or any State thereof
maturing within one year from the date of acquisitihereof, (i) commercial paper maturing no nit@n one year from the date of creation
thereof and currently having a rating of at leas? 8r P-2 from either Standard & Poor's CorporatioMoody's Investors Service, (iii)
certificates of
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deposit maturing no more than one year from the dainvestment therein; and (iv) money market aots

(c) Investments consisting of travel advances anpl@yee relocation loans and other employee loadsadvances in the ordinary course of
business;

(d) Joint ventures or strategic alliances in thdirary course of Borrower's business consistinthefon-exclusive licensing of technology,
the development of technology or the providingeafiinical support, provided that any such investsibptBorrower do not exceed
$3,000,000.00 in the aggregate in any fiscal yaadl;

(e) Investments or capital infusions in Borrow&tsidiaries.

"Permitted Liens" means, subject to Borrower's ciiampe with the financial covenants required urtties Agreement, the following:
(a) Liens in favor of Agent;

(b) liens and security interests existing on thesig Date and disclosed in Schedule 4.15 attalchesto;

(c) liens for taxes, fees, assessment or otherrgmental charges or levies, either not delinqueitaing contested in good faith by
appropriate proceedings;

(d) liens securing claims or demands of materialmegchanics, carriers, warehousemen, landlordotiat like persons or entities imposed
without action of such parties, provided that thgment thereof is not yet required,;

(e) liens arising from judgments, decrees or attamits in circumstances not constituting an Evemeffult hereunder;

(f) liens incurred or deposits made in the ordinasyrse of Borrower's business in connection withkers' compensation, unemployment
insurance, Social Security and other like laws;

(9) liens and security interests (a) upon or in egyipment acquired or held by the Borrower to setlie purchase price of such equipmel
indebtedness incurred solely for the purpose @frfiing the acquisition of such equipment, or (B3téxg on such equipment at the time of its
acquisition, provided that the
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lien and security interest is confined solely te gnoperty so acquired and improvements thereahttenproceeds of such equipment;

(h) liens consisting of leases and subleases aeddées and sublicenses granted to others in tiemoydourse of Borrower's business not
interfering in any material respect with the busgef Borrower and any interest or title of a lessdicensor under any lease or license, as
applicable;

(i) liens in favor of customs and revenue authesitirising as a matter of law to secure paymeotistboms duties in connection with the
importation of goods; and

(j) liens that are not prior to Agent's securiteirest which constitute rights of set-off of a cusary nature.

"Person” means an individual, a corporation, argaiship, a limited liability company, an associatia trust or any other entity or
organization, including a Governmental Authority.

"Personal Property Collateral" means each of tHeviting:

(k) the Accounts,

() Borrower's Books,

(m) the General Intangibles,

(n) the Inventory,

(o) the Investment Property,

(p) the Negotiable Collateral,

(q) any money, or other assets of Borrower that noiereafter come into the possession, custodypmirol of U.S. Bank or the Lenders, i

(r) the proceeds and products, whether tangibietangible, of any of the foregoing, including peecls of insurance covering any or all of
Personal Property Collateral, and any and all AotauBorrower's Books, General Intangibles, Inventimvestment Property, Negotiable
Collateral, Real Property, money, deposit accouwntsther tangible or intangible property resultfrgm
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the sale, exchange, collection, or other dispasibibany of the foregoing, or any portion therepfragerest therein, and the proceeds thereof.
"Plan" means any defined employee pension berlefit s defined in ERISA.

"Proportionate Share" means, for each Lender, thlarcamount determined at any time by multiplythg percentage set forth opposite such
Lender's name in Schedule 1 attached hereto bgrttweint of the Total Commitments at such time, dradl include, where the context so
requires, the amount of all outstanding credit fush Lender to Borrower pursuant to this Agreena@ntthe obligation of such Lender to
make advances or otherwise extend credit up to aomunt on the terms and subject to the condisen$orth herein.

"Real Property" means collectively, the MontereykHRroperty, the El Monte Property, the Technol@give Property and the Solar Way
Property.

"Real Property Collateral" means, collectively, Menterey Park Property, the El Monte Property, Teehnology Drive Property and the
Solar Way Property.

"Reference Rate" means at any time the rate ofastevhich U.S. Bank establishes as its refereatgeand is not necessarily the lowest rate
of interest which it collects from any borrowerabass of borrowers. If U.S. Bank ceases to pubbelgounce or publish its Reference Rate,
U.S. Bank will choose a new index by using a corapker index or reference rate as its Reference Rate.

"Register" has the meaning assigned to that ter&eation 10.5(d) hereof.
"Reimbursement Default Rate" has the meaning asdigmthat term in Section 2.3(b).

"Reimbursement Deposit Account” means the demapdsiieaccount established by Borrower with U.S.Bas defined in Section 3.2
hereof.

"Reimbursement Obligations" mean the obligationB@frower to Lenders described in Section 2.3(lspbk

"Related Documents" means the Bonds, the IndernttueeBond Loan Agreement, the Deeds of Trust, tB€41 Financing Statements, the
Security Agreements, the Guarantees and any ogineement or instrument related to the issuancheoBonds and pertaining to Borrower.
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"Security Agreements” means, collectively, alllod security agreements for the benefit of Agent skaure the obligations of Borrower to
Agent and Lenders under this Agreement.

"Security Documents" means, collectively, the Deefdrust and the Security Agreements.

"Solar Way Property" means that certain real priyplecated at 4211 Solar Way in the City of Frem@uunty of Alameda, California own
by Borrower and improved with a manufacturing aeskarch and development facility.

"Stated Amount" means $11,986,680.00, as such anmoay be reduced from time to time as a resultoéinstated Drawings on the Letter
of Credit in accordance with the terms thereof.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation, associationitéid liability company, partnership, joint ventumeother business entity of which more
than fifty percent (50%) of the voting stock or etkequity interest is owned directly or indiredbly Borrower.

"Tangible Net Worth" means, at any time, total ktadders' equity at such time less the amount gfteeasury stock less the value of any in
tangible assets at such time.

"Taxes" has the meaning assigned to that termétidde2.12(a) hereof.

"Technology Drive Property" means that certain graperty located at 4281 Technology Drive in thiy Gf Fremont, County of Alameda,
California owned by Borrower and improved with amatacturing facility.

"Term Loan A" means a credit facility availableBorrower in the maximum principal amount of $1,131.00, as defined more fully in
Section 2.2 hereof.

"Term Loan A Maturity Date" means May 31, 2003.

"Term Loan B" means a credit facility availableBorrower in the maximum principal amount of $1,8100.00, as defined more fully in
Section 2.2 hereof.

"Term Loan B Maturity Date" means May 31, 2003.
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"Term Loan C" means a credit facility availableBorrower in the maximum principal amount of $3,2®.00, as more fully defined in
Section 2.2 hereof.

"Term Loan C Maturity Date" means May 31, 2003.

"Term Loan Pricing Grid" means the following Terrodn Pricing Grid:

- APPLICABLE MARGINS (IN B ASIS POINTS) -
RATIO OF FUNDED PRICI NG LIBOR MARGIN REFERENCE
DEBT TO EBITDA LEVE L RATE MARGIN
less than 1.00 | 200 75
equal to/greater than 1.00 less than 1.50 Il 225 100
equal to/greater than 1.50 less than 2.00 Il | 250 125
equal to/greater than 2.00 less than 2.50 v 275 150

Borrower shall be eligible for Level | pricing whés ratio of Funded Debt to EBITDA is less tha@1.00; for Level Il pricing when such
ratio is equal to or greater than 1.00:1.00, bsg khan 1.50:1.00; for Level Il pricing when suekio is equal to or greater than 1.50:1.00, but
less than 2.00:1.00; for Level IV pricing when suatio is equal to or greater than 2.00:1.00, bss than 2.50:1.00. This ratio shall be
measured quarterly for the preceding four-quarteiog. The pricing will be set at Level IV untilagipt of the first financial covenant
compliance reflecting the Funded Debt to EBITDAagat

"Term Loans" means, collectively, Term Loan A, Tdroan B and Term Loan C.

"Term Notes" means, collectively, each of the pigsury notes executed by Borrower in favor of a lezrid evidence advances under each of
the Term Loans, substantially in the form of Exhibiattached hereto.

"Termination Date" has the meaning assigned totérat in
Section 3.2 hereof.

"Total Commitments" means, for all Lenders andmgttéme, the then aggregate amount of (i) the aatding principal balance of each of the
Credits, and (ii) the maximum undisbursed princgralount of each of the Credits.
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"Treasury Rate" means the Issuance Spread plyselieto maturity of the most recently issued ame or three year U.S. Treasury Secut

as elected by Borrower, as quoted in the Wall $ttearnal on the date of election of a TreasureRé&tsuch date is not a Business Day, then
the quote shall be obtained on the Business Dayeiiately preceding such date. If the Wall Streetridal (i) quotes more than one such one,
two or three year U.S. Treasury Security, the higlé such quotes shall apply, or (ii) ceases taigh such quotes, the one, two or three year
U.S. Treasury Security, as elected by Borrowen] $leadetermined from such substitute financialomtipg service or source as U.S. Bank in
its reasonable discretion shall determine.

"Trustee" has the meaning assigned to that tertmeifiRecitals hereof.

SECTION 1.2 INTERPRETATION. The meaning of eachimisd term is equally applicable to both the singalad plural forms of the terms
defined. As used in this Agreement and each obther Loan Documents, the term "including” is nisiifing, and means "including without
limitation."

SECTION 1.3 HEADINGS. Headings in this Agreemerd aach of the other Loan Documents are for conveeief reference only and are
not part of the substance hereof or thereof.

ARTICLE II
THE CREDITS

SECTION 2.1 LINE OF CREDIT.

(a) Line of Credit. On the terms and subject toabtmeditions set forth in this Agreement, each Lerdgeby severally agrees, on a pro rata
basis in accordance with Schedule 1 attached hacetoake advances to Borrower under the Line efi€ifrom time to time up to and
including the Line Maturity Date, not to exceedaay time the aggregate principal amount of Twent§idvh Dollars ($20,000,000.00), the
proceeds of which shall be used for general cotpgrarposes, including working capital financingddor the issuance of standby and
commercial letters of credit, subject to a subliafi$250,000.00 for such letters of credit as dbedrin subparagraph (d), below. Borrower's
obligation to repay advances under the Line of {€sdthll be evidenced by the Line of Credit Notétexms of which are incorporated herein
by this reference.

(b) Limitation on Borrowings. Outstanding borrowsgnder the Line of Credit, to a maximum of thexpipal amount set forth above, shall
not at any
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time exceed an aggregate of (i) eighty percent j8®Réligible receivables generated by U.S. bad#igjors, (ii) eighty percent (80%) of
eligible receivables generated by obligors witmgipal offices outside of the United States proditleat such foreign eligible receivables are
insured in a manner acceptable to Lender, andff@é)esser of $7,500,000 or fifty percent (50%gligible inventory (the "Borrowing Base'
as evidenced by a borrowing base certificate irfadhm attached hereto as Exhibit H (the "BorrowBage Certificate"). All of the foregoing
shall be determined by Agent upon receipt and vewitthe collateral reports required hereunder such other documents and collateral
information as Agent may from time to time require.

As used herein, "eligible receivables" shall cansidely of trade accounts which have been creiatéike ordinary course of Borrower's or i
Guarantor's business, upon which Borrower's or@ngrantor's right to receive payment is absoluteran contingent upon the fulfillment of
any condition whatsoever, and in which Agent hasidiected security interest of first priority, astehll not include:

(i) any Account which is past due more than nif{88) days after the invoice date;

(i) that portion of any Account for which thereists any right of setoff, defense or discount (@kcegular discounts allowed in the ordinary
course of business to promote prompt payment)rovfich any defense or counterclaim has been a&skert

(iii) any Account which represents an obligatioraofy state or municipal government or of the Uniakes government or any political
subdivision thereof (except accounts which repriesbligations of the United States government amdvhich Assignment of Claims Act
forms reasonably satisfactory to Agent have bedénekecuted and acknowledged);

(iv) any Account which arises from the sale or &tsor performance of services for, or represantsbligation of, an employee, affiliate,
partner, member, parent or subsidiary of Borrower;

(v) that portion of any Account which representgiim or progress billings or retention rights e part of the account debtor;

(vi) any Account which represents an obligatioran§ account debtor when twenty percent (25%) orenodBorrower's accounts from such
account debtor are not eligible pursuant to
(i) above;
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(vii) that portion of any Account from an accoumtbdor which represents the amount by which Borrtanstetal accounts from said account
debtor exceeds twenty-five percent (25%) of Bornosviotal accounts;

(viii) any Account deemed ineligible by Agent wh&gent, in its sole discretion, deems the credithiogss or financial condition of the
account debtor to be unsatisfactory; or

(ix) uninsured foreign receivables.

As used herein, "eligible inventory" shall meanaay time, all of Borrower's Inventory constitutiregv materials (valued at the lower of cost
or market), except:

() Inventory which is not owned by Borrower freedaclear of all security interests, liens, encumbes and claims of third parties; and
(il) Inventory which Agent, in its sole discretiotgeems to be obsolete, unsalable, damaged, defextnfit for further processing.

(c) Borrowing and Repayment. Borrower may from titméime during the term of the Line of Credit mwr, partially or wholly repay its
outstanding borrowings, and reborrow, subject itthal limitations, terms and conditions containeddin; provided however, that the total
outstanding borrowings under the Line of Creditllshat at any time exceed the maximum principal antcset forth above in this Section :

(d) Borrower Letter of Credit Subfeature. As a satfire under the Line of Credit, Agent agrees ftiome to time during the term thereof to
issue standby or commercial letters of credit figr dccount of Borrower (each, a "Borrower LetteCofdit" and collectively, "Borrower
Letters of Credit"); provided however, that thenfioand substance of each Borrower Letter of Crddill be subject to reasonable approval by
Agent and the aggregate amount of Borrower LetiEfredit issued at any one time shall not exce250$00.00. Except with the prior
approval of Agent, which may be granted or withhald@s sole discretion, no Borrower Letter of Gteshall have an expiration date
subsequent to the Line Maturity Date. The undramownt of all Borrower Letters of Credit issued andstanding under this letter of credit
subfeature shall be reserved under the Line ofiCaed shall not be available for borrowings thewer. Each Borrower Letter of Credit st

be subject to the additional terms and conditidrtt@ Borrower Letter of Credit Agreement and rethtiocuments, if any, required by Agent
in connection with the issuance thereof (each,@r®ver Letter of Credit Agreement" and collectivehe "Borrower Letter
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of Credit Agreements"), each of which shall be saigally in the form attached hereto as ScheduleRach draft paid by Agent under a
Borrower Letter of Credit shall be deemed an adeanwer the Line of Credit and shall be repaid byr&wer on or before the Line Maturity
Date in accordance with the terms and conditiorthisfAgreement. Borrower agrees that Agent, isdte discretion, may debit any demand
deposit account maintained by Borrower with Agetiter than a demand deposit account maintainedobso®er on behalf of a joint venture
of which Borrower is a member, for the amount of anch draft.

SECTION 2.2 TERM LOANS.

(a) Term Loan A. On the terms and subject to thelitins set forth in this Agreement, each Lendaehy severally agrees, on a pro rata
basis in accordance with Schedule 1 attached hecegpant Term Loan A to Borrower on the Closingt®in the principal amount of One
Million One Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($1,)31.00), the proceeds of which shall be usedpgay@xisting indebtedness
encumbering the Monterey Park Property in the apprate amount of $684,260.00 and to finance impmuets and additions to the El
Monte Property. Borrower's obligation to repay Téroan A shall be evidenced by the Term Note fomTé&oan A, all terms of which are
incorporated herein by this reference.

(b) Repayment of Term Loan A. Interest on Term Léashall be paid monthly or as otherwise set famtthis Agreement. Commencing
September 30, 2000, and on the last day of eaendat quarter thereafter, Borrower shall make gugrinstallments of principal in the
amount required in order to amortize fully the pijpal amount of Term Loan A, together with interéswtreon at the rates of interest
applicable under the Term Loan A Notes, over twé€B@) years and continuing until the Term Loan Atiiay Date, as follows:

YEAR QUARTERLY PAYMENT AMOUNT

2000 $14,875
2001 $14,875
2002 $14,875
2003 $14,875

BALANCE DUE $1,011,500

There will be one payment due on March 31, 200Biénamount of $14,875 with the entire balance ofgipal and interest then unpaid due
and payable on the Term Loan A Maturity Date. Sgahrterly payment shall be credited to principal] nterest shall be paid separately as
set forth herein.
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(c) Term Loan B. On the terms and subject to theditmns set forth in this Agreement, each Lends=eby severally agrees, on a pro rata
basis in accordance with Schedule 1 attached hecegpant Term Loan B to Borrower on the Closingt®in the principal amount of One
Million Six Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars ($1,61@@D), the proceeds of which shall be used to repésting indebtedness encumbering
the El Monte Property in the approximate amourhfL06,559.00 and to finance improvements and iaddito the El Monte Property.
Borrower's obligation to repay Term Loan B shallevédenced by the Term Notes for Term Loan B,alris of which are incorporated het
by this reference.

(d) Repayment of Term Loan B. Interest on Term LBahall be paid monthly or as otherwise set fortthis Agreement. Commencing on
September 30, 2000, and on the last day of eaelndat quarter thereafter, Borrower shall make gugrinstallments of principal in the
amount required in order to amortize fully the pigal amount of Term Loan B, together with interthgtreon at the rates of interest applic
under the Term Loan B Notes, over twenty (20) yaais continuing until the Term Loan B Maturity Dads follows:

YEAR QUARTERLY
PAYMENT AMOUNT

2000 $20,125

2001 $20,125

2002 $20,125

2003 $20,125

BALANCE DUE $1,368,500

There will be one payment due on March 31, 200Bénamount of $20,125 with the entire balance ofggpal and interest then unpaid due
and payable on the Term Loan B Maturity Date. Sycarterly payment shall be credited to principat] anterest shall be paid separately as
set forth herein.

(e) Term Loan C. On the terms and subject to tmglitions set forth in this Agreement, each Lendsehy severally agrees, on a pro rata
basis in accordance with Schedule 1 attached hecegpant Term Loan C to Borrower on the Closiragdin the principal amount of Three
Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,200,000,a6e proceeds of which shall be used to finaheecbnstruction of improvements and
additions to the El Monte Property. Borrower's gation to repay Term Loan C shall be evidencechbyTierm Notes for Term Loan C, all
terms of which are incorporated herein by thisneziee.
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(f) Repayment of Term Loan C. Borrower shall mak&allments of interest only through December D®monthly or as otherwise set
forth in this Agreement. Commencing on March 31020(and on the last day of each calendar quarteedlfter, Borrower shall make
quarterly installments of principal in the amoueduired in order to amortize fully the principal @mt of Term Loan C, together with inter
thereon at the rates of interest applicable urtdeerm Loan C Notes, over five (5) years and owoimig until the Term Loan C Maturity
Date, as follows:

YEAR QUARTERLY PAYMENT
AMOUNT
2001 $160,000
2002 $160,000
2003 $160,000
BALANCE DUE $1,760,000

There will be one payment due on March 31, 200Biénamount of $160,000 with the entire balanceriicipal and interest then unpaid due
and payable on the Term Loan C Maturity Date. Sudhrterly payment shall be credited to principat] anterest shall be paid separately as
set forth herein.

(9) Prepayment. Borrower may prepay principal acheaf the Term Loans solely in accordance withghavisions of Sections 2.8 and 2.13
of this Agreement.

SECTION 2.3 THE LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITY.

(a) Terms and Amount of Letter of Credit. U.S. Béwals issued its irrevocable direct-pay Letter additrfor the account of Borrower in favor
of the Trustee in an initial amount equal to théahStated Amount, which amount shall be amordias follows: $10,340,000.00 of the ini
Stated Amount shall be amortized based on a twirgy25) year amortization schedule and $1,275000f the initial Stated Amount shall
be amortized based on a five (5) year amortizagafredule. The amount of principal and interest tvlBorrower must pay monthly in order
to amortize fully the initial Stated Amount accardito the above amortization schedule is set fontschedule 2.3(a) attached hereto.
Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agneent, this Agreement shall not expire or be otfmrterminated until such time as
payment obligations due or to become due to Ageahyg Lender with respect to the Letter of Crediéd been paid.
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(b) Reimbursement Obligations. Borrower agreesatotp Agent

(i) on the day that any drawing is made by the fB@isinder the Letter of Credit, all amounts to theaaced by Agent pursuant to the Letter of
Credit on behalf of Borrower in respect of suchwdray, and (ii) interest on any and all amounts Batrower fails to pay when due under 1
Agreement from the date such amounts become payablg@ayment in full (collectively, the "Reimbumsient Obligations"). For each day
that any Reimbursement Obligation remains unpatéyést shall accrue on such amounts at an aggreggatper annum equal to five percent
(5%) above the Reference Rate (the "Reimbursemefatull Rate"), based on the actual number of deased in a year of 360 days.

SECTION 2.4 NOTICE OF BORROWING. Borrower, througie of its Authorized Representatives, shall refjaggances under each of
Term Loans and each advance under the Line of tiigdjiving Agent irrevocable written notice or@phonic notice (confirmed promptly in
writing), in the form of Exhibit D attached herd&ach, a "Notice of Borrowing"), which specifiesy@ng other things:

(i) the principal amount to be disbursed, if untier Term Loans, or the principal amount of the estied advance, if under the Line of Credit;
(i) the proposed date of borrowing, which shallebBusiness Day;

(iii) the interest rate option applicable to sudmrbwing (which, for a LIBOR interest selectionafitbe subject to the minimum dollar
requirements set forth in Section 2.5(a) hereaflt a

(iv) if the amounts disbursed or advanced will beserest determined in relation to LIBOR, the l#ngf the Fixed Rate Term applicable
thereto.

Each such Notice of Borrowing must be received g% not later than 10:00

a.m. Pacific Standard time at least one (1) Busimesy prior to the date of borrowing if interestlwie determined in relation to the Refere
Rate, and

(i) at least three (3) Business Days prior todh&e of borrowing if interest will be determinedrélation to LIBOR; provided however, that
Agent, at its sole discretion, may permit borrowieguests to be made by telephone (confirmed pigrimptvriting) and on the same day ol
if interest will be determined in relation to thefRrence Rate. Agent shall promptly notify eachdesrof the contents of each Notice of
Borrowing and of the amount of the disbursemergdyance to be made by such Lender. Each advaneéhion interest will be determined
in relation to the Reference Rate shall be in ti@mum amount of $100,000.00.
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SECTION 2.5 INTEREST/FEES.

(a) Interest on the Line of Credit. The outstandingcipal balance of the Line of Credit shall baderest in accordance with the following
interest rate options, as designated periodicallgdrrower:

(i) at the applicable margin over the ReferenceeRat forth in the Line of Credit Pricing Grid; or

(i) at the applicable margin over LIBOR set foiththe Line of Credit Pricing Grid; provided, hovasythat each LIBOR interest selection
must be for a minimum amount of $1,000,000 anchiegral multiples of $100,000.

(b) Interest on the Term Loans. The outstandingggual balances of each of the Term Loans shall inéerest in accordance with the
following interest rate options, as designatedqukcially by Borrower;

(i) at the applicable margin over the ReferenceeRat forth in the Term Loan Pricing Grid;

(i) at the applicable margin over LIBOR set foiithe Term Loan Pricing Grid; provided, howevértteach LIBOR interest selection must
be for a minimum amount of $1,000,000 and in irdégrultiples of $100,000; or

(iii) at a fixed rate per annum equal to the TregfRate (for a term of one, two or three year8a@trower's option).

The margins above the Reference Rate or LIBORpphcable (the "Interest Rate Margins"), at whible putstanding principal balances of
the Line of Credit and each of the Term Loans li@earest from time to time shall be adjusted incrdence with the Line of Credit Pricing
Grid and the Term Loan Pricing Grid, respectivéntil such time as Agent receives Borrower's finahstatements (as required under this
Agreement) evidencing Borrower's compliance witi ahthe Funded Debt to EBITDA ratios set forthle applicable Pricing Grid, the
Level IV Interest Rate Margin above the ReferenateRr LIBOR shall apply. Thereafter, Agent shdijuat the Interest Rate Margins in
accordance with the applicable Pricing Grid onftts day of the month following each month in whi8gent receives updated financial
statements from Borrower pursuant to this Agreenfemth Interest Rate Margins shall be determineais{ng the most recent quarterly
financial statement of Borrower available to Agentthe applicable adjustment date to determinatheunt of Funded Debt and (i) using
most recent financial statements of Borrower abégla
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to Agent on the applicable adjustment date forua {d) consecutive quarter period to determine EBAT
(c) Fees for the Line of Credit.

(i) Line of Credit Facility Fee. Commencing on filwsing Date and continuing through the Line Majubate, Borrower shall pay to Agent,
for the ratable benefit of Lenders, a per annurilifiaéee (the “Line of Credit Facility Fee") callated based on the average undisbursed
portion of the Line of Credit at the applicable tiaf Credit Facility Fee described in the Line oédit Pricing Grid. Such Line of Credit
Facility Fee shall be payable quarterly in arreammmencing September 30, 2000, and on the lasbfdegch calendar quarter thereafter, and
on the Line Maturity Date. The rate set forth abekall be adjusted in accordance with the Line refd@ Pricing Grid as of the first day of 1
month following receipt of Borrower's financial sgments as required under this Agreement.

(i) Borrower Letter of Credit Fees. In the eveny@orrower Letters of Credit are issued for thecumt of Borrower, Borrower shall pay to
the Agent , for the ratable benefit of the Lendét¥with respect to each Borrower Letter of Creditch is a commercial letter of credit, a-
at issuance equal to one quarter of one percesto].&f the Borrower Letter of Credit amount pluliaa fee of $125.00 for each commercial
letter of credit without negotiation and a fee upagotiation equal to one quarter of one perc@3®4) of the drawn amount plus a flat fee of
$100.00 for each commercial letter of credit widgatiation, and (2) with respect to each Borrowettér of Credit which is a standby lette
credit, a per annum fee equal to the Interest Ratgin above LIBOR set forth in the Line of CreBiticing Grid then applicable and
multiplied by the face amount of such standby tetfecredit.

(d) Term Loan Commitment Fees. Borrower shall maggent a non-refundable commitment fee for eacthefTerm Loans as set forth
below, which fee shall be due and payable in foltlee date on which the applicable Term Loan isenad

-- Term Loan A: $11,900.00
-- Term Loan B: $16,100.00
-- Term Loan C: $32,000.00
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(e) Letter of Credit Facility Fee. Borrower shadlypto Agent a Letter of Credit Facility fee (foséif) in an amount equal to one and one-
quarter of one percent (1.25%) per annum of thee&t&mount of the Letter of Credit, payable annuah each anniversary of the Date of
Issuance, until the earlier of the termination xpigation of the Letter of Credit Facility, whicled shall be norefundable even if the Letter
Credit is terminated or canceled before its statqaration date.

(f) Computation and Payment. All interest and feleall be computed on the basis of a 360-day yetuabdays elapsed. Interest determined
in relation to the Reference Rate or the Treasatg Rhall be payable on the first (1st) day of eaohth. Interest determined in relation to
LIBOR shall be payable on the last day of the FiRade Term to which such interest rate appliesvigeal that if such Fixed Rate Term is for
six (6) months, on the first (1st) day of the fougdth) month of such Fixed Rate Term and on theday of such Fixed Rate Term.

SECTION 2.6 CONVERSION OF INTEREST OPTIONS.

() Election. Subject to the minimum dollar reqmients set forth in Section 2.5(a) hereof, (i) at time any portion of the Line of Credit or
any of the Term Loans bear interest determineélation to the Reference Rate, Borrower may coraledr any portion thereof so that it
bears interest determined in relation to LIBORdd¥ixed Rate Term designated by Borrower, ana{igny time any portion of the Line of
Credit or the Term Loan bears interest determingelation to LIBOR, Borrower may convert all opartion thereof at the end of the Fixed
Rate Term applicable thereto so that it bearséstatetermined in relation to the Reference Rate mlation to LIBOR for a new Fixed Rate
Term designated by Borrower. In addition, Borrowey elect to convert any Term Loan to a fixed esjgal to the Treasury Rate as set forth
in Section 2.5(b). If Borrower has not made theunexgl interest rate conversion or continuation t@ecprior to the last day of any Fixed Rate
Term, Borrower shall be deemed to have made a &eferRate interest selection for the amounts tbat wubject thereto.

(b) Notice to Agent. Borrower, through one of itathAorized Representatives, shall request eaclhesttesite conversion or continuation by
giving Agent irrevocable written notice or telepimnotice (confirmed promptly in writing), in therdm of Exhibit E attached hereto (a
"Notice of Conversion or Continuation™), which sgis, among other things:

(i) the Credit to which such Notice applies;
(i) the principal amount which is the subject ath conversion or continuation;
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(iii) the proposed date of such conversion or eardtion, which shall be a Business Day;
(iv) and if such Notice pertains to a LIBOR intdrsslection, the length of the applicable FixedeRegrm.

Any such Notice of Conversion or Continuation mustreceived by Agent not later than 10:00 a.meadtlone (1) Business Day prior to the
effective date of any Reference Rate interest 8efeand (ii) at least three (3) Business Daysmio the effective date of any LIBOR inter
selection; provided however, that Agent, at itegbbcretion, may permit interest rate conversiocomtinuation requests to be made by
telephone (confirmed promptly in writing) and o ttame day for a Reference Rate interest seleétgmamt shall promptly notify each
Lender of the contents of each such Notice of Csiwe or Continuation, or if timely notice is netceived from Borrower prior to the last
day of any Fixed Rate Term of the automatic corigaref the amounts subject thereto to the Refer&ate interest option.

SECTION 2.7 OTHER PAYMENT TERMS.

(a) Automatic Debit. Agent shall, and Borrower hsrauthorizes Agent to, debit any deposit accofiBasrower with Agent (including the
Reimbursement Deposit Account described in Se@i@rhereof) for all payments of principal, interastl fees as they become due on any of
the Credits. At least one Business Day prior to suh debit of a deposit account of Borrower, Agdratll provide a written statement of all
amounts to be debited. Should, for any reason whaés, the funds in any such deposit account héfio®nt to pay all principal, interest
and/or fees when due, Borrower shall, immediatplgrudemand, remit to Agent the full amount of anghsdeficiency.

(b) Place and Manner. Borrower shall make all payidue to each Lender under the Loan Documengaipyment to Agent at Agent's
Office, for the account of such Lender, in lawfubmey of the United States and in same day or imatelg available funds not later than
12:00 noon Pacific Standard time on the date dgenfshall promptly disburse to each Lender at feetder's Applicable Lending Office
each such payment received by Agent for such Lender

(c) Date. Whenever any payment due hereunder fsitiadlue on a day other than a Business Day, sagimpnt shall be made on the next
succeeding Business Day, and such extension ofdirak be included in the computation of intereste@s, as the case may be.

(d) Default Interest Rate. Notwithstanding any camnt provision of this Agreement or any Note, uplo@ occurrence and during the
continuance of any Event of Default, interest shafirue on the outstanding principal balance of.the

-26-



of Credit and each of the Term Loans at an incetagte per annum (computed on the basis of a Wez6Gdays for the actual number of

days elapsed) equal to two percent (2%) aboveatieeof interest from time to time applicable tols@redit, and on the outstanding principal
balance of the Letter of Credit Facility at an eased rate per annum (computed on the basis @fra§/860 days for the actual number of
days elapsed) equal to five percent (5%) abov&#ference Rate in effect from time to time. Borrowgrees that an Event of Default will
cause the Agent to incur additional expense inisieky the Credits, that the Agent is entitled tondaes for the detriment caused thereby, that
such damages are extremely difficult and impratt@ascertain, and that application of the abosfaudlt interest rates to the amounts owing
by Borrower under the Loan Documents is a reasenadtimate of such damages to Agent.

(e) Application of Payments. All payments under ltoan Documents (including prepayments) shall h@ieg first to unpaid fees, costs and
expenses then due and payable under this Agreeandrthe other Loan Documents, second to accrueckesttthen due and payable under
Loan Documents, and finally to reduce the outstaggirincipal amount of such Credits. Subject toghmvisions of Section 3.2, if no Event
of Default has occurred and is continuing, Agertisisubject to the preceding sentence, applyathgents to be applied to Borrower's
obligations as directed by Borrower. If an EvenDeffault has occurred and is continuing or if Bereo fails to direct application, Agent sh
apply such payments as determined by it in itsreigm.

(f) Failure to Pay Agent. Unless Agent shall haseeived notice from Borrower at least one (1) BesenDay prior to the date on which any
payment is due to the Lenders hereunder that Bemrawill not make such payment in full, Agent magw@ase that Borrower has made such
payment in full to Agent on such date and Agent nirayeliance upon such assumption, cause to hehdited to each Lender on such due
date an amount equal to the amount then due suuttetelf and to the extent Borrower shall not hmagle such payment in full to Agent,
such Lender shall repay to Agent forthwith on dechsinch amount distributed to such Lender togetliger mterest thereon, for each day fr
the date such amount is distributed to such Lendgrthe date such Lender repays such amount enfA@t the Federal Funds Rate. A
certificate of Agent submitted to any Lender wiglspect to any amounts owing by such Lender undestction 2.7(f) shall be presumptive
evidence of such amounts.

SECTION 2.8 PREPAYMENT.

(a) Optional Prepayments. Borrower may, throughafritss Authorized Representatives and upon at Igasne (1) Business Day's prior
written notice to Agent if interest is determinedélation to the Reference Rate, or (ii) threeB@%iness Days' prior written notice to Ager
interest is determined in relation to
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LIBOR, prepay the outstanding amount of the Lin€oddit or any Term Loan in whole or in part, withgremium or penalty, except as
required by Section 2.13 hereof. Partial prepaymehany portion of the Line of Credit or any Tewan shall be in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000 and in integral multiples of $100,000.

(b) Application of Term Loan Prepayments. All opiid prepayments on any of the Term Loans purswaséttion 2.8(a) shall be applied pro
rata to reduce principal then outstanding.

SECTION 2.9 FUNDING.

(a) Lender Funding and Disbursement. Each Lenddl, sfefore 11:00 a.m. (San Francisco time) ordie of each borrowing under the L
of Credit or under any of the Term Loans, makelate to Agent at Agent's Office, in same day omietdliately available funds, such
Lender's Proportionate Share thereof. After Agemteipt of such funds and upon fulfillment of #pplicable conditions set forth in Article
hereof, Agent will promptly disburse such fundsame day or immediately available funds to Borrowkless otherwise directed by
Borrower in writing, Agent shall disburse the preds of each borrowing to Borrower by deposit to desnand deposit account maintained
by Borrower with Agent.

(b) Lender's Failure to Fund. Unless Agent shalieh@ceived notice from a Lender on or prior todage of any borrowing under the Line of
Credit or any of the Term Loans that such Lenddéirneit make available to Agent such Lender's Prbpoate Share thereof, Agent may
assume that such Lender has made such portiorableatb Agent on the date of such borrowing in at@oce with Section 2.9(a) hereof, and
Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, makéadble to Borrower (or otherwise disburse) ontsdate a corresponding amount. If ¢
Lender does not make the amount of its Proporte8aiare of any borrowing available to Agent ondate of such borrowing, such Lender
shall pay to Agent, on demand, interest which stadfue on such amount until made available to Agerates equal to (i) the daily Federal
Funds Rate during the period from the date of iarhowing through the third Business Day thereafied (ii) thereafter, the Reference Rate
in effect from time to time. A certificate of Agestibmitted to any Lender with respect to any amoamtingunder this Section 2.9(b) shall
presumptive evidence of such amounts. If any Leéad@oportionate Share of any borrowing is notict made available to Agent by such
Lender within three (3) Business Days after the dditsuch borrowing, Borrower shall pay to Agemt,demand, an amount equal to such
Proportionate Share together with interest therfmrgach day from the date such amount was maaiéabie to Borrower until the date such
amount is repaid to Agent, at the rate of intetiesh applicable thereto.

(c) Lenders' Obligations Several. The obligatiorath Lender hereunder is several. The failurepfL&nder to make available its
Proportionate
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Share of any borrowing shall not relieve any othemder of its obligation hereunder to do so ondaee requested, but no Lender shall be
responsible for the failure of any other Lendemtake available the Proportionate Share to be fubgiesiich other Lender.

SECTION 2.10 PRO RATA TREATMENT.

(a) Borrowings. Except as otherwise provided her@ireach extension of credit under any Creditldf@made or shared among the Lenders
pro rata according to their respective Proportier&ttares in such Credit, and

(i) each payment of principal of and interest@es$ on a Credit shall be made or shared amongetheelts pro rata according to the respe«
unpaid principal amounts of such Credit held byhsuenders.

(b) Sharing of Payments, Etc. If any Lender shilam any payment (whether voluntary, involuntarytherwise) on account of a Credit in
excess of its ratable share of payments on acafsutch Credit obtained by all Lenders entitlediwch payments, such Lender shall forth
purchase from the other Lenders sufficient paritigns in such Credit as shall be necessary taeddgspurchasing Lender's interest in the
Credit to be equivalent to the excess paymentvedeprovided however, that if all or any portidnsach excess payment is thereafter
recovered from such purchasing Lender, such puecbiaall be rescinded and each other Lender skl the purchasing Lender the
purchase price to the extent of such recovery begetith an amount equal to such other Lender&btatshare (according to the proportion of
(i) the amount of such other Lender's requiredyepnt to (ii) the total amount so recovered from plurchasing Lender) of any interest or
other amount paid or payable by the purchasing eemdrespect of the total amount so recoveredid®aer agrees that any Lender so
purchasing a participation from another Lender pams to this Section 2.10(b) may, to the fulledeak permitted by law, exercise all its
rights of payment (but not including any right etaff) with respect to such participation as fudlyif such Lender were the direct creditor of
Borrower in the amount of such participation.

SECTION 2.11 CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES.

() Inability to Determine Rate. If Agent at anmé shall determine that adequate and reasonablesndeanot exist for ascertaining LIBOR,
or the Majority Lenders shall determine at any tiimet LIBOR does not accurately reflect the codténders of making or maintaining
LIBOR interest rates hereunder, then Agent shak ¢glephonic notice (promptly confirmed in writ)nig Borrower and each Lender of such
determination. If such notice is given, and untitls notice has been withdrawn in writing by Age¢hén no LIBOR interest option may be
selected by Borrower and any portion of any Credliich bears interest determined in relation to LBB@ubsequent to the end of the Fixed
Rate Term applicable thereto, shall bear

-29-



interest determined in relation to the Reference Rarsuant to the terms and conditions of thise&grent.

(b) lllegality: Termination of Commitment. Notwitteding any other provisions herein, if any Chaofjeaw shall make it unlawful for any
Lender (i) to make a LIBOR interest rate available(ii) to maintain LIBOR interest rates hereundben, in the former event, any obligation
of Lenders hereunder to make available such unlawBOR interest rate shall forthwith be canceladd in the latter event, any such
unlawful LIBOR interest rate then outstanding shalihe option of Agent be converted so that irgieieedetermined in relation to the
Reference Rate pursuant to the terms of this Ageaenprovided however, if any such Change in Ldva)lgpermit a LIBOR interest rate ur
the expiration of the Fixed Rate Term relating ¢herthen such permitted LIBOR interest rate staditinue as such until the end of such
Fixed Rate Term. With respect to any outstandimgcfal amount as to which such LIBOR interest rateonverted to a lower rate in
accordance with the foregoing terms and provisiBasfower agrees to pay to Agent, for the bendfaach Lender, as appropriate, the
amount of any increase in cost or expense to theldrs.

(c) Charges: lllegality. Upon the occurrence of amgnt described in Section 2.11(b) hereof, Borrashall pay to Agent, for the benefit of
each Lender, as appropriate, such amount or amaesntgy be necessary to compensate such Lendanfdines, fees, changes, penalties or
other amounts payable by such Lender as a resuttaghand which are attributable to LIBOR intemadéés made available to Borrower
hereunder. In determining which amounts payablaryyLender and/or losses incurred by any Lendeatributable to LIBOR interest rates
made available to Borrower hereunder, any reaseraldcation made by any Lender among its operatibrall be conclusive and binding
upon Borrower provided Lender provides Borrowelhvétstatement setting forth in reasonable detah sumount and the reasonable
calculation thereof.

(d) Charges: Change of Law. If, after the datenef Agreement, any Change of Law:

(i) shall subject any Lender to any tax, duty drestcharge with respect to any LIBOR interest rateshall change the basis of taxation of
payments by Borrower to any Lender of principaieiast, fees or any other amount payable hereyrgeept for changes in the rate of
taxation on the overall net income of any Lendguased by the jurisdiction of such Lender's incogtion or by any jurisdiction in which its
Applicable Lending Office is located); or

(i) shall impose, modify or hold applicable angeeve, special deposit, compulsory loan or simmédguirement against assets
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held by, deposits or other liabilities in or foethccount of, advances or loans by, or any ottaarisition of funds by any Lender; or
(iii) shall impose on any Lender any other conditwith respect to its performance hereunder;

and the effect of any of the foregoing is to inseethe cost to such Lender of making, renewingantaining any LIBOR interest rate
hereunder or to reduce any amount receivable hy lsemder in connection therewith, then Borrowelllsipay to Agent, on behalf of each
Lender, as appropriate, such amount or amountsagsmnecessary to reimburse such Lender for sichdased costs or to compensate such
Lender for such reduced amounts. A certificateodbé amount of such increased costs or reducedmsiaelivered by such Lender to
Borrower (which delivery shall be through AgentaBhin the absence of manifest error, be conckusind binding on Borrower for all
purposes provided Lender provides Borrower witkagesnent setting forth in reasonable detail suchwuarhand the reasonable calculation
thereof.

(e) Capital Requirements. If any Lender shall hde&rmined that any Change of Law regarding capdafjuacy which occurs after the
Closing Date hereof has or shall have the effectdficing the rate of return on the capital of suehder (or any entity controlling such
Lender) as a consequence of such Lender's obligatiereunder to a level below that which such Lendsuch entity would have achieved
but for such Change of Law (taking into considemasuch Lender's or such entity's policies witlpees to capital adequacy), by an amount
deemed by such Lender to be material, then frora totime, within fifteen (15) days after presegtastatement setting forth in reasonable
detail such amount and the reasonable calculdtieretf. Borrower shall pay to Agent, for the benefisuch Lender such amounts set forth
therein which shall compensate such Lender for sedhction.

SECTION 2.12 TAXES ON PAYMENTS.

(a) Payments Free of Taxes. All payments made byoB@r under the Loan Documents shall be madeanekeclear of, and without
deduction or withholding for or on account of, gmgsent or future income, stamp or other taxegg$evmposts, duties, charges, fees,
deductions or withholdings, now or hereafter imghsevied, collected, withheld or assessed by aoyeBhrmental Authority (except net
income taxes imposed on Agent or any Lender) (alitsuch non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, dutikarges, fees, deductions and
withholdings relating to the payments made hereubdiag hereinafter referred to herein as "Taxdé9ny Taxes are required to be withh
from any amounts payable to Agent or any Lendeeutite Loan Documents, the amounts so payable émt?@ such Lender shall be
increased to the extent necessary to yield to Agestich Lender (after payment of all Taxes) irgeog any such other amounts payable
hereunder at the rates or in the amounts spedifidte Loan Documents. Whenever any such
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Taxes are payable by Borrower, as promptly as plestiereafter, Borrower shall send to Agent, ferown account or for the account of s
Lender, as the case may be, a certified copy ofriginal official receipt received by Borrower shiogy payment thereof. If Borrower fails to
pay any Taxes when due to the appropriate taxitigoaity or fails to remit to Agent the required eguts or other required documentary
evidence, Borrower shall indemnify Agent and thaders for any incremental taxes, interest or pexsaihat may become payable by Agent
or any Lender as a result of any such failure. dgnre@ements in this Section 2.12(a) shall survieedhmination of this Agreement for a pel
not to exceed the lesser of the applicable statuienitations or twenty-four months.

(b) Withholding Exemption Certificates. Each Lendgrees that it will deliver to Borrower and Agempon the reasonable request of
Borrower or Agent, either (i) a statement thas itnicorporated under the laws of the United Statésmerica or a state thereof, or (ii) if it is
not so incorporated, two duly completed copies oitéd States Internal Revenue Service Form 100224 or successor applicable form, as
the case may be, certifying in each case that kanber is entitled to receive payments under tlijgeAment without deduction or
withholding of any United States federal incomestax

SECTION 2.13 FUNDING LOSS INDEMNIFICATION.

(a) LIBOR. If Borrower shall (a) repay or prepayaortion of a Credit which bears interest deteediin relation to LIBOR on any day otl
than the last day of the Fixed Rate Term therefdrether an optional prepayment, a mandatory prepaym payment upon acceleration or
otherwise),

(b) fail to borrow any such portion of a Credit f@hich a Notice of Borrowing has been deliveredent (whether as a result of the failure
to satisfy any applicable conditions or otherwige)(c) fail to convert or continue at the LIBORérest option any portion of a Credit in
accordance with a Notice of Conversion or Contiimnatielivered to Agent (whether as a result offtilire to satisfy any applicable
conditions or otherwise), Borrower shall, concutneith Borrower's repayment pursuant to the foragpreimburse Agent on behalf of each
Lender, as appropriate, and hold such Lender hasnite all costs and losses incurred by such Leasl@rresult of such repayment,
prepayment or failure. Borrower understands thehsiosts and losses may include, without limitatloases incurred by a Lender as a result
of funding and other contracts entered into by dusider to fund any LIBOR portion of any Credit.cdd_ender demanding payment under
this Section 2.13 shall, in accordance with thedoing, deliver to Agent for delivery to Borrowecertificate setting forth the amount of
costs and losses for which demand is made. Borrehadt have the right to review and confirm any amtalleged to be owing and any
calculation relating thereto. The agreements is 8gction 2.13 shall survive the termination of thgreement.
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(b) Treasury Rate. If Borrower shall repay or psepay portion of a Credit which bears intereshat Treasury Rate on any day other than the
last day of its term (whether an optional prepaytn@mandatory prepayment, a payment upon accelerat otherwise), Borrower shall pay
to such Lender the "prepayment indemnity" moreipalerly described on Schedule 2.13(b).

SECTION 2.14 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. On the €llgy Date, and from time to time subsequent theaeBorrower's option,
Borrower shall deliver to Agent a written noticetle form of Exhibit F attached hereto (each, atl¢éoof Authorized Representatives"),
which designates by name each of Borrower's AutkdrRepresentatives and includes each of theiecdgp specimen signatures. Agent
shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the auiyoof each officer or employee designated as athérized Representative in the most
current Notice of Authorized Representatives deéideby Borrower to Agent, to request borrowings seléct interest rate options hereunder,
and to give to Agent such other notices are asifsg@tierein as being made through one of Borraswiuthorized Representatives, until such
time as Borrower has delivered to Agent, and Adgestactual receipt of, a new written Notice of Authed Representatives. Agent shall
have no duty or obligation to Borrower to verifyetauthenticity of any signature appearing on angiddaf Borrowing, Notice of Conversion
or Continuation or any other written notice fromAunthorized Representative or to verify the autiugytof any person purporting to be an
Authorized Representative giving any telephonidagopermitted hereby.

SECTION 2.15 COLLATERAL.

(a) Personal Property Collateral and Contract @aigd. As security for all indebtedness of Borrowetenders pursuant to this Agreemen
of the Closing Date Borrower grants to Agent, for benefit of Lenders, a security interest of fmsority in the Personal Property Collateral.

(b) Real Property Collateral. As additional segufitr all indebtedness of Borrower to Lenders parguo this Agreement, as of the Closing
Date Borrower grants to Agent, for the benefit ehters (but only to the extent that a Lender HRsoportional Share in any of the Term
Loans), (i) a lien of first priority in the Monterd®ark Property and all improvements thereon wedpect to Term Loan A, (ii) a lien of first
priority in the EI Monte Property and all improvent& thereon with respect to Term Loan B, (iii)enliof second priority in the Monterey
Park Property and all improvements thereon witpeesto Term Loan C, and (iv) a lien of second nitjan the EI Monte Property and all
improvements thereon with respect to Term LoanuBjext solely to such exceptions to title as Agahatll deem acceptable.
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(c) Cross-Collateralization and Cross-Default. Barer acknowledges that the Lenders have made #éwit€to Borrower upon the security

of Borrower's collective interests in the Collatexad in reliance upon the Collateral taken togeb®ng of greater value as collateral security
than the sum of the Collateral taken separatelyrd®eer agrees that the Security Agreements arendlhtle cross-collateralized and cross-
defaulted with each other so that (i) an Event efddIt under any Security Agreement shall congtiut Event of Default under each of the
other Security Agreements; (ii) an Event of Defaultler any Note or this Agreement shall constituté=vent of Default under each Security
Agreement; and (iii) each Deed of Trust shall sedhe obligations evidenced by all of the Notes assingle blanket lien were placed on all
of the Collateral as security for such obligatipnsvided that to the extent that a Lender doesawé a Proportional Share in a particular
Credit hereunder, such Lender's security intereiié Collateral for such Credit shall be subortdirend second in priority to the pro rata
security interests of the Lenders having Propodi@hares in such Credit(s).

(d) Documentation; Fees. All of the foregoing stlevidenced by and subject to the terms of ticements described in Section 5.1 hereof.
Borrower shall fully cooperate with Agent and penficall additional acts reasonably requested by Ageany Lender to effect the purposes
of this

Section 2.15. Borrower shall reimburse Agent, imiatedy upon demand, for all reasonable costs apémses incurred by Agent in
connection with any of the foregoing security, udihg filing and recording fees and costs of insjppas, expert opinions, appraisals, and
audits.

SECTION 2.16 GUARANTIES. One hundred percent (10@¥%¢he principal amount of the Credits plus onadred percent (100%) of all
accrued interest, late charges, attorney's feested charges arising under the Credits, shalinm®nditionally guaranteed by each of the
Guarantors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lendgeas that American Xtal Technology (Hong Kong) agtk Optronics Ltd. (UK) shall t
released at such time as Borrower has provided tAgig satisfactory evidence that such Guarantarelceased all operations and have no
assets.

ARTICLE 1l

PAYMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS
AND THE LETTER OF CREDIT

SECTION 3.1 ANNUAL REDEMPTION OF BONDS.

Borrower covenants to take all necessary actiqgrépay the loan and cause optional redemptionseoBbnds pursuant to Article IV of the
Indenture and this Section 3.1 at a price equtid@rincipal amount of the Bonds to be redeenuggkther with accrued interest to the
redemption date, on the Bond Interest Payment
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Date for December of each year, commencing witiBitved Interest Payment Date for the month of Deeam2000. The principal amount of
Bonds to be redeemed on each such December BarédhPayment Date is set forth on Schedule 2a3@)hed hereto.

SECTION 3.2 REIMBURSEMENT DEPOSIT ACCOUNT. Borronagrees to maintain an interest-bearing depostiattan Borrower's

name with U.S. Bank (the "Reimbursement Depositodiot”), which shall be pledged to Agent as secddtyBorrower's performance of its
obligations under this Agreement. Borrower agreedaposit into the Reimbursement Deposit Accourd amonthly basis, three (3) Business
Days before the Bond Interest Payment Date for sumhth, until the earlier to occur of (x) the easli date on which both no further demands
may be made for a drawing under the Letter of Graniil all amounts due to Agent or any Lender utiderAgreement in respect of the Le

of Credit have been paid in full, or (y) the Expiva Date (such earlier date, the "Termination Daten amount equal to the sum of (i) the
next monthly interest payment that Borrower is gdiléd to make under the Indenture and (ii) the lsstaihonthly amount that, if deposited

by Borrower into the Reimbursement Deposit Accaatth month during the year commencing on the datedast annual principal
redemption of the Bonds, would be sufficient to tngleen due the next annual principal redemptiothefBonds as required under Section
3.1 hereof.

SECTION 3.3 OTHER OPTIONAL REDEMPTIONS OF BONDS.t\Withstanding any contrary provision of this Agresmh any optional
redemption of the Bonds under the Indenture otiem the optional redemptions required by Secti@nabove, shall require the advance
written consent of Agent (which consent shall reulnreasonably withheld), and Agent's receipt béfsectory evidence of Borrower's ability
to reimburse Agent and Lenders for any drawing utte Letter of Credit for such redemption.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Except as set forth in Schedules 4.5-4.16 herb"@isclosure Schedule"), the parts of which anminered according to the relevant
Sections of this Agreement, Borrower makes thevailhg representations and warranties to Agent artlers, which representations and
warranties shall survive the execution of this Agnent and shall continue in full force and effedtilithe full and final payment, and
satisfaction and discharge, of all obligations off®wer to Lenders and Agent under this Agreement.
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SECTION 4.1 LEGAL STATUS. Borrower is a corporatiatuly organized and existing and in good standinder the laws of the State of
Delaware, each of Borrower and each Guarantoratifepd or licensed to do business in California a&nin good standing as a foreign
corporation in California, and is qualified or Iised to do business (and is in good standing aeayh corporation, if applicable) in all other
jurisdictions in which such qualification or liceng is required or in which the failure to so qbabr to be so licensed could have a Mate
Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.2 AUTHORIZATION AND VALIDITY. The executin, delivery and performance by each of Borrowel @ach Guarantor of
the Loan Documents to which it is a party have bdhdy authorized, and upon their execution andveeji in accordance with the provisions
hereof such Loan Documents will constitute legalidzand binding agreements and obligations of 8sar and such Guarantor, enforceable
in accordance with their respective terms, exceptugh enforceability may be limited by bankruptogplvency, reorganization, moratorium
or other laws or equitable principles relating tdimiting creditors' rights generally or the aadillity of equitable remedies.

SECTION 4.3 NO VIOLATION. The execution, delivergéiperformance by Borrower of each of the Loan Deents to which it is a party
do not (a) to Borrower's knowledge, violate anyvision of any applicable law or regulation,

(b) contravene any provision of the Certificatdraforporation or By-Laws of Borrower, (c) resultarbreach of, or constitute a default under,
any contract, obligation, indenture or other instemt, or, any judgment, injunction, order or decteavhich Borrower is a party or by which
Borrower or any of its respective property may bari, or (d) result in or require the creationroposition of any lien, security interest or
other charge or encumbrance upon or with respestygroperty of Borrower except in favor of Agent_enders.

SECTION 4.4 NO ADDITIONAL APPROVALS. No further appval, authorization, consent, order, notice tdilarg or registration with an
governmental authority or any public board or badlegally required with respect to the executidsljvery or performance by Borrower of
the Loan Documents to which it is a party wheref#ilere to obtain such approval could reasonablyeha Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.5 LITIGATION. There are no pending, oithe best of Borrower's knowledge threatened, astiolaims, investigations, suits or
proceedings by or before any governmental authaaityitrator, court or administrative agency whichuld reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.
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SECTION 4.6 CORRECTNESS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT. Thadited consolidated financial statements of Beerdated as of
December 31, 1999, and the unaudited interim cafeteld financial statements of Borrower dated dglafch 31, 2000, heretofore delivered
by Borrower to Agent, (a) are complete and coragxt present fairly the financial condition of Bamer as of the date thereof; (b) disclose all
liabilities of Borrower that are required to beleefed or reserved against under GAAP, whetherdafed or unliquidated, fixed or
contingent; and (c) have been prepared in accoedaitb GAAP. Since the date of such financial staets there has been no material
adverse change in the financial condition of Bomgwor has Borrower mortgaged, pledged or graateeturity interest in or otherwise
encumbered any of its assets or properties exsgpem=nitted by this Agreement or as disclosed bydeer to Agent in the Disclosure
Schedule.

SECTION 4.7 INCOME TAX RETURNS. Except to the exteavered by legally permitted and validly filedtensions, Borrower has filed
all United States federal income tax returns, stateeturns and all other material tax returnsolhii is required to file, and have paid all
taxes due pursuant to such returns or pursuamyt@ssessment received by them, except for thdeg betively contested in good faith. The
charges, accruals and reserves on the books ob\Berrin respect of taxes or other governmentalggsaare, in the opinion of Borrower or
independent certified public accountants, adeqidgower has no knowledge of any pending assessnoeadjustments of the income tax
paid or payable by Borrower with respect to anyryea

SECTION 4.8 NO SUBORDINATION. There is no agreemémdenture, contract or instrument to which Boreowr any Guarantor is a
party or by which Borrower or any Guarantor maybbend that requires the subordination in right@fmpent of any of Borrower's or such
Guarantor's or such other Person's obligationsesuly this Agreement to any other obligation offBwer or such Guarantor or such other
Person.

SECTION 4.9 PERMITS, FRANCHISES. Borrower possesard will hereafter possess, all permits, frarehsnd licenses required and
rights to all trademarks, trade names, patentdiatitious names, if any, necessary to enable @doduct the business in which it is now
engaged in compliance with applicable law.

SECTION 4.10 ERISA. Borrower and each Guarantar tompliance in all material respects with all kgable provisions of ERISA; neith
Borrower nor any Guarantor has violated any provigif any Plan maintained or contributed to by Bawer or such Guarantor or such other
Person; no Reportable Event as defined in ERISAobasrred and is continuing with respect to anynRtétiated by Borrower or any
Guarantor; each of Borrower and each Guarantontests minimum funding requirements under ERISAhwespect to each Plan; and each

-37-



Plan will be able to fulfill its benefit obligati@nas they come due in accordance with the Planndests and under GAAP.

SECTION 4.11 OTHER OBLIGATIONS. To the best of Bower's knowledge, neither Borrower nor any Guarnaistin default on any
obligation for borrowed money, any purchase mongigation or any other material lease, commitmeantract, instrument or obligation.

SECTION 4.12 GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS. Neither Borremnor any Guarantor is subject to regulation umldednvestment
Company Act of 1940, the Federal Power Act, therstate Commerce Act, the Public Utility Holdingr@many Act of 1935 or any federal
state statute or regulation limiting its abilityit@ur indebtedness for money borrowed.

SECTION 4.13 SECURITIES ACTIVITIES. Neither Borroweor any Guarantor is engaged principally, or e of its important activities,

in the business of extending credit for the purpafgeurchasing or carrying any margin stock (asreef within Regulations G, T and U of the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systeng) not more than twenty-five percent (25%) ofithkie of Borrower's or any
Guarantor's assets consists of such margin stock.

SECTION 4.14 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS. Except as setth on the Disclosure Schedule hereto, each ofoBar and each Guaran

is in compliance in all material respects withagplicable Federal and state environmental, harard@aste, health and safety statutes, and
any rules or regulations adopted pursuant thevetah govern or affect any of Borrower's or any @Gurior's operations and/or properties,
including the Comprehensive Environmental Respo@isejpensation and Liability Act of 1980, the Supad Amendments and
Reauthorization Act of 1986, the Federal Resourmes€rvation and Recovery Act of 1976, the FedenalcTSubstances Control Act and the
California Health and Safety Code, as any of theesenay be amended, modified or supplemented frora to time. None of the operations
of Borrower or any Guarantor is the subject of &aderal or state investigation evaluating whethmsr @medial action involving a material
expenditure is needed to respond to a releaseydbait or hazardous waste or substance into thé@mment. To Borrower's knowledge,
neither Borrower nor any Guarantor has any matedatingent liability in connection with any releasf any toxic or hazardous waste or
substance into the environment.

SECTION 4.15 REAL PROPERTY COLLATERAL. Except a$ f®th in Schedule 4.15 hereto, with respect ®Real Property Collateral:

(a) All taxes, governmental assessments, insunareeaiums, and water, sewer and municipal chargebsrents (if any) which previously
became (or
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without payment before the date hereof would hamne) delinquent in respect thereof have beengsagd the date hereof;

(b) There are no mechanics' or similar liens ointsawhich have been filed for work, labor or ma&fand no rights are outstanding that
under law could give rise to any such lien) whiffee all or any interest in any such real propenty which are or may be prior to or equ:
the lien thereon in favor of Agent;

(c) To Borrower's knowledge, none of the improvetaerhich were included for purpose of determining &appraised value of any such real
property lie outside of the boundaries and/or bogdestriction lines thereof, and no improvememisadjoining properties materially
encroach upon any such real property; and

(d) There is no pending, or to the best of Borrdsvienowledge threatened, proceeding for the totpbatial condemnation of all or any
portion of any such real property, and all such peaperty is in good repair and free and cleaamf damage that would materially and
adversely affect the value thereof as securityarttie intended use thereof.

SECTION 4.16 SUBSIDIARIES. Borrower does not owly atock or equity interest in any corporation drestentity, other than those listed
on the Disclosure Schedule hereto.

SECTION 4.17 TRUTH, ACCURACY OF INFORMATION. All fiancial and other information furnished to Agenany Lender in
connection with this Agreement is true and corescof the date hereof and does not contain anyeistatement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary in order to makénflormation furnished, in light of the circumstas under which furnished, not misleading.

ARTICLE V
CONDITIONS

SECTION 5.1 CONDITIONS OF INITIAL EXTENSION OF CRHD. The obligation of Lenders to extend any cregintemplated by this
Agreement is subject to the fulfillment to Agersiaisfaction of all of the following conditions:

(a) Approval of Agent's Counsel. All legal mattersidental to the extension of credit hereundetl dfesatisfactory to counsel for Agent.
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(b) Documentation. Agent shall have received, imf@and substance satisfactory to Agent, each ofolfeving duly executed:
(i) This Agreement and the Notes.
(if) Guaranty from each Guarantor as required bgtiSe 2.16 hereof.

(iii) All Security Agreements, UCC-1 Financing Statents and other documentation from Borrower aotl ether person or entity required
by Agent for the creation, perfection and preseéovadf the personal property security interestedbed in Section 2.15(a) hereof.

(iv) All Deeds of Trust and other documentatiomfr8orrower and each other person or entity requiseéigent for the creation, perfection
and preservation of the real property securityregts described in Section 2.15(b) hereof (inclgdas deemed necessary by Agent, a
modification to the Deeds of Trust encumberingSlodar Way Property and the Technology Drive Prgpetbgether with such policies of
title insurance covering said parcels of real propéssued by companies, in amounts and in forchsubstance as Agent shall deem
acceptable.

(v) Corporate Borrowing Resolution from Borrower.

(vi) Resolution from each corporate or limited ilaip company Guarantor authorizing the execution aelivery of its respective Guaranty
and its pledge of collateral required hereunder.

(vii) Certified copies of the filed Articles of lncporation for Borrower and each corporate Guaraamtd the certificate of formation for each
limited liability company Guarantor.

(viii) Certificate of Incumbency from Borrower améch corporate or limited liability company Guatant
(i) Notice of Authorized Representatives.

(x) Evidence satisfactory to Agent certifying tladitimprovements at each of the Real Propertiesptpmuith all applicable zoning and
building laws, and all approvals, consents, licenaad permits necessary to conduct Borrower'sibasihave been obtained.

(xi) An opinion of Gray Cary Ware & Freidenrich L|.Bounsel to Borrower, in form satisfactory to Ageronfirming that the
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Loan Documents are valid, binding and enforceabkccordance with their terms, that they do noliatéany usury or other applicable laws
and that the Borrower, the Guarantors and eacheoReal Properties are in compliance with all aaidie laws.

(xii) Copies of all of Borrower's franchise agreertseand service agreements.
(xiii) Evidence of a tax service contract with &dhparty vendor which shall provide tax information the Properties.

(xiv) Copies of all material contracts, agreememd leases set forth on Schedule 5 hereto (thetf&zrCollateral”) to which Borrower or
any Guarantor is a party and assignments theredfémt as additional collateral for the Credits angf consents to such assignment or
landlord waivers as Agent may require.

(xv) Copies of the most current tax bills for eadlthe Real Properties evidencing no delinquengyayment and that such Real Property has
been segregated from all other property on theiegdgle municipal tax rolls.

(xvi) A written certification executed by Borrowand each Guarantor certifying as to the truth awdi@cy of all material facts pertinent to
the Credits and to the legal opinion describecingbove.

(xvii) Such other documents as Agent may requienmny other Section of this Agreement.

(c) Financial Statements. Agent shall have receiwefbrm and substance satisfactory to Agent amdders, audited financial statements for
Borrower for and as of the fiscal year ending Delcen81, 1999, which financial statements shalefho material adverse change in the
financial condition of Borrower from the financiaformation previously delivered to Agent.

(d) Fees and Expenses. Borrower shall have pafdesdliand invoiced costs and expenses then duegmir® the terms of this Agreement and
all Loan Costs incurred by Agent as of the Clodhage.

(e) Insurance. Borrower shall have delivered torAgvidence of insurance coverage on all Borrovaerts Guarantor's property, in form,
substance, amounts, covering risks and issuedtpaoies satisfactory to Agent, and where requiseddent, with loss payable
endorsements in favor of Agent, including policiédire and extended coverage insurance coveriadal Property Collateral, with
replacement cost and mortgagee loss payable emdensg, commercial general
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liability insurance for Borrower and each Guaramith respect to each of Borrower's and such Guaramproperties providing for limits of
not less than $5,000,000 for both injury to or Hezfta person and for property damage per occuereard such policies of insurance against
specific hazards affecting any such real propestgnay be required by governmental regulation ormAge

(f) Appraisals; Collateral Audit; and Credit ChecRgient shall have obtained, at Borrower's costgipppraisal of all Real Property
Collateral, all improvements thereon, and all Peas®roperty Collateral issued by an appraiser@abée to Agent and in form, substance
and reflecting values satisfactory to Agent, irditscretion, (B) a collateral audit of all PersoRabperty Collateral performed by a person
satisfactory to Agent and in form, substance afidgting values satisfactory to Agent, and (C)sattory credit checks on Borrower and
each Guarantor.

(9) Title Insurance. As to the El Monte Propertyl éime Monterey Park Property, Agent shall haveiveckan ALTA Policy of Title

Insurance, with such endorsements as Agent mayregdgucluding CLTA endorsements 100, 100.29, 183103.7, 104.7, 111.5, 116, 11€
116.7 and 123.2, issued by a company and in forsabstance satisfactory to Agent, in such amosidtgent shall require, insuring Agent's
lien on the EI Monte Property and the Monterey RRudperty to be of first priority, subject onlysach exceptions as Agent shall approve in
its discretion, with all costs thereof to be paydBorrower. As to the Solar Way Property and thehfmlogy Drive Property, Agent shall he
received a CLTA 110.5 modification endorsementacheof the existing Title Policies for such projeest

(h) Environmental Reports. Agent shall have obtjae Borrower's cost, a Phase | (and to the exteated necessary by Agent, a Phase
II) Environmental Site Assessment for each parE®eaal Property Collateral, and such other docuatent as Agent may reasonably
determine is necessary in order to adequatelyweaied make a determination as to the conditiorachesuch parcel of Real Property
Collateral.

(i) Material Adverse Change. There shall have heematerial adverse change, as determined by Ametiite business, operations,
properties, or financial condition of Borrower stnihie dates of the financial statements deliveseigent pursuant to Section 5.1(c).

() Engineering Survey. Agent shall have made asjgay inspection of each parcel of Real Propertijaral and if required by Agent, an
independently prepared structural and mechanigiherring report satisfactory to Agent.

(k) UCC Filings. There shall exist no UCC filinggaanst Borrower or any Guarantor which have nohteggproved by Agent, and each of
Borrower and each Guarantor, as applicable, shak ielivered to Agent such first priority UCC-1
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Financing Statements covering all Personal Profgeotiateral and Contract Collateral as Agent mayunes.

(I) Subordination Agreement. Agent shall have reegj in form and substance satisfactory to Agestylzordination agreement from the
Small Business Administration subordinating itslie the Solar Way Property to Agent's first pitiptien in the Solar Way Property or a re-
affirmation thereof consenting to the cross-coftaieation as set forth in the Loan Documents.

SECTION 5.2 CONDITIONS OF EACH EXTENSION OF CREDIThe obligation of Lenders to make each extensfareadit requested by
Borrower hereunder (including the initial extensafreredit) shall be subject to the fulfillmentAgent's satisfaction of all of the following
conditions:

(a) Compliance. The representations and warraotiegined herein and in each of the other Loan Bweus shall be true on and as of the
date of the signing of this Agreement and on the daeach extension of credit by Lenders purshargto, with the same effect as though
such representations and warranties had been nmaaledoas of each such date, and on each sucdabefault or Event of Default shall
have occurred and be continuing or shall exist,Ageint shall have received a certificate confirmiihg matters set forth in this Section 5.:
signed by a senior financial officer of Borrower.

(b) Borrowing Base. With respect to the Line of diteAgent has determined that there is availgbilitder the Borrowing Base to make the
extension of credit.

(c) Minimum Extension of Credit. The extension oédit is in the amount of at least $100,000; howge#gent in its sole discretion may m:
an extension of credit in an amount less than £0ID,

(d) Documentation. Agent shall have received aflitehal documents which may be required in conoeatvith such extension of credit.
Borrower shall pay the costs of any additional doentation, legal fees or title insurance requirgd\bent to evidence such extension of
credit and preserve the priority of the lien of 8ecurity Documents.
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ARTICLE VI
AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower covenants that so long as Lenders rem@aimatted to extend credit to Borrower pursuant teerer any liabilities (whether direct
contingent, liquidated or unliquidated) of BorrowerL_enders under any of the Loan Documents rematstanding, and until payment in full
of all obligations of Borrower subject hereto, Bower shall, unless Agent otherwise consents inngrit

SECTION 6.1 PUNCTUAL PAYMENTS. Punctually pay atigcipal, interest, fees or other liabilities dusder any of the Loan Documents
at the times and place and in the manner spedHiemrin.

SECTION 6.2 ACCOUNTING RECORDS. Maintain adequatehs and records in accordance with generally dedegccounting principles
consistently applied, and permit any representatfvigent, upon reasonable notice and during redulainess hours, to inspect, audit and
examine such books and records, to make copideafame, and to inspect the properties of BorroB@mower shall not be responsible for
the costs of more than one (1) inspection and adddbrrower's books and records in any six (6) thgreriod if an Event of Default is not
continuing during the inspection and audit.

SECTION 6.3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Provide to Ageall of the following, in form and detail satisfacgdo Agent:

(a) not later than ninety (90) days after and ahefend of each fiscal year, an audited finarste@tement of Borrower and each entity whose
financial results are consolidated with those ofrBeer for reporting purposes, prepared by a natlpmecognized certified public
accountant, to include a balance sheet, incomerstatt, statement of cash flows, reconciliationetfworth and notes to financial statements;

(b) not later than thirty (30) days prior to thedeaf each fiscal year, an annual budget for Borroweepared by Borrower, which shall inclu
three-year projections of Borrower's operations pladned capital expenditures and financial prajestfor Borrower and each entity whose
financial results are consolidated with those ofrBeer for reporting purposes for the next fiscahs;

(c) not later than forty-five (45) days after arsdad the end of each fiscal quarter, a financiafeshent of Borrower and each entity whose
financial results are consolidated with those ofrBaver for reporting purposes, prepared by Borrowemclude a balance sheet and income
statement;
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(d) not later than thirty (30) days after and athefend of each calendar month, (i) a calculaticthe Borrowing Base certified as correct |
senior financial officer of Borrower; and (ii) anaunts receivable aging and an accounts payabig;ag

(e) not later than ninety (90) days after and ahefend of each fiscal year, a financial staternéetaich Guarantor hereunder, prepared by
such Guarantor to include a balance sheet andnfpnon-individual Guarantor, an income statermamd, within thirty (30) days after filing,
copies of each such Guarantor's filed United Statdsral income tax returns, if any, for such year;

(f) contemporaneously with each annual and quarfarancial statement of Borrower required heredbygertificate of the chief financial
officer or other executive officer of Borrower tteitid financial statements are accurate, that Banrds in compliance with the financial
covenants set forth in Section 6.9 below and thertetis no Borrowing Base Deficiency as define8aation 6.16 below, and that there exists
no Event of Default nor any condition, act or ewshich, with the giving of notice or the passagéimfe or both, would constitute an Even
Default;

(g) from time to time such other information as Agmay reasonably request.

SECTION 6.4 COMPLIANCE. Preserve and maintainiamses, permits, governmental approvals, righigilgges and franchises necess
for the conduct of its business; and comply with pinovisions of all documents pursuant to whichrBeer is organized and/or which govern
Borrower's continued existence and with the requénets of all laws, rules, regulations and orderargf governmental authority applicable to
Borrower and/or its business.

SECTION 6.5 INSURANCE. Maintain and keep in forosurance of the types and in amounts customarniljeckin lines of business similar
to that of Borrower, including but not limited tiodf, extended coverage, public liability, floodpperty damage and workers' compensation,
with all such insurance carried with companies iargimounts reasonably satisfactory to Agent, arnigdeteto Agent from time to time at
Agent's request schedules setting forth all inszgahen in effect.

SECTION 6.6 FACILITIES. Keep all properties usefulinecessary to Borrower's business in good reypaircondition, ordinary wear and
tear excepted, and from time to time make necessggjirs, renewals and replacements thereto satichtproperties shall be fully and
efficiently preserved and maintained, ordinary wead tear excepted.
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SECTION 6.7 TAXES AND OTHER LIABILITIES. Pay andstiharge when due any and all indebtedness, oligatassessments and
taxes, both real or personal, including withoutitation federal and state income taxes and statdamal property taxes and assessments,
except such (a) as Borrower may in good faith csirdeas to which a bona fide dispute may arisd,(Bjpfor which Borrower has made
appropriate reserves in accordance with GAAP.

SECTION 6.8 LITIGATION. Promptly give notice in wimg to Agent of any litigation pending or threat¢enagainst Borrower with a claim
excess of $500,000.00.

SECTION 6.9 FINANCIAL CONDITION. Maintain Borrowes'financial condition as follows, based on the otidated financial statements
of Borrower and each entity whose financial resaitsconsolidated with those of Borrower for rejpgrippurposes, using generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied and usmtsistently with prior practices (except to tiveeat modified by the definitions herein):

(a) Maintain at all times a ratio of current asdetsurrent liabilities greater than or equal t85Lto 1.00.

(b) Without Agent's prior written consent, Borrovesrall not incur expenses for capital expenditimesxcess of (i) $50,000,000 for the
Borrower's fiscal year 2000, and (ii) $40,000,000the Borrower's fiscal year 2001, and (iii) thedter, such limit to be mutually approved
Borrower and Majority Lenders.

(c) Maintain at all times a Minimum Interest CovgeaRatio of 3.00 to 1:00, measured quarterly, baped the four-quarter period then
ended.

(d) Maintain, as of the end of each fiscal quactenmencing with the quarter ended September 3®@,200angible Net Worth not less than
$63,000,000.00 plus seventy-five percent (75%)atfimcome for each fiscal quarter after June 30020ithout deduction for losses, plus
100% of net equity proceeds.

(e) Maintain at all times a Fixed Charge Coveragéd=of not less than (i) 1.15 to 1.00 for the pdrirom January 1, 2000 to December 31,
2000, measured as of December 31, 2000, and Zb)tb. 1.00 measured for the most recent four hegtbquarters (excluding the current
quarter in possession), for the fiscal quarter gdin March 31, 2001 and for each fiscal quarterdfter.

(f) Maintain a ratio of Funded Debt to EBITDA natéxceed the following amounts for the four (4) seeutive fiscal quarter period ending
on the last day of each fiscal quarter during tileWing periods:
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the period from June 30, 2000, through and
including December 31, 2000 2.50t0 1.00

the period from January 1, 2001, through and
including December 31, 2001, and each fiscal 2.00to 1.00
quarter thereafter

SECTION 6.10 NOTICE TO AGENT. Promptly (but in neemt more than five (5) Business Days after Bormolexomes aware of the
occurrence of each such event or matter) giveawritiotice to Agent in reasonable detail of: (a)dbeurrence of any Event of Default, or any
condition, event or act which, with the giving aftite or the passage of time or both, would camstian Event of Default; (b) any change in
the name or the organizational structure of Borm\® the occurrence and nature of any Reportaibnt or Prohibited Transaction, each as
defined in ERISA, or any funding deficiency withspect to any Plan; or (d) any termination or cdatieh of any insurance policy which
Borrower is required to maintain, or any uninsuoegartially uninsured loss through liability oroperty damage, or through fire, theft or any
other cause affecting Borrower's property in excéss aggregate of $500,000.

SECTION 6.11 SITE VISITS; RIGHT TO STOP WORK. Agertd its agents and representatives shall havégtiteto enter and visit the
Real Property and the facilities thereon duringutegbusiness hours. In each instance, Agent ghadlBorrower reasonable notice before
entering any of the Real Property facilities theregent shall use its best efforts to reasonabtydainterfering with Borrower's use of any
Real Property facilities thereon or with Borrowdsissiness operations when exercising any of thegigranted in this Section 6.11.
Notwithstanding this Section 6.11 or any other Bimns of the Loan Documents, Borrower shall notésponsible for the cost of more tt
one (1) such visit to the Real Properties andifasithereon in any six (6) month period if an Evef Default is not continuing at the time of
the proposed visit.

SECTION 6.12 SECURITY. At all times maintain in tavof Agent perfected security interests of sudbrjiy as is designated herein in all
assets in which, under the provisions of this Agreet, Agent has or is to obtain a security intetag&e such actions (including the execution
of financing statements and fixture filings) as Ageeasonably requests to protect Agent's secimtigyests; and provide to Agent such
assurances as Agent may require as to Borrowaripl@nce herewith.

SECTION 6.13 RELATED DOCUMENTS. Comply with theres and covenants of the Related Documents to whisla party, and
Borrower
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will not amend, modify or terminate, or agree toesoh, modify or terminate, any Related Document.

SECTION 6.14 INVESTIGATIONS AND INQUIRIES. Agent drits agents and representatives shall have theaitgce per six (6) month
period (or more frequently if an Event of Defaglioutstanding) to conduct such investigations agdiries as to the credit and operations of
Borrower, each of the Guarantors and the Collatesahall be necessary in connection with the @redlid monitoring of the Credits, and
Borrower shall cooperate with Agent and provide #tggith such information reasonably requested bgmdn the exercise of such right and
pay for the cost of such inquiry.

SECTION 6.15 CONTRACT COLLATERAL. Agent shall hatree right to review any Contract Collateral.

SECTION 6.16 BORROWING BASE DEFICIENCY. If at ariyne and for any reason, Borrower delivers to Agegtiarterly compliance
certificate that shows that the outstanding unpaiiccipal balance of the Line of Credit exceedsdbgregate amount of the Borrowing Base
("Borrowing Base Deficiency"), or if at any timedafor any reason Agent gives notice to Borrowea &orrowing Base Deficiency, then
Borrower shall immediately prepay the principaldmale of the Line of Credit in an amount equal dtiference between the aggregate
outstanding principal balance of the Line of Credlitl the amount of the Borrowing Base.

SECTION 6.17 NOTICE OF CERTAIN MATTERS. Borrowerathgive notice to Agent, within ten (10) days afBower's learning thereof,
of any of the following:

(a) any disputes, litigation, investigation, prodieg or suspension that may exist at any time betvBorrower or any Guarantor and any
Governmental Agency;

(b) any threat or commencement of proceedings muemnation or eminent domain relating to any ofRleal Property Collateral;

(c) the commencement of, or any material developrimemmny litigation or proceeding relating to a@gllateral between the Borrower and (i)
any Governmental Authority, (ii) any Person haviiggnts under or in connection with any covenantsiditions, restrictions, easements or
rights-of-way affecting such Collateral, or (iiimgtenant under its lease of such Collateral, ohemse under this subsection (c) the adverse
determination of which would reasonably be expetbetiaterially and adversely affect such Collateral
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(d) upon, but in no event later than ten (10) d&fier, Borrower's becoming aware of (i) any andeafbrcement, cleanup, removal or other
governmental or regulatory actions, institutednweatened in writing against (A) Borrower that ilweopotential liability in excess of
$5,000,000 for any single action or $15,000,00théaggregate of all such actions, or (B) any efRieal Properties, pursuant to any
applicable environmental laws,

(i) all other environmental claims against (A) Bower that involve potential liability in excess $%,000,000 for any single environmental
claim or $15,000,000 in the aggregate for all seiwhironmental claims, or (B) any Real Property, éiidany environmental or similar
condition on any real property adjoining or in theinity of any Real Property that causes such Reaperty or any part thereof to be subject
to any restrictions on the ownership, occupanendferability or use of such Real Property undgrapplicable environmental laws; and

(e) any trade name hereafter used by Borrower apatlaange in Borrower's principal place of business

Each notice under this Section 6.17 shall be acemiep by a written statement by Borrower settimghfdetails of the occurrence referred to
therein, and stating what action, if any, Borroweany affected Guarantor proposes to take witheetsthereto and at what time. Each notice
under this

Section 6.17 shall describe with particularity @mg all clauses or provisions of this Agreemertdtber Loan Documents that have been
breached or violated.

ARTICLE VII
NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower further covenants that so long as Lentsrsin committed to extend credit to Borrower parguo the terms hereof or any
liabilities (whether direct or contingent, liquiéalt or unliquidated) of Borrower to Lenders or Agentler any of the Loan Documents remain
outstanding, and until payment in full of all oldigpns of Borrower subject hereto, Borrower wilt,nand will not permit any Subsidiary to,
without the prior written consent of Majority Lende

SECTION 7.1 USE OF FUNDS. Use any of the procedédsyp Credit extended hereunder except for thefdhg purposes:
(a) The purposes stated in Article Il hereof;

(b) Payment of outstanding debt owed to U.S. Ban&fdahe Closing Date, including U.S. Bank's erigtiine of credit in the amount of
$15,000,000.00 and U.S. Bank's existing bridge toaBorrower; and
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(c) Payment of the Loan Costs.

SECTION 7.2 OTHER INDEBTEDNESS. Create, incur, asswr permit to exist any indebtedness or liab#itiesulting from borrowings,
loans or advances, whether secured or unsecurédredar unmatured, liquidated or unliquidatednjar several, which in the aggregate
exceed $500,000, except

(a) the liabilities of Borrower to Lenders, or (@@rmitted Indebtedness.

SECTION 7.3 MERGER, CONSOLIDATION, ORGANIZATIONALT™RUCTURE, TRANSFER OF ASSETS. Merge into or corcatie

with any other entity; make substantial change@nature of Borrower's business as conducted the afate hereof; acquire all or
substantially all of the assets of any other ensigfl, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose abrall substantial or material portion of
Borrower's assets except in the ordinary courstes @fusiness; nor change the day to day controhaasagement of Borrower (which shall
include the resignation or termination of MorrisY&ung from his current position but shall not umé the changing of officers or employees
in the ordinary course of Borrower's business) r@eser's name, identity or organizational structyreyided, however, that the consent of
Majority Lenders will not be required for any oktforegoing that does not result in an expendiburgain to Borrower of $1,000,000 or less;
provided further, however, that Majority Lendersalhot unreasonably withhold their consent indhee of a corporate restructure of
Borrower in which Borrower is the surviving entapd ownership and control of Borrower remain suiisly unchanged.

SECTION 7.4 GUARANTIES. Guarantee or become liablany way as surety, endorser (other than as eadof negotiable instruments
deposit or collection in the ordinary course ofibhass), accommodation endorser or otherwise farplemige or hypothecate any assets of
Borrower as security for, any liabilities or obltgas of any other person or entity, except anthefforegoing in favor of Lenders and except
as any such liability constitutes Permitted Inddbess.

SECTION 7.5 LOANS, ADVANCES, INVESTMENTS. ExceptrfBermitted Investments, make any loans or advaiocesinvestments in
any person or entity in excess of $1,000,000 iretgregate in any fiscal year.

SECTION 7.6 DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS. Pay anywiilend or distribution in any fiscal year, eithardash, stock or any other
property, on Borrower's stock now or hereafter tamding in an aggregate amount that exceeds té&n)(@DBorrower's after-tax net income
for such fiscal year, nor redeem, retire, repurel@sotherwise acquire any shares of any clasoabler's stock now or hereafter
outstanding in an aggregate amount that excee@9&000 in any fiscal year.
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SECTION 7.7 PLEDGE OF ASSETS. Mortgage, pledgentgoa permit to exist a security interest in, @nliupon, all or any portion of
Borrower's assets now owned or hereafter acquésarept any of the foregoing (a) in favor of Agemt(b) Permitted Liens.

ARTICLE VI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT
SECTION 8.1 EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The occurrence of afithe following shall constitute an "Event of faelt" under this Agreement:

(a) Loan Document Payments. Borrower fails to pagmvdue any principal, interest, fees or other artsopayable under any of the Loan
Documents.

(b) Other Required Payments. Borrower fails to wagn due any required payment under the Indenture.

(c) Misrepresentation. Any financial statement entificate furnished to Agent in connection with,amy representation or warranty made by
Borrower, or any Guarantor shall prove to be inect;rfalse or misleading in any material respeactmturnished or made or when deemed
made.

(d) Other Covenants. Borrower or any Guarantos fmilperform, observe or comply with any obligatiagreement or other provision on its
part to be performed under this Agreement or ahgrdtoan Document (other than those referred subsections (a), (b) and (c) above), and
with respect to any such failure which by its natoan be cured, such failure shall continue foer@op of thirty (30) days from its occurren

(e) Other Defaults. Any event of default by Borrowe any Guarantor in the payment or performancangfobligation under the terms of any
contract or instrument (other than any of the LBaxcuments) pursuant to which Borrower or any sughr@ntor has incurred any debt or
other liability in excess of $500,000 to any persoentity (including any Lender or Agent), whicéfdult is not cured within any cure period
applicable thereto. The Event of Default under 8gstion 8.1(e) caused by the occurrence of ant@fatefault under another agreement
described in this Section 8.1(e) shall be autoraliyicured for purposes of this Agreement upondine or waiver of the event of default
under the other agreement.

() Judgment Liens or Levies. The filing of a netiof judgment lien against Borrower or any Guargriothe recording of any abstract of
judgment
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against Borrower or any Guarantor in any countylrch Borrower or such Guarantor has an interegtah property; or the service of a
notice of levy and/or of a writ of attachment oeeution or other like process, against the ass@smwower or any Guarantor; or the entry of
a judgment against Borrower or any Guarantor, arydof the foregoing shall relate to a claim or jodmt of $500,000 or more and shall
continue unstayed for a period of forty-five (4%)yd from its occurrence.

(9) Insolvency. Borrower or any Guarantor shalfeubr consent to or apply for the appointment oé@eiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator
of itself or any of its property, or shall geneydhiil to pay its debts as they become due, o shake a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors; or Borrower or any Guarantor shall élgoluntary petition in bankruptcy, or seeking gaorization, in order to effect a plan or ot
arrangement with creditors or any other relief urtle Bankruptcy Code, or under any state or Fédtlaragranting relief to debtors, whether
now or hereafter in effect; or any involuntary fieti or proceeding pursuant to the Bankruptcy Cardany other applicable state or Federal
law relating to bankruptcy, reorganization or othadief for debtors is filed or commenced againstrBwer or any Guarantor, and such case
or proceeding shall continue undismissed for aogleoi forty-five (45) days from commencement oftspcoceeding or case; or Borrower or
any Guarantor shall file an answer admitting thisgliction of the court and the material allegasi@f any involuntary petition; or Borrower
or any Guarantor shall be adjudicated a bankruginmrder for relief shall be entered by any cofitompetent jurisdiction under the
Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable state oleFad law relating to bankruptcy, reorganizatiorotirer relief for debtors.

(h) ERISA Event. A Reportable Event (as define&RISA), or any violation of any provision of anyaRlmaintained or contributed to by
Borrower or any Subsidiary, involving an amounektess of $500,000 occurs and is not cured withrity-five (45) days.

() Invalidity. Any material provision of this Agegnent, any other Loan Document or any Related Deogishall at any time for any reason
cease to be in full force and effect or valid amtlimng on Borrower or any Guarantor, or shall belaieed to be null and void, or the validity
enforceability thereof shall be contested by Boepar any Guarantor, or Borrower or any Guarantatisieny that it has any further liabili
or obligation under this Agreement, any other L&&@tument or any Related Document, and such evaiittsive or be likely to have, in the
reasonable judgment of Agent and Majority Lendarslaterial Adverse Effect.

()) Material Adverse Change. A material adversengjea as reasonably determined by Agent and Majbatyders in the good faith exercise
their discretion, shall occur in the financial caiwh of Borrower taken as a whole.
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(k) Death or Incapacity. The death or incapacitiiairis S. Young, provided that Agent and Majoritgnks reasonably determine, in the
good faith exercise of their discretion, that sdelath or incapacity shall have or be likely to hangheir reasonable judgment, a Material
Adverse Effect.

() Dissolution or Liquidation. The dissolution kiquidation of Borrower or any corporate or limitgability company Guarantor; or Borrower
or any such entity Guarantor or their respectivealors, stockholders or members shall take ast@tking to effect the dissolution or
liquidation of Borrower or such entity Guarantor.

(m) Change in Ownership. Any change in ownershipnduthe term of this Agreement which would leactchange in the management of
Borrower; provided, however, that no Event of Défaball be deemed to have occurred under this@e8t1(m) as a result of a change in
the Borrower's management or employees in the argicourse of business.

(n) Real Property Transfers. The sale, transfgupthecation, assignment or other encumbrance, ttharPermitted Liens, whether
voluntary, involuntary or by operation of law, wdtlt Agent's prior written consent, of all or anytpat or interest in any of the Real Property
Collateral.

(o) Cross-Default. A defined event of default undey of the Security Documents, subject to theiapple cure period, if any, provided in
such Security Document. The Event of Default unbler Section 8.1(0) shall be automatically curedpierposes of this Agreement upon the
cure or waiver of the event of default under theusiey Documents.

SECTION 8.2 REMEDIES. During the continuation ofyd&wvent of Default (other than an Event of Defaaferred to in Section 8.1(g)
hereof), Agent may, with the consent of the Majotienders, or shall, upon written instructions fridre Majority Lenders, by written notice
to Borrower, (a) terminate the obligations of thentlers to extend any further credit under any elLiban Documents, and/or (b) declare all
indebtedness of Borrower under the Loan Documenibe immediately due and payable without presentndemand, protest or any other
notice of any kind, all of which are hereby exphgsgived by Borrower. Upon the occurrence or exise of any Event of Default described
in Section 8.1(g) hereof, immediately and withootice, (i) the obligations, if any, of Lenders tdend any further credit under any of the
Loan Documents shall automatically cease and texi®jrand (i) all indebtedness of Borrower underltban Documents shall automatically
become immediately due and payable, without presemt, demand, protest or any other notice of ang,kall of which are hereby expressly
waived by Borrower. In addition to the foregoingnedies, during the continuance of any Event of Dief&gent may (i) exercise all of its
rights and remedies under any Related Documentlfich Agent
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is a party or is a third party beneficiary) or apgble law; (ii) require the Trustee to declaresfadlt under the Indenture and accelerate the
maturity of the Bonds; (iii) require Borrower tolider and pledge to Agent, as security for Borrowebligations to Agent and Lenders under
this Agreement, cash collateral in the amount gf@utstanding but undrawn amounts under the Lett&redit; (iv) exercise any other right,
power or remedy granted to it or the Lenders uadgrLoan Document or permitted to it or the Lendsréaw, either by suit in equity or by
action at law, or both; or (v) exercise all or amynbination of the remedies provided for in thist®m 8.2. Immediately after taking any
action under this Section 8.2, Agent shall notdigle Lender of such action.

ARTICLE IX
THE AGENT

SECTION 9.1 AUTHORIZATION AND ACTION. Each Lendeeheby irrevocably appoints U.S. Bank as Agent, auttiorizes Agent to act
as its agent under the Loan Documents and to tadte actions on such Lender's behalf and to exescisk powers and perform such duties
under the Loan Documents as are expressly delegmiggent by the terms thereof, together with sottter powers as are reasonably
incidental thereto. Agent shall have no dutiesesponsibilities except those expressly set forthénLoan Documents, and no implied
covenants, functions, responsibilities, dutiesigattions or liabilities shall be read into any Ldaacument or otherwise exist against Agent.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, Agent shall not be required to take anioaathich is contrary to any Loe
Document or applicable law. Neither Agent nor aeynder shall be responsible to any other Lendearigrrecitals, statements,
representations or warranties made by Borroweragoad in any Loan Document, for the value, valigéffectiveness, genuineness,
enforceability or sufficiency of any Loan Documentthe Collateral or for any failure by Borrowergerform its respective obligations
hereunder or thereunder. Agent may employ agemntatiarneys-in-fact and shall not be responsibleny Lender for the negligence or
misconduct of any such agents or attorneys-indalgtcted by it with reasonable care. Neither Agentany of its directors, officers,
employees or agents shall be responsible to angidrefor any action taken or omitted to be taketit loy them under any Loan Document or
in connection therewith, except for its or theirrogross negligence or willful misconduct. Excepbt®erwise provided under this Agreem
Agent shall take such action with respect to tharLBocuments as shall be directed by the Majorégders. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Agent shall have the right, after consultation vBitrrower, which consultation shall not be unreadiby withheld or delayed, to change the
terms, structure, pricing and/or any amount of afthe Credits, including the right to reallocdte telative principal
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loan amounts among any of the Term Loans and the &f Credit, and/or to establish additional Teroah tranches in the event a
syndication of the Credits has not been succegsfalinpleted; provided however, that agent shallaet the right to change the aggregate
amount of the Credits unless Agent determinessisate discretion that such change is necessamysiore a successful syndicate of the
Credits.

SECTION 9.2 RELIANCE BY AGENT. Agent shall be et to rely upon any certificate, notice or othecdment (including any cable,
telegram, telecopy, or telex) or conversation leliEby it in good faith to be genuine and corrext 8 have been signed, sent or made by or
on behalf of the proper person or persons, and aguite and statements of legal counsel (includmgnsel to Borrower), independent
accountants and other experts selected by Agehtredtsonable care. As to any matters not expressiyded for by this Agreement, Agent
shall not be required to take any action or exeraisy discretion, but shall be required to acbaefrain from acting upon instructions of the
Majority Lenders and shall in all cases be fullptected by the Lenders in acting, or in refrairfiregn acting, hereunder or under any other
Loan Document in accordance with the instructiointhe Majority Lenders, and such instructions af Majority Lenders and any action
taken or failure to act pursuant thereto shallinelibg on all of the Lenders.

SECTION 9.3 DEFAULTS. Agent shall not be deemetiage knowledge or notice of the occurrence of abDielinless Agent has receive
notice from a Lender or Borrower referring to tAgreement, describing such Default and expresalyngf that such notice is a "notice of
default". If Agent receives such notice of the acence of a Default, Agent shall promptly give netthereof to the Lenders. Agent thereu
shall take such action with respect to such Defasikhall be reasonably directed by the Majoritydegs; provided however, that unless and
until Agent shall have received such directionsetgmay (but shall not be obligated to) take swttoa, or refrain from taking such action,
with respect to such Default as it shall deem ablisin the best interests of the Lenders.

SECTION 9.4 INDEMNIFICATION. Without limiting theladigations of Borrower hereunder, each Lender agteéndemnify Agent, ratably
in accordance with its Proportionate Shares, fgraard all liabilities, obligations, losses, damagemnalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs,
expenses or disbursements of any kind or naturésaeer which may at any time (including at anyetifollowing payment of such
obligations) be imposed on, incurred by or assatginst Agent in any way relating to or arising ofuithis Agreement or any documents
contemplated by or referred to herein or thereithertransactions contemplated hereby or thereltlyeoenforcement of any of the terms
hereof or thereof or of any such other documentmngraction taken or omitted by Agent under oranrection herewith or
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therewith; provided however, that no Lender shalliible for any of the foregoing to the extentleise from Agent's gross negligence or
willful misconduct. Without limiting the foregoingach Lender agrees to reimburse Agent promptiyesnand for its ratable share of any
amounts payable but not paid by Borrower underi@edt0.2 hereof. Agent shall be fully justifiedrefusing to take or to continue to take
action hereunder unless it shall first be indenadifio its satisfaction by the Lenders against antiyall liability and expense which may be
incurred by Agent by reason of taking or continuingake any such action. The agreements in thiid®e9.4 shall survive the payment of
Borrower's obligations hereunder.

SECTION 9.5 NON-RELIANCE ON AGENT. Each Lender repents that it has, independently and withoutmme&aon Agent or any other
Lender, and based on such documents and informasieuch Lender has deemed appropriate, maderitajppraisal of and investigation il
the financial condition and affairs of Borrower aggtision to enter into this Agreement. Each Lerdgees that such Lender will,
independently and without reliance upon Agent or ather Lender, and based on such documents amahiafion as it shall deem appropri
at the time, continue to make its own appraisatsd@tisions in taking or not taking action undés thgreement. Each Lender acknowledges
that Agent has not made any representation or wigrta it with respect to the financial conditionadfairs of Borrower, any Loan Document
or any Collateral, and that no act by Agent heegafbicluding any review of any of such matterglshbe deemed to constitute any such
representation or warranty by Agent to any Lenbleither Agent nor any Lender shall be requireddegkinformed as to the performance or
observance by Borrower of the obligations undes &greement or any other document referred to aviged for herein or to make inquiry
of, or to inspect the properties or books of BorovExcept for notices, reports and other documamdisinformation expressly required to be
furnished to the Lenders by Agent hereunder, neitlgent nor any Lender shall have any duty or rasality to provide any Lender with
any credit or other information concerning Borroywehich may come into the possession of Agent ohdiender, or any of its or their
affiliates.

SECTION 9.6 SUCCESSOR AGENT. Subject to the appoéntt and acceptance of a successor Agent as pdobalew, Agent may resign
at any time by giving thirty (30) days' written ioat thereof to the Lenders, and Agent may be rechav@ny time with or without cause by
the Majority Lenders. Upon any such resignationreonoval, the Majority Lenders shall have the righéppoint a successor Agent. If no
successor Agent shall have been appointed by therit§a_enders and shall have accepted such appeint within thirty (30) days after the
retiring Agent's giving of notice of resignationtbe Majority Lenders' removal of the retiring Adetihen the retiring Agent may, on behall
the Lenders, appoint a successor Agent, which bleadl bank having a combined capital, surplus atadrred earnings of not less than U.S.
$500,000,000. Upon the acceptance of any
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appointment as Agent hereunder by a successor Agigtt successor Agent shall thereupon succeaedltbecome vested with all the rights,
powers, privileges and duties of the retiring Agamd the retiring Agent shall be discharged frisrduties and obligations hereunder. After
any retiring Agent's resignation or removal herarrabs Agent, the provisions of this Article IX dr@ntinue in effect for its benefit in
respect of any actions taken or omitted to be tdkeit while it was acting as Agent.

SECTION 9.7 EXECUTION OF LOAN DOCUMENTS. Agent isiteby authorized by the Lenders to execute, dedimdrperform each of
the Loan Documents to which Agent is or is intenttete a party and each Lender agrees to be bouali &f the agreements of Agent
contained in the Loan Documents.

SECTION 9.8 AGENT IN ITS INDIVIDUAL CAPACITY. Agentand its affiliates may make loans to, accept diépéfr®m, own securities of
and generally engage in any kind of business wifr@ver, as though Agent were not Agent hereundighout any duty to give notice
thereof or account therefor to any Lender. U.S.kBana Lender shall have the same rights and pawelesr this Agreement and the other
Loan Documents as any other Lender and may exdtesgame as though it were not Agent, and thestérender” or "Lenders" shall
include U.S. Bank in each such capacity.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 10.1 NOTICES. Except as specified othenkisein, all notices, requests and demands whighparty is required or may desire
give to any other party under this Agreement mesinbwriting, addressed to Agent and each Lendis atddress or telecopy number set f
as the "Address for Notices" for Agent or such Lemid Schedule | hereto, and addressed to Borrawre following address or telecopy
number:

Borrower: AXT, Inc.
4281 Technology Driv e
Fremont, CA 94538
Attn: Donald Tatzi n
Chief Financ ial Officer/Secretary
Telecopier: (510) 43 8-4793

-57-



With a copy to: Gray Cary Ware & Fre idenrich LLP
400 Hamilton Avenue
Palo Alto, CA 9301
Attn: Sally Rau, Esq .
Telecopier: (650) 32 7-3699

or to such other address or telecopy number aparty may designate by written notice to all otparties. Each such notice, request and
demand shall be deemed given or made as follow#: gant by hand delivery, upon delivery;

(b) if sent by mail, upon the earlier of the dateazeipt or three (3) days after deposit in th8.Unall, first class and postage prepaid; and (c)
if sent by telecopy, upon receipt.

SECTION 10.2 COSTS, EXPENSES ATTORNEYS' FEES.

Except as otherwise set forth herein, Borrowerlgf@ immediately upon demand: (a) all reasonab$ts; fees and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, incuyr&ddémt in connection with the preparation, reviewecution and delivery of, and the
exercise of its duties under, this Agreement aedother Loan Documents, and the preparation of dments and waivers hereunder and
thereunder; (b) all reasonable costs, fees andsegeincluding reasonable attorneys' fees andhegpeincurred by Agent and/or Lenders in
connection with the enforcement, preservation otgation (or attempted enforcement, preservatigoratection) of any rights or remedies of
Agent and/or Lenders under this Agreement or ahgratoan Document (including in connection with &mprkout" or restructuring relating
to this Agreement, any Credit, or any bankruptcjneolvency case involving Borrower; and (c) alksenable costs, fees and expenses
incurred by Agent for appraisals, audits, environtakinspections and reviews, searches and filimg®nnection with any of the foregoing.
As used herein, the term "reasonable attorneys'ded expenses” shall include, without limitatiafgcable costs and expenses of Agent's (or
any Lender's, if applicable) in-house legal couasel staff, and "reasonable costs, fees and exgesisall include, without limitation,
allocable costs, fees and expenses of Agent'sfot.ender's, if applicable) internal appraisal, igushvironmental and other similar services.

SECTION 10.3 INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extepermitted by law, Borrower hereby agrees to ptoiademnify, defend and hold
harmless each of the Lenders, Agent, their respeeffiliates and each of their respective past@medent officers, directors, shareholders,
employees, agents, attorneys and affiliates, tegetfith their respective heirs, beneficiaries, exers, administrators, trustees, predecessors,
successors and assigns (collectively, "Indemnijdesth and against any liabilities, losses, damagesxpenses of any kind or nature and
from any suits, claims or demands (including irpees of or for reasonable attorneys' fees and akgenses, including the allocated costs
and
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expenses of internal counsel) arising on account af connection with any matter or thing or antmr failure to act by Indemnitees, or any
of them, arising out of or relating to this Agreerher any other Loan Document, including any us@&byrower of any proceeds of any
Credit, except to the extent such liability arif@sn the Indemnitee's own willful misconduct or gsmegligence. Upon receiving knowledge
of any suit, claim or demand asserted by a thirtighat Agent or any Lender believes is coveredhiy indemnity, Agent or such Lender
shall give Borrower notice of the matter and anaypmity to defend it, at Borrower's sole cost argense, with legal counsel reasonably
satisfactory to Agent or such Lender, as the casgelm. Agent or such Lender may also require Bogrdw defend the matter. Any failure or
delay of Agent or any Lender to notify Borrowerasfy such suit, claim or demand shall not reliever®aer of its obligations under this
Section 10.3 but shall reduce such obligationfigoeixtent of any increase in those obligationse@gslely by an unreasonable failure or
delay in providing such notice. If Bank does najuiee Borrower to defend such action, or if Borrovagls or refuses to defend such action,
Bank shall have the right to employ counsel to défeuch action and to participate in the defeneeetif, and the fees and expenses of such
counsel shall be at the expense of Borrower. Initiatig Bank shall have the right to employ sepacatensel and to participate in the defense
of any such action if Bank has been advised by selusf recognized standing in matters of bankingemurities laws that a single lawyer
cannot ethically represent both Bank or any othdeinitee and Borrower. The obligations of Borrowmeder this Section 10.3 shall survive
the payment in full and performance of all Borrowebligations to Lenders and Agent.

SECTION 10.4 WAIVERS, AMENDMENTS. Any term, covertaagreement or condition of this Agreement or ather Loan Document
may be amended or waived if such amendment or wa\e writing and is signed and the Majority Lems (or by Agent with written
consent of the Majority Lenders), Borrower and ather party thereto; provided however, that anyrangent, waiver or consent which
affects the rights or duties of Agent must be iiting and be signed also by Agent; and providethtr, that any amendment, waiver or
consent which effects any of the following changesst be in writing and signed by all Lenders (orAgent with the written consent of all
Lenders):

(a) increases the maximum principal amount avalaipider any Credit or the Borrowing Base;
(b) extends the maturity date of any Credit;

(c) reduces the principal of, or interest (incluglorefault rate interest) on, any Credit or any f@esther amounts payable for the account of
the Lenders hereunder;
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(d) postpones or conditions any date fixed for payment of the principal of, or interest on, angdit or any fees or other amounts payable
for the account of the Lenders hereunder;

(e) waives or amends this Section 10.4;

(f) amends the definition of Majority Lenders otygrovision of this Agreement requiring approvatiodé Majority Lenders or some other
specified number or proportion of Lenders;

(g) changes the voting percentages of the Lenders;
(h) results in a release of any material part efG@ollateral; or

(i) increases or decreases the Proportionate Siiamgy Lender in the Total Commitments (other ttaough an assignment under Section
10.5 hereof).

Unless otherwise specified in such waiver or cofsewaiver or consent given hereunder shall bectffe only in the specific instance and
for the specific purpose for which given.

SECTION 10.5 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

(a) Binding Effect. The Loan Documents shall bedbig upon and inure to the benefit of Borrower, ltleaders, Agent, all future holders of
the Notes and their respective successors and fpednaissigns, except that Borrower may not asgigransfer any of its rights or obligations
under any Loan Document without the prior writt@msent of Agent and each Lender unless in accoedaith Section 7.3. All references in
this Agreement to any person or entity shall bemdeto include all successors and assigns of serdop or entity.

(b) Participations. Any Lender may, in the ordinaourse of its business and in accordance withigadge law, at any time sell to one or i
banks or other financial institutions ("Participsitparticipating interests in any Credit owingstech Lender, any Note held by such Lender,
or any other interest of such Lender under thise&grent and the other Loan Documents. In the eertyosuch sale by a Lender of a
participating interest to a Participant, (i) suamder's obligations under this Agreement to thergplarties to this Agreement shall remain
unchanged, (ii) such Lender shall remain solelpaesible for the performance thereof, (iii) suchntler shall remain the holder of any such
Note for all purposes under this Agreement, angRirrower and Agent shall continue to deal soleig directly with such Lender
connection with such Lender's rights and obligatiander this Agreement. Participants shall havegids under this Agreement or any other
Loan Document except as provided below. No LenHall sell any participating interest under which fParticipant shall have any rights to
vote on any

-60-



amendment or waiver of this Agreement or any otleam Document; provided however, that a Lender sellya participating interest under
which the Participant shall have the right to vateany amendment or waiver of this Agreement orlaogn Document requiring the
unanimous consent of all Lenders pursuant to Sediio4 hereof; provided further, however, that aggeement pursuant to which any Let
sells a participating interest to a Participant meuire the selling Lender to obtain the conséisuch Participant in order for such Lender to
agree in writing to any amendment of a type spediin

Section 10.4 hereof not requiring the unanimousenhof all Lenders. No agreement pursuant to whighLender sells a participating
interest to a Participant other than a Lender meaynfi the participant to transfer, pledge, asségtl, participations in or otherwise encumber
its participating interest. Borrower agrees thanfounts outstanding under this Agreement andttier €oan Documents are due and unpaid,
or shall have been declared or shall have becomadd payable upon the occurrence of an Event fafulleeach Participant shall, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, be deemed to htheeights of payment (but not including any righsetoff) in respect of its participating
interest in amounts owing under this Agreementamdother Documents to the same extent as if treuatof its participating interest were
owing directly to it as a Lender under this Agreetna any other Documents; provided however, thahsights of payment shall be subject
to the obligation of such Participant to share wfith Lenders, and the Lenders agree to share wdth Barticipant, as provided in Section 2.10
(b) hereof. Borrower also agrees that any Lendedctwhas transferred all or part of its interestthie Credits to one or more Participants s
notwithstanding any such transfer, be entitlech&oftll benefits accorded such Lender under Sest®ohl and 2.13 hereof, as if such Lender
had not made such transfer.

(c) Assignments. Any Lender may, in the ordinaryrse of its business and in accordance with aggkdaw, at any time, sell and assign to
any Lender, any affiliate of a Lender or any othank or financial institution (individually, an "Agnee") all or any portion of its rights and
obligations under this Agreement and the other Lbaouments (such a sale and assignment to beedferherein as an "Assignment”)
pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption Agreeinehe form of Exhibit G attached hereto (an "Assigent Agreement"), executed by
each Assignee and such assignor Lender (an "Agss)garad delivered to Agent for its acceptance awbrding in the Register; provided
however, that:

(i) each Assignment shall be in a minimum amour%000,000; and

(i) without the written consents of Borrower andekt, which consents shall not be unreasonablyheith no Lender may make any
Assignment to any Assignee which is not, immedyjapeior to such Assignment, a Lender hereundenaaftliate thereof.
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Upon the execution, delivery, acceptance and réugmaf each Assignment Agreement, from and afterdffective date set forth therein, (A)
each Assignee thereunder shall be a Lender hereuiittiea Proportionate Share as set forth in Sactiof such Assignment Agreement and
shall have the rights, duties and obligations ahsalLender under this Agreement and the other IDmouments, and (B) the Assignor
thereunder shall be a Lender with a Proportiona&as set forth in Section 1 of such Assignmeagredment, or, if the Proportionate Share
of the Assignor has been reduced to 0%, the Assigimall cease to be a Lender; provided howevet giheh Assignor shall nevertheless be
entitled to the indemnification rights containedSaction 10.3 hereof for any events, acts or omnssoccurring before the effective date o
Assignment. Each Assignment Agreement shall be ddéamamend Schedule 1 hereto to the extent negdssaflect the addition of each
Assignee and the resulting adjustment of Propaat®ishares arising from the purchase by each Assighall or a portion of the rights and
obligations of an Assignor under this Agreement tnedother Loan Documents.

(d) Register. Agent shall maintain at Agent's Gffeccopy of each Assignment Agreement deliveredhtbaccepted by Agent and a register
(the "Register") for the recordation of the named addresses of the Lenders and the ProportiomateeS$ of each Lender from time to time.
The entries in the Register shall be conclusivekinding for all purposes, absent manifest errod Borrower, Agent and the Lenders may
treat each entity whose name is recorded in thésRe@gs a Lender hereunder for all purposes efAlgreement. The Register shall be
available for inspection by Borrower or any Lendeany reasonable time and from time to time upasonable prior notice.

(e) Registration. Upon its receipt of an Assignm&giteement executed by an Assignor and an Assifaret in the case of an Assignee that
is not then a Lender or an affiliate of a LendgrBmrrower and Agent) together with payment by sAskignee to Agent of a registration and
processing fee of $3,500.00, Agent shall (i) prdynatcept such Assignment Agreement, and (ii) @neffective date of such Assignment
record the information contained therein in the iBteg and give notice of such acceptance and ratiordto the Lenders and Borrower. Ac
may, from time to time at its election, prepare detiver to the Lenders and Borrower a revised 8aleel reflecting the names, addresses
and respective Proportionate Shares of all Lenithexrs parties hereto.

(f) Confidentiality. Without limitation, Agent antthe Lenders may disclose the Loan Documents, apdirsancial or other information
relating to Borrower, to each other or to any ptgiParticipant or Assignee; provided, howeveattsuch potential Participant or Assignee
shall have agreed in writing to be bound by Sectidori6 hereof prior to such disclosure.
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SECTION 10.6 SETOFF. In addition to any rights amhedies of the Lenders provided by law, each Leslall have the right, but only
with the prior consent of Agent, which consent rhaygranted or withheld by Agent in its sole andodiie discretion, but without prior noti
to Borrower, any such notice being expressly waiwg@orrower to the extent permitted by applicdbl&, upon the occurrence and during
the continuance of a Default or Event of Defadltsét-off and apply against any indebtedness, vehetlatured or unmatured, of Borrower to
such Lender, any amount owing from such Lenderdodver, at or at any time after, the happeningrof of the above mentioned events,
and as security for such indebtedness, Borrowahysgrants to each Lender a continuing securigrést in any and all deposits, accounts or
moneys of Borrower then or thereafter maintaineithsuich Lender, subject in each case to Sectidi{l?.hereof. The aforesaid right of set-
off may be exercised by such Lender against Borr@mw@gainst any trustee in bankruptcy, debtordssgssion, assignee for the benefit of
creditors, receiver or execution, judgment or daent creditor of Borrower or against anyone elagring through or against Borrower or
such trustee in bankruptcy, debtor in possessisigaee for the benefit of creditors, receiverxgcution, judgment or attachment creditor,
notwithstanding the fact that such right of setsiféll not have been exercised by such Lender fwithre occurrence of a Default or Event of
Default. Each Lender agrees promptly to notify Barer after any such set-off and application madsumh Lender, provided that the failure
to give such notice shall not affect the validifysach set-off and application.

SECTION 10.7 NO WAIVER; CUMULATIVE REMEDIES. No fhire on the part of Agent or any Lender to exercsel no delay in
exercising, any right, power, privilege or remedylear any Loan Document shall operate as a waiegettf; nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any such right, power, privilege or eenpreclude any other or further exercise theoedtfie exercise of any other right, power,
privilege or remedy. The rights and remedies utitiel.oan Documents are cumulative and not exclusiany rights, powers, privileges or
remedies that may otherwise be available to thenAgeany Lender.

SECTION 10.8 ENTIRE AGREEMENT, AMENDMENT. This Ageeent and the other Loan Documents constituterttieeagreement
among Borrower, Agent and Lenders with respedi¢oGredits and supersede all prior negotiationsneonications, discussions and
correspondence concerning the subject matter herbaf Agreement may be amended or modified onkby writing signed by each party
hereto.

SECTION 10.9 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Aggment is made and entered into for the sole groteand benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective permitted ssmre and assigns, and no other person or entiitgr(than an Indemnitee) shall be a third
party beneficiary of, or have any
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direct or indirect cause of action or claim in ceation with, this Agreement or any other of the h@ocuments to which it is not a party.
SECTION 10.10 TIME. Time is of the essence of eauth every provision of this Agreement and eachrathtéhe Loan Documents.

SECTION 10.11 SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS. If anyquision of this Agreement shall be prohibited byiroralid under applicable
law, such provision shall be ineffective only te kxtent of such prohibition or invalidity withot/alidating the remainder of such provision
or any remaining provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 10.12 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shadl ¢poverned by and construed in accordance withathe of the State of
California (without regard to the conflicts of lawles of such jurisdiction).

SECTION 10.13 SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION. EACH OPPBRROWER, AGENT AND LENDERS HEREBY: (A) SUBMITS TO
THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS OF THE STEA OF CALIFORNIA AND THE FEDERAL COURTS OF THE
UNITED STATES SITTING IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FR THE PURPOSE OF ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING
OUT OF OR RELATING TO ANY OF THE LOAN DOCUMENTS; (BAGREES THAT ALL CLAIMS IN RESPECT OF ANY SUCH
ACTION OR PROCEEDING MAY BE HEARD AND DETERMINED INSUCH COURTS; (C) IRREVOCABLY WAIVES (TO THE
FULL EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW) ANY OBJECTON WHICH IT NOW OR HEREAFTER MAY HAVE TO THE
LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING BRUGHT IN ANY OF THE FOREGOING COURTS, AND ANY
OBJECTION ON THE GROUND THAT ANY SUCH ACTION OR PREEEDING IN ANY SUCH COURT HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN
AN INCONVENIENT FORUM; AND (D) AGREES THAT A FINALJUDGMENT IN ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING SHALL
BE CONCLUSIVE AND MAY BE ENFORCED IN OTHER JURISDIGONS BY SUIT ON THE JUDGMENT OR IN ANY OTHER
MANNER PERMITTED BY LAW.

SECTION 10.14 ARBITRATION.

(a) Arbitration. Upon the demand of any party, &igpute shall be resolved by binding arbitratioxcépt as set forth in () below) in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. A pDis" shall mean any action, dispute, claim or v@rsy of any kind, whether in contr
or tort, statutory or common law, legal or equitglrlow existing or hereafter arising under or inrextion with, or in any way pertaining to,
this Agreement or any of the Related Documentsngrpast, present or future extensions of creditather activities, transactions or
obligations of any kind
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related directly or indirectly to this Agreementaoty of the Related Documents, including withootidation, any of the foregoing arising in
connection with the exercise of any self-help, Bengi or other remedies pursuant to this Agreenoerany of the Related Documents. Any
party may by summary proceedings bring an actiazount to compel arbitration of a Dispute. Any pastho fails or refuses to submit to
arbitration following a lawful demand by any othmarty shall bear all costs and expenses incurreslibly other party in compelling
arbitration of any Dispute.

(b) Governing Rules. Arbitration proceedings sballadministered by the American Arbitration Asstioia("AAA") or such other
administrator as the parties shall mutually aggenun accordance with the AAA Commercial ArbiteatiRules. All Disputes submitted to
arbitration shall be resolved in accordance withFlederal Arbitration Act (Title 9 of the UnitedaBs Code), notwithstanding any conflicting
choice of law provision in this Agreement or anytleé Related Documents; provided, however, thawitiostanding the foregoing or anythi

to the contrary herein, it is specifically conteatpld and agreed by Borrower, Agent and LendersdagdParticipants and Assignees) that the
provisions of Section 1283.05 of the California €ad Civil Procedure, as presently in force, beiporated into and made a part of, and be
applicable to, the arbitration agreement set fortthis Section 10.14. The arbitration shall bediarted at a location in California selected by
the AAA or other administrator. If there is any amsistency between the terms hereof and any sles, the terms and procedures set forth
herein shall control. All statutes of limitationigable to any Dispute shall apply to any arbitratproceeding. All discovery activities shall
be expressly limited to matters directly relevantite Dispute being arbitrated. Judgment upon arardirendered in an arbitration may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction; providemlvever, that nothing contained herein shall berdekto be a waiver by any party that is a
bank of the protections afforded to it under 12.0.SSection 91 or any similar applicable state law.

(c) No Waiver; Provisional Remedies, Self-Help &udeclosure. No provision hereof shall limit thghti of any party to exercise self-help
remedies such as setoff, foreclosure against erafany real or personal property collateral @musiy, or to obtain provisional or ancillary
remedies, including without limitation injunctivelief, sequestration, attachment, garnishmenteafipointment of a receiver, from a court
of competent jurisdiction before, after or durihg ppendency of any arbitration or other proceediing. exercise of any such remedy shall not
waive the right of any party to compel arbitratmmreference hereunder.

(d) Arbitrator Qualifications and Powers; AwardgbArators must be active members of the CalifoState Bar or retired judges of the state
or federal judiciary of California, with expertigethe substantive laws applicable to the subjeatten of the Dispute. Arbitrators are
empowered to resolve Disputes by summary rulingesponse to motions filed prior to the final andiibn hearing. Arbitrators
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(i) shall resolve all Disputes in accordance wité substantive law of the state of California, iy grant any remedy or relief that a court of
the state of California could order or grant wittlie scope hereof and such ancillary relief agteasary to make effective any award, and
(iii) shall have the power to award recovery ofaalbts and fees, to impose sanctions and to talteather actions as they deem necessary to
the same extent a judge could pursuant to the BeRetes of Civil Procedure, the California Rulé<Cavil Procedure or other applicable law.
Any Dispute in which the amount in controversy %@00,000 or less shall be decided by a singlératbi who shall not render an award of
greater than $5,000,000 (including damages, cfests,and expenses). By submission to a singleratdiit each party expressly waives any
right or claim to recover more than $5,000,000. Aigpute in which the amount in controversy exce®%§00,000 shall be decided by
majority vote of a panel of three arbitrators; pded however, that all three arbitrators must &tyiyparticipate in all hearings and
deliberations.

(e) Judicial Review. Notwithstanding anything har the contrary, in any arbitration in which #mount in controversy exceeds
$25,000,000 the arbitrators shall be required tkarspecific, written findings of fact and conclusscof law. In such arbitrations (A) the
arbitrators shall not have the power to make angrdwhich is not supported by substantial evidesroghich is based on legal error, (B) an
award shall not be binding upon the parties urtlesgindings of fact are supported by substanttaence and the conclusions of law are not
erroneous under the substantive law of the sta@abfornia, and (C) the parties shall have in #ddito the grounds referred to in the Federal
Arbitration Act for vacating, modifying or correngy an award the right to judicial review of (1) wier the findings of fact rendered by the
arbitrators are supported by substantial evideswoe,(2) whether the conclusions of law are errosemuer the substantive law of the state of
California. Judgment confirming an award in sugit@ceeding may be entered only if a court detersithe award is supported by substai
evidence and not based on legal error under thetaiiive law of the state of California.

(f) Real Property Collateral; Judicial ReferencenMthstanding anything herein to the contrary Dispute shall be submitted to arbitration if
the Dispute concerns indebtedness secured dicihdirectly, in whole or in part, by any real pesty unless (i) the holder of the mortgage,
lien or security interest specifically elects intimg to proceed with the arbitration, or (ii) @lhrties to the arbitration waive any rights or
benefits that might accrue to them by virtue ofd¢hwgle action rule statute of California, therelgyeeing that all indebtedness and obligat

of the parties, and all mortgages, liens and scimterests securing such indebtedness and olaligatshall remain fully valid and
enforceable. If any such Dispute is not submittedrbitration, the Dispute shall be referred teferee in accordance with California Code of
Civil Procedure Section 638 et seq., and this gdmeference agreement is intended to be spedjfieaforceable in accordance
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with said Section 638. A referee with the qualifioas required herein for arbitrators shall be cielé pursuant to the AAA's selection
procedures. Judgment upon the decision renderedréferee shall be entered in the court in whiahgroceeding was commenced in
accordance with California Code of Civil Proced8extions 644 and 645.

(9) Miscellaneous. To the maximum extent practieatlie AAA, the arbitrators and the parties staetall action required to conclude any
arbitration proceeding within 180 days of the filiof the Dispute with the AAA. No arbitrator or ethparty to an arbitration proceeding may
disclose the existence, content or results theeeakpt for disclosures of information by a padguired in the ordinary course of its busin
by applicable law or regulation, or to the exteatessary to exercise any judicial review right§@eh herein. If more than one agreement
arbitration by or between the parties potentiafiplaées to a Dispute, the arbitration provision mdiséctly related to this Agreement or the
subject matter of the Dispute shall control. Thisiteation provision shall survive termination, amenent or expiration of this Agreement ¢
of the Related Documents or any relationship betvthe parties.

SECTION 10.15 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may>ezated in any number of identical counterparty, st of which signed by all
the parties hereto shall be deemed to constitatevplete, executed original for all purposes.

SECTION 10.16 CONFIDENTIALITY. No Lender shall diese to any Person any information with respe&doower which is furnished
pursuant to this Agreement and the other Loan Detusy except that Agent and Lenders may disclogeach information (a) to their own
directors, officers, employees, auditors, counedl@ther professional advisors and to their respeetffiliates if Agent and Lenders
reasonably determine that any such party should hawess to the information; (b) if such informati® generally available to the public; (c)
if required in any report, statement or testimounlgraitted to any governmental authority having idtion over any Lender; (d) if required
response to any summons or subpoena or in connegtib any litigation, to the extent permitted aetned advisable by counsel (provided,
however, that written notice of such disclosurglven to Borrower at least five (5) Business Dagierto such event to allow Borrower to
seek a protective order); (e) to comply with anyuieement or law applicable to Lenders; (f) to &x¢éent necessary in connection with the
exercise of any right or remedy under any Loan Doent; (g) to any Participant or Assignee or protipedarticipant or Assignee, provided
that such Participant or Assignee or such prospeétarticipant or Assignee agrees in writing tdband by this Section 10.16 prior to
disclosure; or (h) otherwise with the prior writteonsent of Borrower; provided, however, that any
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disclosure made in violation of this Agreement khat affect the obligation of Borrower under tlligreement or the other Loan Documents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed as of the day andfiystwritten above.

" BORROVER" " AGENT"

AXT, INC., a Del aware corporation U. S. BANK NATI ONAL ASSOCI ATI ON
By: [/s/ [Signature |l egible] By: [/s/ [Signature |l egible]
Title: CFO, Secretary Title: Vice President
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SCHEDULE 1

LENDERS AND PROPORTIONATE SHARES

PROPORTIONATE SHARES:

LENDERS:
Lineof Term Term Term
Credit Loan A LoanB LoanC
1. U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 100% 100% 100% 100%

Applicable Lending Office:

U.S. Bank National Association
2890 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, California 94596

Address for Notices:
U.S. Bank

National Association

2890 N. Main Street

Walnut Creek, California 94596
Attn:

Telephone: ( )

Telecopier: ()

Wiring Instructions:
U.S. Bank

National Association
Walnut Creek, California
ABA No.:

Beneficiary:

Account:

Customer Name: AXT, Inc.
Obligation No.:

Mid-Valley RCBO Note No.:
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SCHEDULE 2.1(d)
BORROWER LETTER OF CREDIT AGREEMENT
To be attached
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SCHEDULE 2.3(a)

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE FOR
THE LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITY

YEAR MONTHLY ANNUAL
PAYMENT REDEMPTION
AMOUNT

2000 $55,833.33 $670,000.00
2001 $55,416.67 $665,000.00
2002 $55,833.33 $670,000.00
2003 $55,833.33 $670,000.00
2004 $37,916.67 $455,000.00
2005 $34,583.33 $415,000.00
2006 $34,166.67 $410,000.00
2007 $34,583.33 $415,000.00
2008 $40,416.67 $485,000.00
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SCHEDULE 2.13(b)
PREPAYMENT INDEMNITY
As used herein, the following terms have the megmassigned to them:

"AVERAGE MATURITY PERIOD" means, as of any prepaymeéate, the weighted average time period compoyedultiplying the dollar
amount of each installment or payment of principalpaid by the number of days from such prepaymeta until the earlier of the scheduled
maturity of that installment or payment or the nksterest Change Date (if any), adding togetherdselting products and dividing the
resulting sum by the total dollar amount of priratipeing prepaid.

"INTEREST CHANGE DATE" means the date of any reglylacheduled adjustment in the interest rate enNbte, if any.

"INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL" means as of any prepaymeate, (i) the Note Rate minus
(i) the Treasury Rate.

"NOTE RATE" means the per annum rate of interegapbe on the Credit bearing interest at the TrgaRate as in effect on the date of
prepayment.

Any voluntary prepayment of a Credit which beatsriest at the Treasury Rate shall be either ifith@amount of the outstanding Credit
bearing interest at the Treasury Rate or, if aiggrtepayment, in the amount of [$100,000] orregral multiple thereof, and partial
prepayments shall be applied to installments onpyts due of the Credit bearing interest at theduey Rate in inverse order of their
maturities. If, at the time of any prepayment (Wisetvoluntary, mandatory or upon acceleration efgtincipal of the Credit bearing interest
at the Treasury Rate), the Interest Differentialllséxxceed zero, such prepayment shall be accomgata the extent permitted by applicable
law, by payment of a prepayment indemnity. The amhofi the prepayment indemnity shall equal the gmésalue (determined by the Bank
using the Treasury Rate as of the date of prepaymens the Issuance Spread as the discount famtaf)e prepayment date of a stream of
equal monthly payments in number equal to the nuraberhole months (using a thirty-day month) in #eeerage Maturity Period. The
amount of each such monthly payment shall equadjtistient obtained by dividing (a) the productloé mount prepaid, times the Interest
Differential, times a fraction, the numerator ofierhis the number of days in the Average Maturigyipd and the denominator of which is
360, by (b) the number of whole months (using eytiday month) in the Average Maturity Period.
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SCHEDULE 4

Borrower Disclosure Schedule
to
Credit Agreement
By and Among
AXT, Inc.,
U.S. Bank National Association,
and

the Lenders from time to time who are parties ®@nedit Agreement

This Borrower Disclosure Schedule (the "Schedutefjtains exceptions to the Representations andamas of AXT, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the "Borrower") set forth in Articleof that certain Credit Agreement dated as of Aug8s 2000 (the "Credit Agreement"), by
and among the Borrower, U.S. Bank National Assamiafthe "Agent") and the lenders from time to timleich are parties thereto (the
"Lenders") and are an integral part of the Credjteement. Any capitalized term that is used in $tkedule and is not defined herein shall
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the CAgpgleement. The section numbers of each excepiited in this Schedule correspond to
the section numbers appearing in the Credit Agreéndd! information disclosed herein as an exceptio any section shall be deemed
disclosed under and incorporated into any othdi@eof the Credit Agreement to which it is crog$erenced. Notwithstanding any
materiality qualification in any Representation adrranty in the Credit Agreement, for administratease, certain items have been incl
herein which are not considered by the Borrowdyetanaterial to the business, assets, results chtipes, prospects or affairs of the
Borrower, taken as a whole. The inclusion of aeynitherein shall not be deemed to be an admissitimebBorrower that such item is mate
to the business, assets, results of operationsppots or affairs of the Borrower, taken as a whabe shall it be deemed an admission of any
obligation or liability to any third party.

SECTION 4.1 - LEGAL STATUS

Lyte Optronics, Inc., a Guarantor, is a Nevada a@fion, is qualified to do business in Califoraiad is in good standing in the state of
California. The following wholly-owned subsidiariedich are Guarantors under the Credit Agreemennat qualified to do business in
California or in any other jurisdiction in the Usit States: Advanced Semiconductor (Xiamen); Ameriial Technology (Hong Kong);
AXT - Japan; Beijing Tongmei Xtal Technology Cotdl; Bestal Substrate Foreign Sales Corp; and OgtEonics Ltd. (UK). American Xtal
Technology (Hong Kong) and Lyte
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Optronics Ltd. (UK) are in the process of windingath their respective business operations.
SECTION 4.5 - LITIGATION

The Borrower is cooperating with Cal-OSHA in anestigation regarding impermissible levels of patglyt hazardous materials in certain
areas of the Borrower's manufacturing facility nefont, California. In May, 2000, Cal-OSHA leviedirze against the Borrower in the
amount of $313,655 for alleged health and safatiatipns. Although the Borrower is appealing thiatidns, and have put in place
engineering, administrative and personnel proteaiguipment programs to address the issues, thevermay have to pay the fine and
further penalties, including criminal penaltiesultbbe levied against the Borrower or its managemen

The Borrower entered into a settlement of a patdringement lawsuit in approximately June, 2008.8\result of this settlement, the
Borrower will make a payment in the approximate ant@f $1,340,000 in early 2001.

SECTION 4.6 - CORRECTNESS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Borrower filed an amended Form 10-Q for eactnefquarters ended June 30, 1999 and Septemb&®@28, however, the amendment
reflected financial data that was reported in tioer@wvers Form 10-K filed with respect to the yeaded December 31, 1999.

As of June 30, 2000, the Borrower carried an irtemgany receivable in the approximate amount of BB5450 owed by Lyte Optronics, It

As of June 30, 2000, the Borrower carried an irtiengany receivable in the approximate amount of ¥ZB8@owed by Beijing Tongmei Xtal
Technology Co., Ltd.

SECTION 4.14 - ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The disclosures set forth in Section 4.5 abovermerporated into this
Section by this reference.
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SECTION 4.15 - REAL PROPERTY COLLATERAL

There are several tax liens appearing on theréflerts relating to the Monterey Park Property tuedEl Monte Property (the "Properties"),
however, the Borrower believes that these taxee baen paid that that the liens appear again®ribygerties in error. In addition, these title
reports reflect a deed of trust under which Padéifezzanine Fund, L.P., a California limited parsiep ("PMF") is the beneficiary. The
obligations owed to PMF have been satisfied andtdreower believes that these liens appear ag#irgProperties in error.

SECTION 4.16 - SUBSIDIARIES
The following entities are wholly-owned subsidiarigf the Borrower:

Advanced Semiconductor (Xiamen)

American Xtal Technology (Hong Kong)

AXT - Japan

Beijing Tongmei Xtal Technology Co., Ltd. BestallfStrate Foreign Sales Corp.
Lyte Optronics, Inc.

Lyte Optronics Ltd. (UK)

The Borrower holds an equity interest in the foliogventities:

Ge Mining
Ga Mining - Beijing JIYA Semiconductor

In August 2000, the Borrower entered into a busirieensfer and acquisition agreement with Demeg¢ehmology, a Delaware corporation
founded by Theodore S. Young, the president oBiieower's fiber optic division and a former membéthe Borrower's board of directors,
and Robert Shih, the chief technology officer &f Borrower's visible emitter division. Under thgg@ement, the Borrower agreed to transfer
certain non-core rights to Demeter relating taésearch and development activities relating tapects and services in the field of fiber
optics. The Borrower leased to Demeter a portiomsadwned facility in EI Monte, California, subked a portion of its rented facility in El
Monte, California, leased certain equipment, inagigcan MOCVD machine and sold certain inventorgatiel to fiber optics. In exchange,
Demeter has granted to Borrower a warrant to pwelhi@ to 4.5 million shares of its Series A conbtpreferred stock at a price of $0.5714
per share.

The Borrower has also provided certain wafer inggnto Intelligent Epitaxy (“Intelligent"), located Texas. In exchange, Intelligent has
granted Borrower
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warrants to purchase shares of its capital stottk aivalue up to approximately $100,000.
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SCHEDULE 5
CONTRACT COLLATERAL DESCRIPTION

- Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lead®ted as of July, 2000, by and between Ameridah ®echnology, Inc., now known as
AXT, Inc., and Demeter Technologies, Inc.

- Standard Office Lease - Net, dated as of Dece2®et996, by and between Alpha Photonics, Inc.AB8 Management Company (Alpha
Photonics is a division of Lyte Optronics, Inc.)

- Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leas&ross, dated as of January 31, 1998, by anddeshlvyte Optronics, Inc. and John and
Pam Smart Family Trust; Addendum to Standard Inéil&Eommercial Multi-Tenant Lease
- Gross, dated as of March, 1998, by and betweés Qptronics, Inc. and John and Pam Smart FamikgtTr

- Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leadéet, dated as of April 20, 2000, by and betwaearerican Xtal Technology, Inc., now
known as AXT, Inc., and Chois Company and Addendtheneto of even date

- Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leadéet, dated as of April 11, 2000, by and betwaearerican Xtal Technology, Inc., now
known as AXT, Inc., and Kim Pacific Trading Corjm¢.

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.) and Standard Form ofdgmnent Between Owner and
Contractor dated March 21, 2000

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated May 18, 200@amling services to be provided by
Allied Pacific Builders

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divigibLyte Optronics, Inc.), dated March 28, 20@garding services to be provided by
Ford Plumbing, Inc.

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated May 18, 200@aneling services to be provided by J.B.
Ford Plumbing, Inc.

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated April 28, 2008garding services to be provided by
Harding Lawson Associates
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- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated December 14,9198garding services to be provided by
Facilities Support Services

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated March 28, 20@@arding services to be provided by
K&S Air Conditioning, Inc.

- Purchase Requisition by Alpha Photonics (a divisif Lyte Optronics, Inc.), dated May 18, 200@amling services to be provided by K&S
Air Conditioning, Inc.
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SCHEDULE 7.4
EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS
[See Schedule 7.7]

Schedule 7.4-- Page 1



SCHEDULE 7.5
EXISTING GUARANTIES
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SCHEDULE 7.7
EXISTING LOANS; ADVANCES; INVESTMENTS
EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS
The Borrower's existing indebtedness is as follows:

- That indebtedness set forth in the Borrower'sobidated financial statements dated June 30, 20006py of which has been delivered to
Lender.

- As of June 30, 2000, the Borrower carried anraampany receivable in the approximate amount &f 29,450 owed by Lyte Optronics,
Inc.

- As of June 30, 2000, the Borrower carried an auempany receivable in the approximate amount oBEPE owed by Beijing Tongmei Xi
Technology Co., Ltd.

- Indebtedness secured by the existing liens sttt bzlow
EXISTING INVESTMENTS
The following entities are wholly-owned subsidiarigf the Borrower:

Advanced Semiconductor (Xiamen)

American Xtal Technology (Hong Kong)

AXT - Japan

Beijing Tongmei Xtal Technology Co., Ltd. BestallfStrate Foreign Sales Corp.
Lyte Optronics, Inc.

Lyte Optronics Ltd. (UK)

The Borrower holds an equity interest in the foliogventities:

Ge Mining
Ga Mining - Beijing JIYA Semiconductor

In August 2000, the Borrower entered into a busirieensfer and acquisition agreement with Demeg¢ehmology, a Delaware corporation
founded by Theodore S. Young, the president oBiieower's fiber optic division and a former membéthe Borrower's board of directors,
and Robert Shih, the chief technology officer @& Borrower's visible emitter division. Under thig@ement, the Borrower agreed to
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transfer certain non-core rights to Demeter regptinits research and development activities madgtid products and services in the field of
fiber optics. The Borrower leased to Demeter aiporf its owned facility in EI Monte, Californiaubleased a portion of its rented facility in
El Monte, California, leased certain equipment|uding an MOCVD machine and sold certain inventatating to fiber optics. In exchange,
Demeter has granted to Borrower a warrant to psechi@ to 4.5 million shares of its Series A coriblrtpreferred stock at a price of $0.5714
per share.

The Borrower has also provided certain wafer inegnto Intelligent Epitaxy ("Intelligent”), located Texas. In exchange, Intelligent has
granted Borrower warrants to purchase shares oéjital stock with a value up to approximately G000.

EXISTING LIENS

- Bay Area Bank - Financing Statement No. 96025@08&d on January 24, 1996 evidencing a secunitgrest in all equipment and other
property now or hereafter covered by that certajoigment Financing Agreement (#95092922) betwegn/Baa Bank and Borrower,
including all accessions and additions thereto, ifraadions thereof and replacements and substitstiherefor and replacements and
substitutions therefor, in whole or in part, indhglitems of the following type: Wafer Manufactugiiquipment.

- Saratoga National Bank - Financing Statement9$62560578 filed on January 24, 1996 evidencinecarity interest in all equipment and
other property now or hereafter covered by thabaaeEquipment Financing Agreement (#95092923) betwSaratoga National Bank and
Borrower, including all accessions and additioreseto, modifications thereof and replacements abdtiutions therefor and replacements
and substitutions therefor, in whole or in partlinling items of the following type: Wafer Manufadhg Equipment.

- Valliwide Bank - Financing Statement No. 96078887Tiled on March 14, 1996 evidencing a securitgriest in all equipment and other
property now or hereafter covered by that certajoigment Financing Agreement (#95092924) betwedliWiae Bank and Borrower,
including all accessions and additions thereto, ifraadions thereof and replacements and substitstiberefor, in whole or in part, including
items of the following type: Wafer Manufacturing iggment

- Comerica Bank, Successor by Merger to UniveiBank - Financing Statement No. 9607860778 filedviamch 14, 1996 evidencing a
security interest in all equipment and other propeow or hereafter covered by that certain Equipthf@énancing Agreement (#¥95092921)
between University Bank and Borrower, includingaatessions and additions thereto, modificatioasethf and
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replacements and substitutions therefor, in whole part, including items of the following type:afér Manufacturing Equipment

- U.S. Small Business Administration, assignee af Brea Employment Development Compariirancing Statement No. 9612360295 fi
on May 1, 1996 evidencing a security interest iecific machinery and equipment purchased with tioegeds of the loan and all accessions,
additions, replacements and substitutions, allng=scof any kind relating to any of the foregoinglafll proceeds of such machinery and
equipment including insurance, general intangillé accounts proceeds.

- Exchange Bank - Financing Statement No. 9714086161 on May 15, 1997 evidencing a security iagtrin all equipment and other
property now or hereafter covered by that certajoigment Financing Agreement (#95092921) betweearh&ixge Bank and Borrower,
including all accessions and additions thereto, iffeadions thereof and replacements and substitstiberefor, in whole or in part, including
items of the following type: production test, offiand computer equipment

- Valliwide Bank - Financing Statement No. 97161982 %led on June 6, 1997 evidencing a securityr@gtin all equipment and other
property now or hereafter covered by that certajoigment Financing Agreement (#95092922) betwedliWiae Bank and Borrower,
including all accessions and additions thereto, ifraadions thereof and replacements and substitstiberefor, in whole or in part, including
items of the following type: production test, offiand computer equipment.

- General Electric Capital Corporation - FinancBtgtement No. 9800260574 filed on December 30, #8¥encing a security interest in
specific equipment set forth on Collateral Schedide 01 to that certain Master Security Agreemexted as of December 11, 1997 between
Borrower and General Electric Capital Corporation

- General Electric Capital Corporation - Financ8tgtement No. 9817660252 filed on June 24, 1998e@v¢ing a security interest in specific
equipment set forth on Collateral Schedule No.dOthat certain Master Security Agreement dated &eoember 11, 1997 between Borro
and General Electric Capital Corporation

- NationsBanc Leasing Corporation - Financing S$tetet No. 9901360408 filed on January 8, 1999 evihgna security interest in specific
equipment
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- NationsBanc Leasing Corporation - Financing Stetet No. 9919660999 filed on July 9, 1999 evidegeirsecurity interest in specific
equipment

- Banc One Leasing Corporation, assignee of Thiree® Services, Inc. - Financing Statement No. 888649 filed on December 2, 1999
evidencing a security interest in specific equipmen

- LaSalle National Leasing Corporation, assigne€hifd Street Services, Inc. - Financing Statendmt0002860375 filed on January 27,
2000 evidencing a security interest in specificipopent

- Banc One Leasing Corporation, assignee of Thirdeb Services, Inc. - Financing Statement No. 660424 filed on February 10, 2000
evidencing a security interest in specific equipmen

- Banc One Leasing Corporation, assignee of Thiree® Services, Inc. - Financing Statement No. 660325 filed on February 10, 2000
evidencing a security interest in specific equipmen

- Banc One Leasing Corporation, assignee of Thiree® Services, Inc. - Financing Statement No. 862200 filed on February 17, 2000
evidencing a security interest in specific equipmen

- Safeco Credit Company, Inc., assignee of ThirdeédtServices, Inc. - Financing Statement No. 060875 filed on March 15, 2000
evidencing a security interest in specific equipmen

The following Financing Statements have been filgd).S. Bank National Association:

- Financing Statement No. 9529260048 filed on Oetdl®, 1995 (assigned from Commercial Bank of Fir&ino
- Financing Statement No. 9715760787 filed on Byri997

- Financing Statement No. 9715760218 filed on Jyri997

- Financing Statement No. 9833760671 filed on Ddxam3, 1998

- Financing Statement No. 0018860892 filed on 2fhe2000
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SCHEDULE 7.8
EXISTING LIENS; PLEDGES OF ASSETS
[See Schedule 7.7]
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EXHIBIT A
LETTER OF CREDIT
To be attached
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EXHIBIT B
FORM OF LINE OF CREDIT NOTE

$20,000,000.00 , 2000

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, AXT, INC., & @aware corporation ("Borrower"), hereby promisepay to the order of U.S.
BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Lender") on the Line Maurity Date the principal sum of Twenty Million Dats ($20,000,000.00), or
such lesser amount as shall equal the aggregat@nding principal balance of all advances hereundale by Lender to Borrower pursuant
to the Credit Agreement referred to below.

This promissory note is one of the Line of Credit®s referred to in, and is subject to the termshat certain Credit Agreement among
Borrower, Lender and the other financial institndrom time to time parties thereto (collectivelye "Lenders"), and U.S. Bank National
Association, as agent for the Lenders (in suchagpaAgent"), dated as of , 2000 (as aeednmodified or supplemented from
time to time, the "Credit Agreement”). Capitalizedns used herein and not defined shall have Spgentive meanings assigned to them ii
Credit Agreement.

Borrower further promises to pay interest on thistanding principal balance hereof at the intera&sts, and payable on the dates, set forth in
the Credit Agreement. All payments of principal amigrest hereunder shall be made to Agent at Ag@fice, for the account of Lender, in
lawful money of the United States and in same daynmediately available funds.

Lender is authorized but not required to recorddéie and amount of each advance made hereundbrc@aversion to a different interest
rate and the length of each Fixed Rate Term, thealad amount of each payment of principal andéstehereunder, and the resulting unpaid
principal balance hereof, in Lender's internal rdspand any such recordation shall be prima facigence of the accuracy of the informat
so recorded so long as Borrower is provided witecard thereof for review; provided however, thahter's failure to so record shall not
limit or otherwise affect the obligations of Borremhereunder and under the Credit Agreement to/réqeaprincipal hereof and interest
hereon.

The Credit Agreement provides, among other thif@gsacceleration (which in certain cases shall lit®matic) of the maturity hereof upon
the occurrence of certain stated events, in easd without presentment, demand, protest or furibéce of any kind, all of which are hereby
expressly waived by Borrower.
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This promissory note is secured by certain colédterore specifically described in the Credit Agresmand the other Loan Documents.
Borrower may prepay this promissory note in whaléngart in accordance with the terms of the Qrégireement.

This promissory note shall be governed by and coedtin accordance with the laws of the State dif@aia.

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

[Printed Name and Title]
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EXHIBIT C

FORM OF TERM NOTE

, 20(

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, AXT, INC., &lware corporation ("Borrower"), hereby promisepay to the order of U.S.
BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Lender"), the principasum of Dollars ($ ), oh ¢esser amount as m
be advanced hereunder, on the dates and in thensrset forth in that certain Credit Agreement agnBorrower, Lender and the other
financial institutions from time to time partiestieto (collectively, the "Lenders"), and U.S. Ba&tdtional Association, as agent for the
Lenders (in such capacity, "Agent"), dated as of , 2000 (as amended, modified or supplemented fime to time, the "Credit
Agreement"), with a final installment consistingadff remaining unpaid principal due and payablé&ulhon May 31, 2003.

This promissory note is one of the Term Notes refkto in, and is subject to the terms of, the €vkgreement. Capitalized terms used
herein and not defined shall have the respectivenimgs assigned to them in the Credit Agreement.

Borrower further promises to pay interest on thistanding principal balance hereof at the inter&gts, and payable on the dates, set forth in
the Credit Agreement. All payments of principal amigrest hereunder shall be made to Agent at Ag@ffice, for the account of Lender, in
lawful money of the United States and in same daynmediately available funds.

Lender is authorized but not required to recordddiie and amount of each advance made hereundbr¢@aversion to a different interest
rate and the length of each Fixed Rate Term, tkealad amount of each payment of principal andéstehereunder, and the resulting unpaid
principal balance hereof, in Lender's internal rdspand any such recordation shall be prima fexigence of the accuracy of the informat

so recorded so long as Borrower is provided th#t wirecord thereof for review; provided howevkattender's failure to so record shall
limit or otherwise affect the obligations of Borremhereunder and under the Credit Agreement toyrygaprincipal hereof and interest
hereon.

The Credit Agreement provides, among other thif@sacceleration (which in certain cases shall it@matic) of the maturity hereof upon
the occurrence of certain stated events, in easd without presentment, demand, protest or furibéce of any kind, all of which are hereby
expressly waived by Borrower.
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This promissory note is secured by certain colédterore specifically described in the Credit Agresmand the other Loan Documents.
Borrower may prepay this promissory note in whaléngart in accordance with the terms of the Qrégireement.

This promissory note shall be governed by and coedtin accordance with the laws of the State dif@aia.

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

[Printed Name and Title]
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EXHIBIT D
NOTICE OF BORROWING

U.S. Bank National Association
2890 N. Main Street

Walnut Creek, CA 94596
Attention:

Reference is made to that certain Credit Agreematgd as of , 2000 (as amendaeilifiedoor supplemented from time
to time, the "Credit Agreement") among AXT, IncDalaware corporation ("Borrower"), the financiasiitutions from time to time parties
thereto (collectively, the "Lenders"), and U.S. B&ational Association, as agent for the Lendars(ich capacity, "Agent"). Capitalized
terms used herein shall have the respective mesasgigned to them in the Credit Agreement.

1. Pursuant to Section 2.4 of the Credit Agreem@atrower hereby requests an advance under the [afilCredit] [Term Loan A] [Term
Loan
B] [Term Loan C] upon the following terms:

(@) The principal amount of the requested advanée i
(b) The date of the requested advance is to be
(c) The aggregate amount of said advance for whiRleference Rate interest selection is made is $

(d) The aggregate amount of said advance for whictBOR Rate interest selection is made, and eeghasted Fixed Rate Term, are:

Amount Fixed Rate Term
$ months
$ months

(e) The aggregate amount of said advance for wdi€reasury Rate interest selection is made is $

2. Borrower hereby certifies to Agent and the Leadkat, on the date of this Notice of Borrowingl after giving effect to the requested
advance (including the use of the proceeds thereof)
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(a) the representations and warranties set fortheérCredit Agreement are true and correct as dfiaran such date;
(b) no Default has occurred and is continuing; and
(c) each of the Loan Documents remains in full éoaad effect.

The party signing below on behalf of Borrower isfanthorized Representative of Borrower and hasedtisis Notice of Borrowing to be
duly executed on behalf of Borrower as of

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

[Printed Name and Title]
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EXHIBIT E
NOTICE OF CONVERSION OR CONTINUATION

U.S. Bank National Bank Association
2890 N. Main Street

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Attention:

Reference is made to that certain Credit Agreematgd as of , 2000 (as amendedfjedaat supplemented from time
time, the "Credit Agreement") among AXT, Inc., al@®®eare corporation ("Borrower"), the financial iigtions from time to time parties
thereto (collectively, the "Lenders"), and U.S. B&ational Association, as agent for the Lendars(ich capacity, "Agent"). Capitalized
terms used herein shall have the respective meaasgigned to them in the Credit Agreement.

1. Pursuant to Section 2.6 of the Credit AgreemBatrower hereby requests [the continuation obalpart of its outstanding LIBOR
borrowings with Fixed Rate Terms ending on | [the conversion of all or part of its outstangiReference Rate borrowings], as
follows:

(a) The Credit to which this Notice applies is fhime of Credit] [Term Loan A] [Term Loan B] [Terrhoan C].

(b) The effective date of continuation and/or casian is to be

(c) The aggregate amount of [said outstanding LIB®Rowings to be continued as] [said outstandiefeRence Rate borrowings to be
converted to] LIBOR borrowings, and each requebizdd Rate Term, are:

Amount Fixed Rate Term
$ months
S _____months

(d) The aggregate amount of said outstanding LIBORowings to be continued as Reference Rate bamgsas $
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3. Borrower hereby certifies to Agent and the Lesdkat, on the date of this Notice of Conversio€ontinuation, no Default has occurred
and is continuing.

The party signing below on behalf of Borrower isfanthorized Representative of Borrower and hasedtisis Notice of Conversion or
Continuation to be duly executed on behalf of Baepas of

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

[Printed Name and Title]
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EXHIBIT F

NOTICE OF
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

U.S. Bank National Association
2890 N. Main Street

Walnut Creek, California 94596
Attention:

Reference is made to that certain Credit Agreerdated as of , 2000 (as &audembdified or supplemented
from time to time, the "Credit Agreement") among BXAnc., a Delaware corporation ("Borrower"), tleaicial institutions from time to tin
parties thereto (collectively, the "Lenders"), ah&. Bank National Association, as agent for thedegs (in such capacity, "Agent").
Borrower hereby represents to Agent and Lendetshieaollowing named officers and employees aseAhlthorized Representatives of
Borrower, as defined in the Credit Agreement, drad the signatures opposite their names are thersignatures:

Name Signatu re

Borrower further represents to Agent and Lendess Algent is authorized to rely on this Notice oftharized Representatives until such tit
if any, as Borrower has delivered to Agent, andd®s received, a duly executed Notice of AutlemtiRepresentatives in substitution
hereof. This Notice of Authorized Representativascels and supersedes any Notice of AuthorizeddReptatives at any time prior to the
date hereof delivered by Borrower to Agent.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower hereby confirms thatas caused this Notice of Authorized Represemstio be duly executed as of
, 200

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

[Printed Name and Title]
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EXHIBIT G
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT

THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT (this "Agr eement”) is

entered into as of , between ("Assignor") and
("Assigne
WHEREAS, Assignor is a Lender under that certaied@rAgreement dated as of , 2000 (as@mde modified, supplemented or

restated from time to time, the "Credit Agreemeatflong AXT, Inc., a California corporation ("Borrew), the Lenders from time to time
parties thereto, and U.S. Bank National AssociatianAgent. Capitalized terms used but not defindgllis Agreement shall have the
meanings set forth in the Credit Agreement. Thadi€¥sgreement and all other agreements, documenisrestruments referred to therein or
delivered pursuant thereto are collectively catlesl"Loan Documents".

WHEREAS, it is the intention of Assignor and Assgrthat (a) Assignor assign to Assignee a portigkssignor's rights and obligations
under the Credit Agreement, (b) Assignee assunsuah obligations of Assignor, and
(c) Assignor be released from such assigned odigsit

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agnents herein contained, the parties hereto agréslews:

1. Assignment. Effective on the Assignment Effeetivate (as defined in Section 3 hereof), Assigwihout recourse and without
representation or warranty (except as expresshyigied in Section 6 hereof), hereby assigns to Assighe Assigned Rights and Obligations
(as defined below).

2. The "Assigned Rights and Obligations" meansfd&) portion] | %] of Assign@r's Proportionate Share
of [the Line of Credit] [Term Loan A] [Term Loan BJerm Loan C] Total Commitment on the Assignmeffe&ive Date; (b) the portion of
[the Line of Credit] [Term Loan A] [Term Loan B] Efm Loan C] outstanding on the Assignment Effecate that is attributable to the
above portion of Assignor's Proportionate Sharghef Line of Credit] [Term Loan A] [Term Loan B] ffm Loan C] Total Commitment; and
(c) all of Assignor's other rights and obligatiamgler the Credit Agreement that are attributabkécabove portion of Assignor's
Proportionate Share.
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3. Assumption. Effective on the Assignment Effeetivate, Assignee hereby accepts the foregoingrassigt of, and hereby assumes from
Assignor all of, the Assigned Rights and Obligasion

4. Effectiveness. This Agreement shall become 8¥feon such date as shall be selected by Assi@her'Assignment Effective Date"),
which date shall be on or as soon as practicabde tfe execution and delivery of counterparthef Agreement by Assignor, Assignee,
Agent and Borrower. Assignor shall promptly notfgsignee, Agent and Borrower in writing of the Agsnent Effective Date.

5. Payments on Assignment Effective Date. In casition of the assignment by Assignor to, and #saigption by Assignee of, the
Assigned Rights and Obligations, on the Assignnidfective Date: (a) Assignee shall pay to Assigther principal amount of [the Line of
Credit] [Term Loan A] [Term Loan B] [Term Loan Clade by Assignor pursuant to the Credit Agreemeattahe attributable to the Assigr
Rights and Obligations and outstanding on the Assint Effective Date; [and] (b) each of Assignod &ssignee shall pay to the other such
amounts (if any) as are specified in any writtereagnent or exchange of letters between them[; e@néigsignee shall pay to Agent an
assignment processing and recordation fee of $ L.

6. Allocation and Payment of Interest and Fees.

(a) Agent shall pay to Assignee all interest, cotmmant fees and other amounts not constituting ra¢hat are paid by or on behalf of
Borrower pursuant to the Loan Documents and aridatiible to the Assigned Rights and ObligatiorBoftower Amounts") which accrue on
and after the Assignment Effective Date. If Assigrexeives or collects any such Borrower Amountssignor shall promptly pay them to
Assignee.

(b) Agent shall pay to Assignor all Borrower Amositihat accrue before the Assignment Effective Da#essignee receives or collects any
such Borrower Amounts, Assignee shall promptly fiem to Assignor.

7. Representations and Warranties.
(a) Each of Assignor and Assignee represents anchmta to the other party as follows:

(i) Such party has full power and authority, and teken all action necessary, to execute and dehigeAgreement and to fulfill its
obligations under, and to consummate the transactiontemplated by, this Agreement.
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(i) The making and performance of this Agreemeant all documents required to be executed and delivey such party pursuant hereto do
not and will not violate any law or regulation aippble to such party.

(iii) This Agreement has been duly executed andréetd by, and constitutes a legal, valid and bigdibligation of, such party, enforceable
in accordance with its terms.

(iv) All approvals, authorizations or other actidns or filings with, any governmental authoritycessary for the validity or enforceability of
such party's obligations under this Agreement Hman made or obtained.

(b) Assignor represents and warrants to Assignae/thsignor owns the Assigned Rights and Obligatidree and clear of all liens or other
encumbrances.

(c) Assignee represents and warrants to Assignfuollasvs:

(i) Assignee has made and shall continue to makewn independent investigation of the financialditon, affairs and creditworthiness of
Borrower and any other person or entity obligatedar the Loan Documents (collectively, the "Cré&titties"), and the value of any collati
now or hereafter securing any of the obligationdebtedness, liabilities or undertakings undettten Documents (the "Collateral), in
connection with Assignee's assumption of the AssigRights and Obligations.

(i) Assignee has received a copy of the Loan Dosnisiand such other documents, financial statenamadtsnformation as Assignee deems
appropriate to make its own credit analysis andsitat to enter into this Agreement.

8. No Assignor Responsibility. Assignor makes rresentation or warranty and assumes no respatstbilAssignee for:

(a) the execution by any party other than Assigaffectiveness, genuineness, validity, enforcegbitiollectibility or sufficiency of the Loan
Documents, or for any representations, warrantggstals or statements made in the Loan Documaeritsany financial or other written or
oral statement, instrument, report, certificateuoy other document made or furnished or made alailay Assignor to Assignee or by or on
behalf of any Credit Party to Assignor or Assigiteeonnection with the Loan Documents and the tatisns contemplated thereby;

(b) the performance or observance of any of thmdeconditions, provisions, covenants or agreemamitained in any of the Loan
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Documents or the existence or possible existene@yflefault or event of default under the Loan iwoents; or
(c) the accuracy or completeness of any informati@mvided to Assignee, whether by Assignor or bpmbehalf of any Credit Party.

Assignor shall have no initial or continuing dutyresponsibility to make any investigation of tivehcial condition, affairs or
creditworthiness of any of the Credit Parties har value of any Collateral, in connection with #ssignment of the Assigned Rights and
Obligations hereunder, or to provide Assignee \aitly credit or other information with respect therethether coming into Assignor's
possession before the date hereof or at any tirtimes thereafter.

9. Assignee Bound By Credit Agreement. Effectivelom Assignment Effective Date, Assignee: (a) shalleemed to be a party to the Cr
Agreement; (b) agrees to be bound by the Crediedmient as it would have been if it had been annaiigender party thereto; and (c) agi

to perform in accordance with their respective aih obligations which are required under the LBaxtuments to be performed by it as a
Lender. Assignee appoints and authorizes Ageratki® $uch actions as agent on Assignee's behatbamdarcise such powers under the Loan
Documents as are delegated to Agent by the teremedf together with such powers as are reasonmatijental thereto.

10. Assignor Released From Credit Agreement. Hffean the Assignment Effective Date, Assignor khalreleased from the Assigned
Rights and Obligations; provided, however, thatigssr shall retain all of its rights to indemnift@an under Sections 2.14 and 10.3 of the
Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documentsrgrewvents, acts or omissions occurring before th&ghment Effective Date.

11. Foreign Withholding.(*)

(a) Assignee represents and warrants to AgentoB@mrand Assignor that, under applicable law aedties, Assignee is entitled to receive
payments under the Credit Agreement, the Loan Deatsnand this Agreement payable to it as providedih, without deduction or
withholding of any taxes imposed by the United &air any political subdivision thereof.

(b) On or before the Assignment Effective Date,igisse shall deliver to each of Borrower and Agerd executed copies of valid and
properly completed: (i) United States Internal Rewe Service Form 1001 or 4224 certifying

* Include Section 11 only if Assignee is a foreigastitution.
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that Assignee is entitled to receive payments utiteCredit Agreement and the Loan Documents payaht, without deduction or
withholding of any United States federal incomeetand (ii) Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 a8 \&stablishing an exemption from
United States backup withholding tax. If any sucinf is found to be incomplete or incorrect, or nhestreplaced (on the same or a successor
form) in order to maintain its effectiveness, Assg shall execute and deliver to each of BorrowdrAgent two executed copies of a valid,
complete and correct replacement form.

12. General.

(a) This Agreement constitutes the entire undedstanof the parties with respect to the subjecttendtereof and supersedes all prior and
current understandings and agreements, whethdewnot oral (other than with respect to any fegapke as provided in Section 4 hereof).

(b) No term or provision of this Agreement may beeaded, waived or terminated orally, but only byirstrument signed by the parties
hereto.

(c) This Agreement may be executed in one or moumierparts. Each set of executed counterpartstsihah original. Executed counterparts
may be delivered by facsimile transmission.

(d) Assignor may at any time and from time to tignant to others pursuant to the Loan Documentgmasgnts of or participations in all or
part of Assignor's Proportionate Share of [the loh€redit] [Term Loan A]
[Term Loan B] [Term Loan C] Total Commitments, lmatt with respect to the Assigned Rights and Ohbilogest

(e) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inaréhe benefit of the parties hereto and theireetipe legal representatives, successors
assigns. Neither Assignor nor Assignee may asgigransfer any of its rights or obligations undestAgreement without the prior written

consent of the other. The preceding sentence sbialimit the right of Assignee to grant to othassignments of or participations in all or |
of the Assigned Rights and Obligations to the edpemmitted by the terms of the Loan Documents.

(f) All payments to Assignor or Assignee hereurstall, unless otherwise specified by the partytieatihereto, be made in United States
Dollars, in immediately available funds, and to #iglress or account specified on the signaturespafghis Agreement. The address of
Assignee for notice purposes under the Credit Agesd shall be as specified on the signature paigibssoAgreement.
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(9) If any provision of this Agreement is held itidaillegal or unenforceable, the remaining prowis hereof will not be affected or impaired
in any way.

(h) Each party shall bear its own expenses in ottiorewith the preparation and execution of thigégment.
(i) This Agreement shall be governed by and coestin accordance with the laws of the State offQalia.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeatthis Agreement as of the date first above written

ASSIGNOR:

By: Name: Title:

Assignor's Notice Instructions:

Attn: Ref: Telephone: ( ) Facsimile: ( )

Assignor's Payment Instructions:

ABA No.: Account No.: Attn: Ref:

Exhibit G -- Page €



ASSIGNEE:

By: Name: Title:

Assignee's Notice Instructions:

Attn: Ref: Telephone: ( ) Facsimile: ( )

Assignee's Payment Instructions:

ABA No.: Account No.: Attn: Ref:
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ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED:
BORROWER:

AXT, INC., a Delaware corporation
By:

Name:
Title:

AGENT:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Agent

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT H
FORM OF BORROWING BASE CERTIFICATE
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No-83360) of AXT, Inc. of our report
dated February 9, 2001 relating to the consolidfitethcial statements, which appears in this Fo@akK1

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

February 26, 200



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby cansehe incorporation of our report included imstRorm 10-K, into the Company's
previously filed Registration Statement File No3387/560

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Los Angeles, California

February 26, 2001

End of Filing
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